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As used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, except where the context otherwise requires or where otherwise indicated, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “the
Company,” and “Avid,” refer to Avid Bioservices, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.




PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share information)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Assets of discontinued operations
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Restricted cash
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related costs

Contract liabilities

Other current liabilities

Liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Deferred rent, less current portion
Capital lease, less current portion

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock—$0.001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; 1,647,760 shares issued and
outstanding at October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018, respectively

Common stock—3$0.001 par value; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 56,063,488 and 55,689,222 shares
issued and outstanding at October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

October 31, April 30,
2018 2018
Unaudited (Note 1)
32,694 42,265
4,197 3,754
5,092 -
9,736 16,129
774 679
- 5,000
52,493 67,827
26,279 26,479
1,150 1,150
302 304
80,224 95,760
3,223 1,909
1,829 2,564
17,307 27,935
433 905
416 4,550
23,208 37,863
2,126 2,159
93 -
2 2
56 55
614,541 614,810
(559,802) (559,129)
54,797 55,738
80,224 95,760

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Contract manufacturing revenue
Cost of contract manufacturing

Gross profit (loss)

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Restructuring charges

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Interest and other income, net

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax benefit

Loss from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net loss

Comprehensive loss

Series E preferred stock accumulated dividends
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Basic and diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per common share
attributable to common stockholders:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

$ 10,178  $ 12,782 $ 22,767  $ 39,859
9,844 16,242 21,241 36,690

334 (3,460) 1,526 3,169

2,816 3,596 6,031 7,449

= 1,258 = 1,258

2,816 4,854 6,031 8,707
(2,482) (8,314) (4,505) (5,538)

119 13 181 37
$ (2,363) $ (8,301) $ (4,324) $ (5,501)
173 = 173 =
$ (2,190) $ (8,301) $ (4,151) $ (5,501)
739 (4,323) 739 (8,328)
$ (1,451) $ (12,624) $ (3,412) % (13,829)
$ (1,451) $ (12,624) $ (3412) $ (13,829)
(1,442) (1,442) (2,523) (2,523)
$ (2,893) $ (14,066) $ (5,935) $ (16,352)
56,008,541 45,097,474 55,889,325 44,935,600
$ 0.06) $ 021) $ 0.12) $ (0.18)
$ 001 $ 0.10) $ 001 $ (0.18)
$ 0.05) $ 0.31) $ 0.11) $ (0.36)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands)

Six Months Ended
October 31,
2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (3,412) % (13,829)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,325 1,300
Stock-based compensation 622 794
Gain on sale of research and development assets (1,000) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables (443) 4,234
Contract assets (2,204) -
Inventories (1,478) 16,581
Prepaid expenses (95) (300)
Other non-current assets 2 9
Accounts payable 880 (1,426)
Accrued payroll and related expenses (735) (1,787)
Contract liabilities (2,715) (24,906)
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities (741) 172
Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations (4,134) (882)
Deferred rent, less current portion (33) 572
Net cash used in operating activities (14,161) (19,468)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (446) (1,809)
Proceeds from sale of research and development assets 6,000 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 5,554 (1,809)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid on Series E preferred stock (2,162) (2,162)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock - 4,193
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan 114 216
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,158 112
Principal payments on capital lease obligation (74) (154)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (964) 2,205
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (9,571) (19,072)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 43,415 47,949
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 33,844 $ 28,877
SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Accounts payable for purchase of property and equipment $ 434 $ 139
Property and equipment acquired under capital lease $ 245 $ _

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the unaudited condensed consolidated

balance sheets to the total of the same amounts shown above:

October 31, April 30, October 31, April 30,
2018 2018 2017 2017
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,694 $ 42,265 $ 27,727 46,799
Restricted cash 1,150 1,150 1,150 1,150
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 33,844 $ 43,415 $ 28,877 47,949

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

1. DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

We are a contract development and manufacturing organization (“CDMO”) that provides a comprehensive range of services from process
development to current Good Manufacturing Practices (“cGMP”) commercial manufacturing focused on biopharmaceutical products derived from
mammalian cell culture for biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) and with the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) related to quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, and accordingly, they do not include all of the information and disclosures required by U.S. GAAP for annual financial statements. These
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018. The condensed consolidated balance sheet at April 30,
2018 has been derived from audited financial statements at that date. The unaudited financial information for the interim periods presented herein reflects all
adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the financial condition and results of operations for the periods
presented, with such adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments. Results of operations for interim periods covered by this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q may not necessarily be indicative of results of operations for the full fiscal year or any other interim period.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Avid Bioservices, Inc., and its subsidiaries. All intercompany
accounts and transactions among the consolidated entities have been eliminated in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts, as well as disclosures of commitments and contingencies in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
materially from those estimates and assumptions.

Discontinued Operations

For all periods presented, the operating results of our former research and development segment have been excluded from continuing operations and
reported as income (loss) from discontinued operations in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for all periods presented.
In addition, the assets and liabilities related to our discontinued research and development segment are reported as assets and liabilities of discontinued
operations in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets at October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018. For additional information on the
discontinuation of our research and development segment, refer to Note 11, “Sale of Research and Development Assets”.

Segment Reporting

Historically, our business had been organized into two reportable operating segments: (i) our research and development segment, and (ii) our contract
manufacturing services segment. However, as a result of the aforementioned discontinued operation of our research and development segment (Note 11),
management has determined that the Company now operates in only one operating segment. Accordingly, we reported our financial results for one reportable
segment to reflect this new organizational structure.




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Restructuring

Restructuring charges consist of one-time termination benefits, including severance and other employee related costs related to a workforce
reduction pursuant to a restructuring plan we implemented in August 2017 (fiscal year 2018). Under this restructuring plan, which we completed in October
2017, we incurred an aggregate of $1,588 in restructuring charges, of which $330 related to our discontinued research and development segment (Note 11)
and $1,258 related to our contract manufacturing services segment.

Going Concern

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of
assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability
of the recorded assets or the classification of liabilities that may be necessary should it be determined that we are unable to continue as a going concern.

At October 31, 2018, we had $32,694 in cash and cash equivalents. Our ability to fund our operations depends on the amount of cash on hand and
our ability to generate sufficient revenue to cover our operations. We have expended substantial funds on our legacy research and development of
pharmaceutical product candidates (discontinued operations) and our contract manufacturing business (continuing operations). As a result, we have
experienced losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception, and although we have discontinued our research and development segment,
we expect negative cash flows from operations to continue until we can generate sufficient revenue to generate positive cash flow from operations.

In the event we are unable to obtain sufficient business to support our operations beyond the next twelve months, we may need to raise additional
capital. Our ability to raise additional capital in the equity markets to fund our obligations in future periods depends on a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, the market demand for our common stock. The market demand or liquidity of our common stock is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties,
including but not limited to, negative economic conditions, adverse market conditions, and adverse financial results. If we are unable to either raise sufficient
capital in the equity markets or generate additional revenue, we may need to further restructure, or cease, our operations. In addition, even if we are able to
raise additional capital, it may not be at a price or on terms that are favorable to us.

As a result, we have concluded that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that our
accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are issued.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts related to deferred revenue and customer deposits have been reclassified to contract liabilities in our accompanying

consolidated balance sheet for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018 and in our accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the six months ended
October 31, 2017 to conform to the current period presentation (Note 2). This reclassification had no effect on previously reported net loss.




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606): Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”), which, along with subsequent amendments issued after May 2014,
replaced substantially all then relevant U.S. GAAP revenue recognition guidance. ASC 606, as amended, is based on the principle that revenue is recognized
to depict the contractual transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services utilizing a new five-step revenue recognition model, which steps include (i) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (ii)
identify the performance obligations in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

On May 1, 2018, we adopted ASC 606, as amended, to all contracts not completed as of May 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method.
Results for the reporting period beginning after May 1, 2018 are presented in accordance with ASC 606, while prior period amounts continue to be reported
under the accounting standards that were in effect for the prior period. The accounting policy for revenue recognition for periods prior to May 1, 2018 is
described in Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2018.

The cumulative effect of adopting ASC 606 resulted in a one-time adjustment of $2,739 to the opening balance of accumulated deficit. The
cumulative effect adjustment relates to the recognition of revenue and related costs for customer contracts that transfer goods or services over time. Under
ASC 606, the timing of the recognition of contract manufacturing revenue and the related cost of contract manufacturing associated with goods or services
provided to customers with no alternative use are recognized over time utilizing an input method that compares the cost of cumulative work-in-process to date
to the most current estimates for the entire cost of the performance obligation. By contrast, in the prior period, contract manufacturing revenue and the related
costs were recognized upon completion of the performance obligation in accordance with accounting standards that were in effect in the prior period. Under
these customer contracts the customer retains control of the product as it is being created or enhanced by our services and/or we are entitled to compensation
for progress to date that includes an element of profit margin.

The following table summarizes the cumulative effect of the adoption of ASC 606 on amounts previously reported in our consolidated balance sheet
at April 30, 2018:

As ASC 606

Reported Transition Balance at

April 30, 2018 Adjustment May 1, 2018
Contract assets $ - $ 2,888 $ 2,888
Inventories 16,129 (7,871) 8,258
Contract liabilities 27,935 (7,913) 20,022
Other current liabilities 905 191 1,096
Accumulated deficit (559,129) 2,739 (556,390)




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

The following tables summarize the effect of the adoption of ASC 606 on our unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet at October 31, 2018
and our unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018:

Balance
Without
As Effect of Change Adoption of
Reported Higher/(Lower) ASC 606
Contract assets $ 5,092 $ 5,092 $ =
Inventories 9,736 (16,244) 25,980
Contract liabilities 17,307 (17,506) 34,813

Three Months Ended October 31, 2018
Balance Without

As Effect of Change Adoption of ASC
Reported Higher/(Lower) 606
Contract manufacturing revenue $ 10,178 $ 1,215 $ 8,963
Cost of contract manufacturing 9,844 (79) 9,923
Gross profit (loss) 334 1,294 (960)
Operating loss (2,482) 1,294 (3,776)
Loss from continuing operations (2,190) 1,294 (3,484)

Six Months Ended October 31, 2018

Balance
Without
As Effect of Change Adoption of ASC
Reported Higher/(Lower) 606
Contract manufacturing revenue $ 22,767 $ 11,831 $ 10,936
Cost of contract manufacturing 21,241 7,905 13,336
Gross profit (loss) 1,526 3,926 (2,400)
Operating loss (4,505) 3,926 (8,431)
Loss from continuing operations (4,151) 3,926 (8,077)

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue from contract manufacturing services provided under our customer contracts, which we have disaggregated into the following
revenue streams:

Manufacturing revenue

The manufacturing revenue stream represents revenue from the manufacturing of customer product(s) derived from mammalian cell culture covering
clinical through commercial manufacturing runs. Under a manufacturing contract, a quantity of manufacturing runs are ordered and the product is
manufactured according to the customer’s specifications and typically only one performance obligation is included. Each manufacturing run represents a
distinct service that is sold separately and has stand-alone value to the customer. The product(s) are manufactured exclusively for a specific customer and
have no alternative use. The customer retains control of their product during the entire manufacturing process and can make changes to the process or
specifications at their request. Under these agreements, we are entitled to consideration for progress to date that includes an element of profit margin.
Revenue associated with this stream is recognized over time utilizing an input method that compares the cost of cumulative work-in-process to date to the
most current estimates for the entire cost of the performance obligation.




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Process development revenue

The process development revenue stream represents revenue from non-manufacturing related services associated with the custom development of a
customer’s product. Under a process development contract, the customer owns the product details and process, which has no alternative use. These process
development projects are customized to each customer to meet their specifications and typically only one performance obligation is included. Each process
represents a distinct service that is sold separately and has stand-alone value to the customer. The customer also retains control of their product as the product
is being created or enhanced by our services and can make changes to their process or specifications upon request. Revenue associated with this stream is
recognized over time utilizing an input method that compares the cost of cumulative work-in-process to date to the most current estimates for the entire cost
of the performance obligation.

The following table disaggregates our contract manufacturing revenue for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 and 2017 by revenue
stream. Contract manufacturing revenue for the three and six months ended October 31, 2017 has not been adjusted in accordance with our modified
retrospective adoption of ASC 606 and continues to be reported under the accounting standards that were in effect prior to our adoption of ASC 606 on May
1, 2018:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Manufacturing revenue $ 7,243 $ 11,437 $ 17,543 $ 36,236
Process development revenue 2,935 1,345 5,224 3,623
Total contract manufacturing revenue $ 10,178 $ 12,782 $ 22,767 $ 39,859

Contract balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in billed trade receivables, contract assets (unbilled receivables), and contract
liabilities (customer deposits and deferred revenue). Contract assets are recorded when our right to consideration is conditioned on something other than the
passage of time. Contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables on the balance sheet when our rights become unconditional. Contract liabilities represent
customer deposits and deferred revenue billed and/or received in advance of our fulfillment of performance obligations. Contract liabilities will convert to
contract manufacturing revenue as we perform our obligations under the contract.

We recognized contract manufacturing revenue of $3,063 and $10,025, respectively, during the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 for
which the contract liability was recorded in the prior year.

Practical expedients and contract costs

We apply the practical expedient available under ASC 606 that permits us not to disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts
with an original expected length of one year or less. In addition, we currently do not have any unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts greater than
one year.

Costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract are not material. These costs are generally employee sales commissions, which are expensed when

incurred and included in selling, general and administrative expense in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss.

10




AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all short-term investments readily convertible to cash with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Restricted Cash

Under the terms of three separate operating leases related to our facilities, we are required to maintain, as collateral, letters of credit during the terms
of such leases. At October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018, restricted cash of $1,150 was pledged as collateral under these letters of credit.

Impairment

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with authoritative guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. Long-lived
assets are reviewed for events or changes in circumstances, which indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets are reported at
the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. For the six months ended October 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no indicators of impairment of
the value of our long-lived assets.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The guidance prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value into the following hierarchy:

Level 1 — Observable inputs, such as unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as assets or liabilities whose values are based on quoted
market prices in markets where trading occurs infrequently or whose values are based on quoted prices of instruments with similar
attributes in active markets.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and significant to the overall fair value measurement of the
assets or liabilities; therefore, requiring the company to develop its own valuation techniques and assumptions.

As of October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018, we do not have any Level 2 or Level 3 financial assets or liabilities and our cash equivalents, which are
primarily invested in money market funds with one major commercial bank, are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices for identical securities
(Level 1 input). In addition, there were no transfers between any Levels of the fair value hierarchy during the three and six months ended October 31, 2018
and 2017.

Stock-based Compensation

We account for stock options, restricted stock rights and other stock-based awards granted under our equity compensation plans in accordance with
the authoritative guidance for stock-based compensation. The estimated fair value of stock options granted to employees in exchange for services is measured
at the grant date, using a fair value based method, such as a Black-Scholes option valuation model, and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service periods. In addition, the fair value of restricted stock rights is measured at the grant date based on the closing market price of our
common stock on the date of grant, and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the period of vesting. Forfeitures are recognized as a reduction
of stock-based compensation expense as they occur. As of October 31, 2018, there were no outstanding stock-based awards with market or performance
conditions.
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AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided for the amount of deferred tax assets that, based on available evidence, are not
expected to be realized. As a result of our cumulative losses, management has concluded that a full valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets is
appropriate.

The income tax benefit recognized in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss during
the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 resulted from the “Intraperiod Tax Allocation” rules under ASC 740: Income Taxes, which requires the
allocation of an entity’s total annual income tax provision among continuing operations and, in our case, discontinued operations. Accordingly, a tax benefit
was recorded in continuing operations with an offsetting tax expense recorded in discontinued operations (Note 11).

In December 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) was enacted. The Tax Act includes a number of changes to existing U.S. tax laws that
impact us, most notably a reduction of the U.S. corporate income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent for tax years, effective January 1, 2018. We
performed a review of the Tax Act for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, and based on the information available at that time, recorded certain provisional
amounts related to the revaluation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, which were fully offset by a valuation allowance.

In December 2017, the SEC issued interpretive guidance under Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 to address the application of U.S. GAAP in
situations when a registrant does not have the necessary information available, prepared, or analyzed (including computations) in reasonable detail to
complete the accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Act. As discussed above, for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, we recognized provisional
tax impacts related to the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, which amounts were fully offset by a valuation allowance. The ultimate impact may
differ from these provisional amounts, due to among other things, additional analysis, changes in interpretations and assumptions we have made, additional
regulatory guidance that may be issued, and actions we may take as a result of the Tax Act. The accounting for these provisions is expected to be complete
when our 2017 U.S. corporate income tax return is filed in the first quarter of calendar year 2019.

Adoption of Other Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash, which clarifies the presentation
requirements of restricted cash within the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 will require that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the
period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally
described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and
end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2017. We adopted ASU 2016-18 on May 1, 2018 and the cash and cash equivalents at the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts in our condensed consolidated statements of cash flows have been adjusted to include $1,150 of restricted cash for each of the periods
presented.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting, which provides
guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a stock-based payment award require an entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718.
This pronouncement is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. We adopted ASU 2017-09 on May 1, 2018. The adoption of
this ASU did not have a material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
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AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share and per share information)

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard requires lessees to recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities on its balance sheet for all leases with lease terms greater than 12 months and disclose key information about leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02
offers specific accounting guidance for a lessee, a lessor and sale and leaseback transactions. Lessees and lessors are required to disclose qualitative and
quantitative information about leasing arrangements to enable a user of the financial statements to assess the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows
arising from leases. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018, which will be our
fiscal year 2020 beginning May 1, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of ASU 2016-02 on
our condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables represent amounts billed for contract manufacturing services and are recorded at the invoiced amount net of an allowance for

doubtful accounts, if necessary. Other receivables are reported at amounts expected to be collected net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, if necessary.
Trade and other receivables consist of the following:

October 31, April 30,
2018 2018
Trade receivables $ 4183 $ 3,539
Other receivables 14 215
Total trade and other receivables $ 4197 $ 3,754

We continually monitor our allowance for doubtful accounts for all receivables. We apply judgment in assessing the ultimate realization of our
receivables and we estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts based on various factors, such as, the aging of accounts receivable balances, historical
experience, and the financial condition of our customers. Based on our analysis of our receivables as of October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018, we determined
no allowance for doubtful accounts was necessary.

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market (net realizable value) and include raw materials and work-in-process (comprised of raw
materials, direct labor and overhead costs associated with in-process manufacturing services) associated with contract manufacturing services. Overhead costs
allocated to work-in-process inventory are based on the normal capacity of our production facilities and do not include costs from abnormally low production
or idle capacity, which are expensed directly to cost of contract manufacturing in the period incurred. During the three and six months ended October 31,
2018 and 2017, we expensed $2,923 and $4,652, respectively, and $4,938 and $5,838, respectively, in idle capacity costs directly to cost of contract
manufacturing in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements. Subsequent to the adoption of ASC 606, manufacturing costs associated
with work-in-process are recorded to cost of contract manufacturing in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements as incurred. Cost is
determined by the first-in, first-out method. Inventories consist of the following:

October 31, April 30,
2018 2018
Raw materials $ 9,648 $ 8,165
Work-in-process 88 7,964
Total inventories $ 9,736 $ 16,129
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5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related asset, generally ranging from three to ten years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is
calculated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining lease term. Construction-in-progress, which
represents direct costs related to the construction of various equipment and leasehold improvements associated with our manufacturing facilities, are not
depreciated until the asset is completed and placed into service. No interest was incurred or capitalized as construction-in-progress as of October 31, 2018 and
April 30, 2018. All of our property and equipment are located in the U.S.

Property and equipment, net, consists of the following:

October 31, April 30,
2018 2018

Leasehold improvements $ 20,738 $ 20,686
Laboratory equipment 12,380 10,258
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and software 5,159 4,597
Construction-in-progress 1,644 3,310

Total property and equipment 39,921 38,851
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (13,642) (12,372)

Total property and equipment, net $ 26,279 $ 26,479

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 was $683 and $1,325, respectively. Depreciation and
amortization expense for the three and six months ended October 31, 2017 was $658 and $1,300, respectively.

6. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION

In June 2018, we financed certain software under a capital lease agreement that bears interest at a rate of approximately 4.19% per annum. The gross
value of software purchased under the capital lease of $245 and the related accumulated amortization of $34 are included in property and equipment, net in
the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet at October 31, 2018.

Minimum future lease payments under the capital lease as of October 31, 2018 are as follows:

Fiscal Year ending April 30,:

2019 (remainder of fiscal year) $ -

2020 85

2021 97
Total minimum lease payments 182
Amount representing interest (11)
Net present value minimum lease payments 171
Less current portion included in other current liabilities (78)
Long-term portion included in capital lease obligation, less current portion $ 93
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7. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Series E Preferred Stock Dividend

The following table summarizes the 10.50% Series E Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series E Preferred Stock”) quarterly dividend activity during

the six months ended October 31, 2018:

Declaration Record Payment Dividends Dividend
Date Date Date Paid Per Share
6/6/2018 6/18/2018 7/2/2018 $ 1,081,000 0.65625
9/5/2018 9/17/2018 10/1/2018 $ 1,081,000 0.65625

Shares of Common Stock Authorized and Reserved for Future Issuance

On October 4, 2018, our stockholders approved an amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation to decrease our authorized number of shares of
common stock from 500,000,000 shares to 150,000,000 shares (the “Certificate of Amendment”). The Certificate of Amendment became effective upon filing

with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on October 4, 2018.

As of October 31, 2018, 56,063,488 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding. In addition, our common stock outstanding as of

October 31, 2018 excluded the following shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance:

7,313,424 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under outstanding option grants and restricted stock rights and available for

issuance under our stock incentive plans;

1,231,699 shares of common stock reserved for and available for issuance under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan; and

6,826,435 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our outstanding Series E Preferred Stock m,

(€3] The Series E Preferred Stock is convertible into a number of shares of our common stock determined by dividing the liquidation preference
of $25.00 per share by the conversion price, currently $21.00 per share. If all of our outstanding shares of Series E Preferred Stock were
converted at the $21.00 per share conversion price, the holders of our Series E Preferred Stock would receive an aggregate of 1,961,619
shares of our common stock. However, we have reserved the maximum number of shares of our common stock that could be issued upon a
change of control event assuming our shares of common stock are acquired for consideration of $5.985 per share or less. In this scenario,

each outstanding share of our Series E Preferred Stock could be converted into 4.18 shares of our common stock.
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8. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
Stock Incentive Plans

On October 4, 2018, our stockholders approved the Avid Bioservices, Inc. 2018 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan”) which provides, among
other things, the ability for us to grant stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units and other forms of share-based awards.

The number of shares of our common stock authorized for issuance under the 2018 Plan is the sum of (A) 2,350,000 and (B) the aggregate number
of shares of common stock available for the grant of awards under our 2009, 2010, and 2011 Stock Incentive Plans (the “Prior Plans”) as of October 4, 2018
(the “Effective Date” of the 2018 Plan). The 2018 Plan replaced the Prior Plans, and no new awards will be granted under the Prior Plans as of the Effective
Date. However, any awards outstanding under the Prior Plans on the Effective Date will remain subject to and be paid under the applicable Prior Plan, and
any shares subject to outstanding awards under the Prior Plans that subsequently expire, terminate, or are surrendered or forfeited for any reason without
issuance of shares will automatically become available for issuance under the 2018 Plan.

As of October 31, 2018, we had an aggregate of 7,313,424 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under our stock incentive plans, of
which, 3,146,713 shares were subject to outstanding options and restricted stock rights and 4,166,711 shares were available for future grants of stock-based
awards.

Stock Options

The following summarizes our stock option transaction activity for the six months ended October 31, 2018:

Weighted Average
Stock Options Shares Exercisable Price
Outstanding, May 1, 2018 3,597,738  $ 8.74
Granted 439,647 $ 5.05
Exercised (334,556) $ 3.47
Canceled or expired (679,366) $ 11.26
Outstanding, October 31, 2018 3,023,463 $ 8.22

Restricted Stock Rights

On June 15, 2018, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors granted an aggregate of 128,050 restricted stock right (“RSR”) awards to
substantially all of our employees, excluding executive officers, which entitles the employee the right to be issued a share of our common stock upon vesting
of the RSR. The RSR’s were granted under our 2011 Stock Incentive Plan and vest annually in equal installments over a four-year period. The RSR’s have an
aggregate grant date fair value of $464, based on the closing market price of our common stock on the date of grant, which is amortized as stock-based
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the period of vesting.
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The following summarizes our restricted stock right transaction activity for the six months ended October 31, 2018:

Weighted Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Restricted Stock Rights Shares

Outstanding, May 1, 2018 -
Granted 128,050
Vested -
Forfeited (4,800)
Outstanding, October 31, 2018 123,250

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

3.62

3.62
3.62

We have reserved a total of 2,142,857 shares of our common stock to be purchased under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), of which
1,231,699 shares remained available to purchase at October 31, 2018, and are subject to adjustment as provided in the ESPP for stock splits, stock dividends,
recapitalizations and other similar events. Under the ESPP, we sell shares to participants at a price equal to the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of our
common stock at the (i) beginning of a six-month offering period, or (ii) end of the six-month offering period. The ESPP provides for two six-month offering
periods each year; the first offering period begins on the first trading day on or after each May 1; the second offering period begins on the first trading day on
or after each November 1. During the six months ended October 31, 2018, 39,710 shares of our common stock were purchased under the ESPP at a purchase

price of $2.87 per share.

Stock-Based Compensation

Total stock-based compensation expense related to stock-based awards issued under our equity compensation plans is included in the accompanying

unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 2018

Cost of contract manufacturing $ 85 $ 138 170 $ 138
Selling, general and administrative 240 125 452 330
Discontinued operations — 46 - 326

Total $ 325 § 309 622 % 794
Share-based compensation from:
Stock options $ 275 $ 287 5299 § 696
Restricted stock rights 27 - 42 -
ESPP 23 22 51 98

Total $ 325 § 309 622 % 794
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As of October 31, 2018, the total estimated unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested employee stock options and non-vested restricted
stock rights was $3,118 and $404, respectively. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted average vesting periods of 2.93 years and 3.62
years, respectively.

9. NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing our net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the period, excluding the dilutive effects of stock options, unvested RSRs, shares of common stock expected to be
issued under our ESPP, warrants, and Series E Preferred Stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per common share is computed by dividing our
net loss attributable to common stockholders by the sum of the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period plus the
potential dilutive effects of stock options, unvested RSRs, shares of common stock expected to be issued under our ESPP, warrants, and Series E Preferred
Stock outstanding during the period. Net loss attributable to common stockholders represents our net loss plus Series E Preferred Stock accumulated
dividends. Series E Preferred Stock accumulated dividends include dividends declared for the period (regardless of whether or not the dividends have been
paid) and dividends accumulated for the period (regardless of whether or not the dividends have been declared).

The potential dilutive effect of stock options, unvested RSRs, shares of common stock expected to be issued under our ESPP, and warrants
outstanding during the period are calculated in accordance with the treasury stock method, but are excluded if their effect is anti-dilutive. The potential
dilutive effect of our Series E Preferred Stock outstanding during the period was calculated using the if-converted method assuming the conversion of Series
E Preferred Stock as of the earliest period reported or at the date of issuance, if later, but are excluded if their effect is anti-dilutive. However, because the
impact of stock options, unvested RSRs, shares of common stock expected to be issued under our ESPP, warrants, and Series E Preferred Stock are anti-
dilutive during periods of net loss, there was no difference between basic and diluted loss per common share amounts for the three and six months ended
October 31, 2018 and 2017.

The calculation of weighted average diluted shares outstanding for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 and 2017 excludes the dilutive
effect of the following weighted average outstanding stock options, unvested RSRs and shares of common stock expected to be issued under our ESPP as
their impact is anti-dilutive during periods of net loss:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Stock Options 234,763 31,877 185,996 69,065
RSRs 55,963 — 30,645 -
ESPP 16,401 — 9,090 133
Total 307,127 31,877 225,731 69,198
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The calculation of weighted average diluted shares outstanding for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 and 2017 also excludes the
following weighted average outstanding stock options, warrants, and Series E Preferred Stock (assuming the if-converted method), as their exercise prices or
conversion price were greater than the average market price of our common stock during the respective periods, resulting in an anti-dilutive effect:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Stock Options 2,238,986 3,600,478 2,599,877 3,608,917
ESPP - 43,332 - -
Warrants 12,306 39,040 25,673 39,040
Series E Preferred Stock 1,978,783 1,978,783 1,978,783 1,978,783
Total 4,230,075 5,661,633 4,604,333 5,626,740

10. WARRANTS

During the three and six months ended October 31, 2018, warrants to purchase 39,040 shares of our common stock expired unexercised. As of
October 31, 2018, we had no warrants issued and outstanding.

11. SALE OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ASSETS
February 2018 Asset Assignment and Purchase Agreement

On February 12, 2018, we entered into an Asset Assignment and Purchase Agreement (the “February 2018 Purchase Agreement”) with Oncologie,
Inc. (“Oncologie”) pursuant to which we sold to Oncologie the majority of our research and development assets, which included the assignment of certain
exclusive licenses related to our former phosphatidylserine (PS)-targeting program, as well as certain other licenses and assets useful and/or necessary for the
potential commercialization of bavituximab.

Pursuant to the February 2018 Purchase Agreement, we received an aggregate of $8,000 from Oncologie, paid over three installments, of which
$3,000 was received in March 2018 (first installment), $3,000 was received in June 2018 (second installment) and $2,000 was received in September 2018
(third installment). We are also eligible to receive up to an additional $95,000 in the event that Oncologie achieves certain development, regulatory and
commercialization milestones with respect to bavituximab. In addition, we are eligible to receive royalties on net sales that are upward tiering into the mid-
teens in the event that Oncologie commercializes and sells products utilizing bavituximab or the other transferred assets. As of October 31, 2018, no
development, regulatory and commercialization milestones as defined in the February 2018 Purchase Agreement have been achieved by Oncologie.
Oncologie is responsible for all future research, development and commercialization of bavituximab, including all related intellectual property costs and all
other future liabilities and obligations arising out of the ownership of the transferred assets (i.e., we remain obligated for all liabilities associated with the
research and development assets associated with the February 2018 Purchase Agreement incurred or arising prior to February 13, 2018). In addition, during
May 2018, we entered into a separate services agreement with Oncologie to provide contract development and manufacturing services, at our commercial
rates, in support of the research and development assets sold under the February 2018 Purchase Agreement.
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September 2018 Asset Assignment and Purchase Agreement

On September 13, 2018, we entered into a separate Asset Assignment and Purchase Agreement (the “September 2018 Purchase Agreement”) with
Oncologie pursuant to which we sold to Oncologie our 84 technology, which included the assignment of certain licenses, patents and other assets useful
and/or necessary for the potential commercialization of the r84 technology.

Pursuant to the September 2018 Purchase Agreement, we received $1,000 from Oncologie, which amount was paid to us in October 2018. We are
also eligible to receive up to an additional $21,000 in the event that Oncologie achieves certain development, regulatory and commercialization milestones
with respect to r84. In addition, we are eligible to receive royalties on net sales ranging from the low to mid-single digits in the event that Oncologie
commercializes and sells products utilizing the r84 technology. As of October 31, 2018, no development, regulatory and commercialization milestones as
defined in the September 2018 Purchase Agreement have been achieved by Oncologie. Oncologie is responsible for all future research, development and
commercialization of 184, including all related intellectual property costs and all other future liabilities and obligations arising out of the ownership of the
transferred assets (i.e., we remain obligated for all liabilities associated with the research and development assets associated with the September 2018
Purchase Agreement incurred or arising prior to September 13, 2018).

Discontinued Operations

As aresult of the sale of our PS-targeting program and our r84 technology, the abandonment of our remaining research and development assets, and
the strategic shift in our corporate direction to focus solely on our CDMO business, the operating results from our former research and development segment
and the related assets and liabilities have been presented as discontinued operations in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements for all periods presented (Note 1). The results of operations from discontinued operations presented below include certain allocations that
management believes fairly reflect the utilization of services provided to the former research and development segment. The allocations do not include
amounts related to general corporate administrative expenses or interest expense. Therefore, the results of operations from the former research and
development segment do not necessarily reflect what the results of operations would have been had the former research and development segment operated as
a stand-alone segment.

The following table summarizes the results of discontinued operations for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018 and 2017:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Operating expenses:

Research and development $ — $ 3,650 $ - $ 7,216

Selling, general and administrative - 343 - 782

Restructuring charges - 330 — 330

Total operating expenses $ - 5 4323 § - 8,328

Gain on sale of research and development assets before income

taxes $ 1,000 - $ 1,000 -

Income tax expense (261) - (261) —
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 739 $ (4,323) $ 739 $ (8,328)
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The following table summarizes the assets and liabilities of discontinued operations as of October 31, 2018 and April 30, 2018:

October 31, 2018 April 30, 2018
Assets:
Other receivables $ - $ 5,000
Total assets of discontinued operations $ - $ 5,000
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 5 32
Accrued clinical trial and related fees 117 3,613
Accrued payroll and related costs 174 614
Other liabilities 125 291
Total liabilities of discontinued operations $ 416 $ 4,550

The carrying value of the assets and liabilities deemed a component of discontinued operations were not classified as “held for sale” in the
accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet at October 31, 2018 and the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet at April 30,
2018, as Oncologie did not purchase or assume any of the reported assets or liabilities under the aforementioned February 2018 Purchase Agreement and
September 2018 Purchase Agreement.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On December 5, 2018, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.65625 per share on our Series E Preferred Stock. The
dividend payment is equivalent to an annualized 10.50% per share, based on the $25.00 per share stated liquidation preference, accruing from October 1,

2018 through December 31, 2018. The cash dividend is payable on January 2, 2019 to holders of the Series E Preferred Stock of record on December 17,
2018.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of our operations should be read together with the financial
statements and related notes of Avid Bioservices, Inc. included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and with our audited consolidated
financial statements and the related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that, if they
never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results of operations to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. The statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
Forward-looking statements are often identified by the use of words such as, but not limited to, “anticipate”, “believe”, “can”, “continue”, “could”,
“estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “plan”, “project”, “seek”, “should”, “target”, “will”, “would” and similar expressions or variations intended to
identify forward-looking statements. These statements are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management based on information currently available
to management. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including the risks and uncertainties described under the
section titled “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, those identified in this “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and in other filings we may make
with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time. Moreover, we operate in an evolving environment. New risk factors and uncertainties emerge
from time to time and it is not possible for our management to predict all risk factors and uncertainties, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our
business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-
looking statement. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements and, except as required by law, assume no obligation and
do not intend to update these forward-looking statements.

2

Overview

We are a dedicated contract development and manufacturing organization (“CDMQO”) that provides a comprehensive range of services from process
development to current Good Manufacturing Practices (“cGMP”) commercial manufacturing focused on biopharmaceutical products derived from
mammalian cell culture. With 25 years of experience producing monoclonal antibodies and recombinant proteins in batch, fed-batch and perfusion modes, our
services include cGMP clinical and commercial product manufacturing, purification, bulk packaging, stability testing and regulatory submissions and support.
We also provide a variety of process development services, including cell line development and optimization, cell culture and feed optimization, analytical
methods development and product characterization.

We have experience in performing process development and manufacturing of biologics since 1993 in our Franklin biomanufacturing facility
(“Franklin Facility”), located at our headquarters in Tustin, California. In March 2016, we expanded our manufacturing capacity through the commissioning
of our Myford biomanufacturing facility (“Myford Facility”), which more than doubled our manufacturing capacity. The 42,000 square foot facility, which is
our second biomanufacturing facility, includes multiple single-use bioreactors up to the 2,000-liter manufacturing scale. The Myford Facility was designed to
accommodate a fully disposable biomanufacturing process for products in clinical development to commercial. The Myford Facility is located adjacent to our
Franklin Facility.

In the fall of 2017, we announced our intent to cease our research and development activities and to transition our business to a dedicated CDMO,
which we completed at the beginning of calendar 2018. During our transition, we established and began executing on the following near-term strategic
objectives:

Expand and diversify our customer base by securing additional customers to support our future potential revenue growth; and

Continue to invest in manufacturing facilities and infrastructure to maximize our facility utilization and support our customers’ clinical and
commercial development and manufacturing requirements.
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We are currently in the process of expanding and optimizing our process development capabilities and laboratory space, which includes expanding
our total available process development laboratory space to more than 6,000 square feet, upgrading the infrastructure and equipment within our existing
process development laboratories, and implementing new state-of-the-art technologies and equipment designed to facilitate efficient, high-throughput
development of innovative upstream and downstream manufacturing processes. We are strategically conducting this work in phases to avoid disruption to
current customer programs.

In assessing the performance of our business, we consider a variety of performance and financial measures. The key indicators of the financial
condition and operating performance of our business are contract manufacturing revenue, gross profit, selling, general and administrative expenses and
operating income.

We intend for this discussion to provide the reader with information that will assist in understanding our financial statements, the changes in certain
key items in those financial statements from period to period and the primary factors that accounted for those changes.

Contract Manufacturing Revenue

Contract manufacturing revenue is derived from services provided under our customer contracts and are disaggregated into manufacturing and
process development revenue streams. The manufacturing revenue stream represents revenue from the manufacturing of customer product(s) derived from
mammalian cell culture covering clinical through commercial manufacturing runs. The process development revenue stream represents revenue from non-
manufacturing related services associated with the custom development of a customer’s product.

Gross Profit

Gross profit is equal to contract manufacturing revenue less cost of contract manufacturing. Cost of contract manufacturing reflects the direct cost of
labor, overhead and material costs. Direct labor costs include personnel costs within the manufacturing, process development, quality assurance, quality
control, validation, supply chain and facilities functions. Overhead costs include the rent, common area maintenance, utilities, property taxes, security,
materials and supplies, software, small equipment and deprecation costs of all manufacturing and laboratory locations.

We regularly analyze the components of gross profit as well as gross profit as a percentage of contract manufacturing revenue. Specifically we look
at the gross profit margins of our manufacturing revenue and process development revenues, and the effects of idle capacity, if any, on these revenue streams.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A™) expenses are composed of corporate-level expenses including personnel and support costs of
corporate functions such as executive management, legal, accounting, business development, legal, human resources, information technology, and other
centralized services. SG&A expenses include corporate legal fees, audit and accounting fees, investor relation expenses, non-employee director fees, facility
related expenses, and other expenses relating to our general management, administration, and business development activities. SG&A expenses are generally
not directly proportional to revenues, but we expect such expenses increase over time to support the needs of our growing company.

Results of Operations (in thousands)

On May 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts (Topic 606): Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”), using the
modified retrospective method applied to all contracts not completed as of May 1, 2018. Under the modified retrospective method, results for reporting
periods beginning after May 1, 2018 are presented under ASC 606, while prior period amounts are not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance
with our historic accounting under the accounting standards in effect for the prior period. Refer to Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” for
details regarding the adoption of ASC 606.
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The following table compares the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations from our continuing operations for the three and six
months ended October 31, 2018 and 2017, which are further discussed below.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
October 31, October 31,
2018 2017 $ Change 2018 2017 $ Change
Contract manufacturing revenue $ 10,178 $ 12,782 $ (2,604) $ 22,767  $ 39,859 $ (17,092)
Cost of contract manufacturing 9,844 16,242 (6,398) 21,241 36,690 (15,449)
Gross profit (loss) 334 (3,460) 3,794 1,526 3,169 (1,643)
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and
administrative 2,816 3,596 (780) 6,031 7,449 (1,418)
Restructuring charges - 1,258 (1,258) - 1,258 (1,258)
Total operating expenses 2,816 4,854 (2,038) 6,031 8,707 (2,676)
Operating loss (2,482) (8,314) 5,832 (4,505) (5,538) 1,033
Interest and other income, net 119 13 106 181 37 144
Loss from continuing operations
before income taxes $ (2,363) $ (8,301) $ 5938 $ (4,324) $ (5,501) $ 1,177
Income tax benefit 173 - 173 173 — 173
Loss from continuing operations $ (2,190) $ (8,301) $ 6,111 $ (4,151) $ (5,501) $ 1,350

Three Months Ended October 31, 2018 Compared to the Three Months Ended October 31, 2017
Contract Manufacturing Revenue

Contract manufacturing revenue for the three months ended October 31, 2018 was $10,178 compared to $12,782 for the same period in the prior
year, a decrease of $2,604 or 20%. The decline in revenue can primarily be attributed to fewer manufacturing runs completed in the current period compared
to the prior period as a result of a decrease in the current manufacturing demand from our two largest customers. Revenue for the quarter was also impacted
by our planned sequential shutdown of our Franklin and Myford manufacturing facilities, which halted manufacturing at each facility for several weeks in
order to conduct both routine and non-routine maintenance and upgrades. The quarterly revenue decline was offset by a $1,215 favorable impact from the
adoption of ASC 606. Refer to Note 2 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the accompanying notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements for details regarding the adoption of ASC 606.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the three months ended October 31, 2018 was $334 compared to a loss of $3,460 for the same period in the prior year, an increase of
$3,794, where gross margins were 3% and a negative 27%, respectively. The $3,794 increase in gross profit was primarily due to an improvement from
manufacturing and process development project profit of $1,790 combined with a $2,004 decrease in idle capacity costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A decreased $780, or 22%, during the three months ended October 31, 2018 compared to the same prior year period. The decrease in SG&A

was primarily due to decreases in facility-related expenses of $484 and legal, accounting and other professional fees of $334. As a percentage of revenue,
SG&A expenses remained consistent at 28% for both the current year and prior year periods.
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Restructuring Charges

During the three months ended October 31, 2017, we incurred restructuring charges of $1,588 directly related to a restructuring plan we implemented
in August 2017, pursuant to which we reduced our overall workforce by 57 employees in order to reduce operating costs and improve cost efficiencies while
we pursued the license or sale of our research and development assets and focus our efforts on growing our CDMO business (as described in Note 8 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018). The costs incurred
under this restructuring plan, which was completed in October 2017, consisted of one-time termination benefits, including severance, and other employee
related costs. Of the total restructuring charges incurred, $1,258 was related to our contract manufacturing services segment and $330 was related to our
discontinued research and development segment. The restructuring charges associated with our discontinued research and development segment are included
in income (loss) from discontinued operations in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for
the three and six months ended October 31, 2017. We did not incur any restructuring charges during the three and six months ended October 31, 2018.

Operating Loss

Operating loss was $2,482, or a negative 24% of revenue, for the three months ended October 31, 2018 compared to an operating loss of $8,314, or a
negative 65% of revenue, for the same period in the prior year. Of this $5,832 improvement in year-over-year operating loss, approximately $3,794 was
attributable to gross profit margin improvement, an SG&A decrease of $780 and the absence of restructuring charges in 2018 that resulted in a decrease of
$1,258.

Income Tax Benefit

In September 2018, we recognized a $1,000 gain in discontinued operations, before taxes, for the sale of our r84 technology (as described in Note 11
to the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements). In accordance with the “Intraperiod Tax Allocation” rules under ASC 740:
Income Taxes, which requires the allocation of an entity’s total annual income tax provision among continuing operations and, in our case, discontinued
operations, for the three months ended October 31, 2018, we recorded a tax benefit in continuing operations of $173 with an offsetting tax expense of $261
recorded in discontinued operations. The remaining deferred tax benefit of $88 will be allocated proportionally to continuing operations throughout the
remainder of the fiscal year.

Six Months Ended October 31, 2018 Compared to the Six Months Ended October 31, 2017
Contract Manufacturing Revenue

Contract manufacturing revenue for the six months ended October 31, 2018 was $22,767 compared to $39,859 for the same period in the prior year,
a decrease of $17,092 or 43%. Included in the $39,859 prior year revenue was $9,924 of revenue associated with several manufacturing runs that were
completed in fiscal year 2017, but recognized in the first quarter of fiscal year 2018 due to a client-requested delay in shipment. The comparable period
decline in revenue can primarily be attributed to fewer manufacturing runs completed in the current period compared to the prior period as a result of a
decrease in the current manufacturing demand from our two largest customers. Revenue for the current period was also impacted by our planned sequential
shutdown of our Franklin and Myford manufacturing facilities, which halted manufacturing at each facility for several weeks in order to conduct both routine
and non-routine maintenance and upgrades. Finally, the current year decline in revenue as compared to the prior year period was offset by an $11,831
favorable impact from the adoption of ASC 606. Refer to Note 2 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the accompanying notes to the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements for details regarding the adoption of ASC 606.

Gross Profit
Gross profit for the six months ended October 31, 2018 was $1,526 compared to $3,169 for the same period in the prior year, a decrease of $1,643,

where gross margins were 7% and 8%, respectively. The $1,643 decrease in gross profit was comprised of a $2,818 decrease in manufacturing and process
development project profit, offset by a favorable reduction to idle capacity costs of $1,175.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expense decreased $1,418, or 19%, during the six months ended October 31, 2018 compared to the same prior year period. The decrease in
SG&A was attributed to the current year period decreases in payroll and related costs of $767, facility-related expenses of $1,232 and legal, accounting and
other professional fees of $926. These current year period decrease in SG&A was offset by the July 2017 settlement of a derivative and class action lawsuit,
pursuant to which our former non-employee directors agreed to pay or cause to be paid $1,500 to us (as described in Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018), which non-recurring amount was applied against
non-employee director fees during the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2017. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A expenses for the six months ended October 31,
2018 and 2017 were 26% and 19%, respectively.

Restructuring Charges

During the six months ended October 31, 2017, we incurred restructuring charges of $1,588 related to a restructuring plan we implemented in August
2017, as further described above. We did not incur any restructuring charges during the six months ended October 31, 2018.

Operating Loss

Operating loss was $4,505, or a negative 20% of revenue, for the six months ended October 31, 2018 compared to an operating loss of $5,538, or a
negative 14% of revenue, for the same period in the prior year. Of this $1,033 improvement in year-over-year operating loss, approximately $1,643 was
attributable to a gross profit decrease offset by a favorable SG&A expense reduction of $1,418 and the absence of restructuring charges in 2018 that resulted
in a decrease of $1,258.

Income Tax Benefit

In September 2018, we recognized a $1,000 gain in discontinued operations, before taxes, for the sale of our r84 technology (as described in Note 11
to the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements). In accordance with the “Intraperiod Tax Allocation” rules under ASC 740:
Income Taxes, which requires the allocation of an entity’s total annual income tax provision among continuing operations and, in our case, discontinued
operations, for the six months ended October 31, 2018, we recorded a tax benefit in continuing operations of $173 with an offsetting tax expense of $261
recorded in discontinued operations. The remaining deferred tax benefit of $88 will be allocated proportionally to continuing operations throughout the
remainder of the fiscal year.

Discontinued Operations

As a result of the sale of our PS-targeting and r84 technologies in February 2018 and September 2018, respectively (as described in Note 11 to the
accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements), the abandonment of our remaining research and development assets, and the strategic
shift in our corporate direction to focus solely on our CDMO business, the operating results of our former research and development segment have been
excluded from continuing operations and reported as income (loss) from discontinued operations in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements for all periods presented. The gain of $1,000 that was recorded in connection with the sale of our r84 technology in September 2018 is
included in income from discontinued operations, net of tax, in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements and operations and
comprehensive loss for the three and six months ended October 31, 2018.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial position and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). The preparation of our consolidated
financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related
disclosures. We review our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and on assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for our judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may vary from what we anticipate and different assumptions or estimates about the future could
change our reported results. During the three and six months ended October 31, 2018, there were no significant changes in our critical accounting policies as
previously disclosed by us in Part II, Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, except for our critical accounting
policies and estimates on revenue recognition as a result of our adoption of ASC 606, as described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”
in the accompanying notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have expended substantial funds on our legacy research and development of pharmaceutical product candidates (discontinued operations) and
our contract manufacturing business (continuing operations). As a result, we have historically experienced losses and negative cash flows from operations
since our inception.

During fiscal year 2018, we refocused our corporate strategy, whereby we transitioned our business to operate solely as a dedicated CDMO and
discontinued our research and development segment (as described in Note 1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements). Now that we have
commenced our first full fiscal year as a dedicated CDMO, our ability to continue as a going concern depends on the amount of cash on hand and our ability
to generate positive cash flows from operations, primarily through securing new customers and diversifying our customer base, and thereby reducing our
reliance on a small customer base, increasing revenues, improving gross margins and managing our operating expenses.

At October 31, 2018 we had $32,694 in cash and cash equivalents. In addition, as of October 31, 2018, our current backlog was approximately $36
million (as further discussed in the “Backlog” section below). While we anticipate the majority of our backlog will be recognized as revenue during the
remainder of fiscal year 2019, our backlog is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including the risk that a customer may experience delays in its
program(s) or otherwise, which could result in the postponement of anticipated manufacturing services; the risk that a customer timely cancels its
commitments prior to our initiation of manufacturing services, in which case we may be required to refund some or all of the amounts paid to us in advance
under those canceled commitments; and the risk that we may not successfully execute on all customer projects, any of which could have a negative impact on
our liquidity, reported backlog and future revenue. As a result of these risks and uncertainties, our cash on hand as of October 31, 2018, together with our
projected cash receipts under our current backlog, may not be sufficient to fund our operations beyond one year after the date our financial statements are
issued.

In the event we are unable to secure sufficient business to support our operations, we may need to raise additional capital in the future. Additional
funding may include the financing or leasing of capital equipment or raising capital in the equity markets. Our ability to raise additional capital in the equity
markets to fund our obligations in future periods depends on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the market demand for our common stock. The
market demand or liquidity of our common stock is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to, negative economic conditions,
adverse market conditions, and adverse financial results. If we are unable to either raise sufficient capital in the equity markets or generate additional revenue,
we may need to further restructure, or cease, our operations. In addition, even if we are able to raise additional capital, it may not be at a price or on terms that
are favorable to us.

As a result, we have concluded that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that our
accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are issued.

Significant components of the changes in cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities for the six months ended October 31, 2018
compared to the same prior year period are as follows (in thousands):

Cash Used In Operating Activities. Net cash used in operating activities represents our net loss, as reported, adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash used in operating activities and net changes in the timing of cash flows as reflected by the changes in operating assets and liabilities, as described in the

below table:

Six Months Ended October 31,

2018 2017

Net loss, as reported $ (3,412) $ (13,829)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,325 1.300

Stock-based compensation 622 794

Gain on sale of research and development ass (1,000) =
Net cash used in operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities $ (2,465) $ (11,735)
Net change in operating assets and liabilities from:

Continuing operations $ (7,562) % (6,851)

Discontinued operations (4,134) (882)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (14,161)  $ (19,468)
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Net cash used in operating activities decreased $5,307 to $14,161 for the six months ended October 31, 2018 compared to net cash used in operating
activities of $19,468 for the six months ended October 31, 2017. This decrease in net cash used in operating activities was due to a decrease of $9,270 in net
loss reported for the current six-month period after adjustments for non-cash expenses and gain on sale of research and development assets, as described in
the above table, offset by a net change in operating assets and liabilities of $711 and $3,252 from continuing and discontinued operations, respectively. The
net change in operating assets and liabilities from continuing operations was primarily due to decreases in inventories and contract liabilities (customer
deposits and deferred revenue) associated with the application of ASC 606, which we adopted on May 1, 2018. The net change in operating assets and
liabilities from discontinued operations was primarily due to decreases in accrued payroll and related costs and accrued clinical trial and related fees.

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities. Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities for the six months ended October 31, 2018
and 2017 was $5,554 and ($1,809), respectively.

Net cash provided by investing activities for the six months ended October 31, 2018 consisted of proceeds of $6,000 related to the sale of certain
research and development assets associated with our discontinued research and development segment (as described in Note 11 to the accompanying
condensed consolidated financial statements), offset by the purchase of property and equipment of $446.

Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended October 31, 2017 was directly related to the purchase of property and equipment.

Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Financing Activities. Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities for the six months ended October 31, 2018
and 2017 was ($964) and $2,205, respectively.

Net cash used in financing activities during the six months ended October 31, 2018 consisted of $2,162 in dividends paid on our issued and
outstanding Series E Preferred Stock and $74 in principal payments on a capital lease obligation, which amounts were offset by $1,158 in net proceeds from
stock option exercises and $114 in net proceeds from the purchase of shares of our common stock under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Net cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended October 31, 2017 consisted of $4,193 in net proceeds from the sale of shares
of our common stock under an At Market Issuance Sales Agreement (as of July 31, 2017 we had raised the full amount of gross proceeds available to us
under this At Market Issuance Sales Agreement), $216 in net proceeds from the purchase of shares of our common stock under our Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, and $112 in net proceeds from stock option exercises, which amounts were offset by dividends paid on our issued and outstanding Series E Preferred
Stock of $2,162 and principal payments on a capital lease obligation of $154.

Backlog

Our backlog represents, as of a point in time, future contract manufacturing revenue from work not yet completed under signed contracts. As of
October 31, 2018, our backlog was approximately $36 million (ASC 606) as compared to approximately $33 million (ASC 605) as of October 31, 2017.
While we anticipate the majority of our backlog will be recognized as revenue during the remainder of fiscal year 2019, our backlog is subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties, including the risk that a customer may experience delays in its program(s) or otherwise, which could result in the postponement of
anticipated manufacturing services; the risk that a customer timely cancels its commitments prior to our initiation of manufacturing services, in which case we
may be required to refund some or all of the amounts paid to us in advance under those canceled commitments; and the risk that we may not successfully
execute on all customer projects, any of which could have a negative impact on our liquidity, reported backlog and future revenue.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Our cash and cash equivalents are primarily invested in money market funds with one major commercial bank with the primary objective to preserve
our principal balance. Our deposits held with this bank exceed the amount of government insurance limits provided on our deposits and, therefore, we are
exposed to credit risk in the event of default by the major commercial bank holding our cash balances. However, these deposits may be redeemed upon
demand and, therefore, bear minimal risk. In addition, while changes in U.S. interest rates would affect the interest earned on our cash balances at October 31,
2018, such changes would not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations based on historical movements in interest rates.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) under the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of October 31, 2018, the end of the period
covered by this Quarterly Report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of October 31, 2018.

There were no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting, during the quarter ended October 31, 2018, that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In the ordinary course of business, we are at times subject to various legal proceedings and disputes. We make provisions for liabilities when it is
both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Such provisions, if any, are reviewed at least quarterly
and adjusted to reflect the impact of any settlement negotiations, judicial and administrative rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other information and events
pertaining to a particular case. We currently are not a party to any legal proceedings, the adverse outcome of which, in management’s opinion, individually or
in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or financial position

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

There have been no material changes to the risk factors included in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2018.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.
None.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

(a) Exhibits:

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Avid Bioservices, Inc., a Delaware corporation, as amended through October 4, 2018.*

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)_of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. *

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)_of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.*

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)/15d-14(b)_of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. *

101.INS XBRL Taxonomy Extension Instance Document. *

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. *

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. *

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. *

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. *

101.PRE XBRL Presentation Extension Linkbase Document. *

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.

Date: December 10, 2018 By: /s/ Roger J. Lias, Ph.D.
Roger J. Lias, Ph.D.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: December 10, 2018 By: /s/ Daniel R. Hart
Daniel R. Hart
Chief Financial Officer
(signed both as an officer duly authorized to sign on behalf of the
Registrant and principal financial officer and chief accounting officer)
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Exhibit 3.1

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
AVID BIOSERVICES, INC,,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

AVID BIOSERVICES, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General Corporation Law
(hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the
stockholders of the Corporation at an annual meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

“RESOLVED, the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as
follows:

“The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 155,000,000, of which (i)
150,000,000 shares shall be designated “Common Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall
be designated “Preferred Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share.”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as
required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Roger J. Lias, Ph.D., its President and Chief
Executive Officer, this 4th day of October, 2018.

AVID BIOSERVICES, INC.,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Roger J. Lias, Ph.D.
Roger J. Lias, Ph.D., President and CEO




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

Pursuant to Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the undersigned, a corporation organized and existing under and
by virtue of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”), does hereby certify:

1. The name of the corporation is Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

2. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the “Certificate”) is hereby amended to reflect a change in the name of the
Corporation by deleting Article I of the Certificate in its entirety and restating the same as follows:

“NAME: The name of the Corporation is Avid Bioservices, Inc.”
3. This Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242(b)(1) of the DGCL, which

provide that no meeting or vote of the stockholders shall be required to adopt an amendment to the certificate of incorporation that only effects
changes of a corporation’s name.

4. This Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate shall be effective at 12:02 a.m. Eastern Time on January 5, 2018.
IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed this 3rd day of January, 2018.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Roger J. Lias, Ph.D.
Roger J. Lias, Ph.D., President & CEO




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at an annual meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

“RESOLVED, that ARTICLE 4 of the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by adding the following paragraph at the end thereof:

“Effective as of 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on July 7, 2017 (the “Effective Time”), every seven (7) outstanding shares of Common Stock,
par value $0.001, of the Corporation issued and outstanding or held in the treasury of the Corporation will automatically be combined,
reclassified and changed into one (1) fully paid and non-assessable share of Common Stock, par value $0.001, without any further action
by the holders of such shares; provided, however, that if such reclassification results in any stockholder being entitled to fractional
shares that when aggregated equal less than a whole share of Common Stock such fractional shares shall be reclassified and converted
from and after the Effective Time into one whole share of Common Stock in lieu of such fractional shares. No other exchange,
reclassification or cancellation of issued shares shall be effected by this amendment.”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as
required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Steven W. King, its President & CEO, this
5th day of July, 2017.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

By:/s/ Steven W. King
Steven W. King, President & CEO




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at a special meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

“RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

“The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 505,000,000, of which (i)
500,000,000 shares shall be designated “Common Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall
be designated “Preferred Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share.”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as
required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Steven W. King, its President & CEO, and
attested to by Mark R. Ziebell, its Secretary, this 15th day of October, 2015.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Steven W. King
Steven W. King, President & CEO

ATTEST:

/s/ Mark R. Ziebell
Mark R. Ziebell, Secretary




PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS OF RIGHTS AND PREFERENCES
10.50% SERIES E CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
(Pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware)
The undersigned President and Chief Executive Officer of PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”),
hereby certifies that pursuant to authority granted to and vested in the Board of Directors of the corporation by the provisions of the Certificate of

Incorporation and in accordance with the provisions of Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, its Board of Directors has duly
adopted the following resolutions creating the 10.50% Series E Convertible Preferred Stock:

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation by the Corporation’s Certificate of Incorporation, a series
of preferred stock of the Corporation be, and it hereby is, created out of the 5,000,000 shares of authorized but unissued shares of the preferred stock, par
value $0.001 per share, of the Corporation, such series to be designated 10.50% Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, to consist of 2,000,000 shares, par value
$0.001 per share, of which the rights, preferences and privileges, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, shall be (in addition to those set
forth in the Corporation’s Certificate of Incorporation) as follows:

Section 1. Number of Shares and Designation. This series of Preferred Stock shall be designated as 10.50% Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, par
value $0.001 per share (the “Series E Preferred Shares”), and the number of shares that shall constitute such series shall be 2,000,000.

Section 2. Definitions. For purposes of the Series E Preferred Shares and as used in this Certificate, the following terms shall have the meanings
indicated:

“Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Corporation or any committee of members of the Board of Directors authorized by
such Board of Directors to perform any of its responsibilities with respect to the Series E Preferred Shares.

“Business Day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which state or federally chartered banking institutions in New York,
New York are not required to be open.

“Call Date” shall mean the date fixed for redemption of the Series E Preferred Shares and specified in the notice to holders required under paragraph
(e) of Section 5 as the Call Date.

“Certificate” shall mean this Certificate of Designations of Rights and Preferences of the Series E Preferred Shares.

A “Change of Control” shall be deemed to have occurred on the date (i) that a “person,” “group” or “entity” (within the meaning of Sections 13(d)
and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becomes the ultimate “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act, except that a person
or group shall be deemed to have beneficial ownership of all shares of Voting Stock that such person or group has the right to acquire regardless of when such
right is first exercisable), directly or indirectly, of Voting Stock representing more than 50% of the total voting power of the total Voting Stock of the
Corporation; (ii) that the Corporation sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of all or substantially all of its assets; or (iii) of the consummation of a merger or
share exchange of the Corporation with another entity where the Corporation’s stockholders immediately prior to the merger or share exchange would not
beneficially own, immediately after the merger or share exchange, securities representing 50% or more of the outstanding Voting Stock of the entity issuing
cash or securities in the merger or share exchange (without consideration of the rights of any class of stock to elect directors by a separate group vote), or
where members of the Board of Directors immediately prior to the merger or share exchange would not, immediately after the merger or share exchange,
constitute a majority of the board of directors of the entity issuing cash or securities in the merger or share exchange.




“Common Shares” shall mean the shares of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Corporation.

“Common Stock Price” is (i) if the consideration to be received in the Change of Control by the holders of Common Shares is solely cash, the
amount of cash consideration per Common Share or (ii) if the consideration to be received in the Change of Control by holders of Common Shares is other
than solely cash (x) the average of the closing sale prices per Common Share (or, if no closing sale price is reported, the average of the closing bid and ask
prices per share or, if more than one in either case, the average of the average closing bid and the average closing ask prices per share) for the ten consecutive
trading days immediately preceding, but not including, the date on which such Change of Control occurred as reported on a National Market Listing for our
Common Shares, or (y) the average of the last quoted bid prices for Common Shares in the over-the-counter market as reported by Pink OTC Markets Inc. or
similar organization for the ten consecutive trading days immediately preceding, but not including, the date on which such Change of Control occurred, if the
Common Shares are not then listed for trading on a National Market Listing.

“Dividend Default” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (b) of Section 3.

“Dividend Payment Date” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (a) of Section 3.

“Dividend Rate” shall mean the dividend rate accruing on the Series E Preferred Shares, as applicable from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof.

“Dividend Record Date” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (a) of Section 3.

“EBITDA” means the sum of net income, plus interest expense, plus tax expense, plus depreciation expense, plus amortization expense, each as
determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

“Indebtedness” of any Person shall mean, without duplication (i) all indebtedness for borrowed money, (ii) all obligations issued, undertaken or
assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services, other than “capital leases” in accordance with GAAP and trade payables entered into in the
ordinary course of business, (iii) all reimbursement or payment obligations with respect to letters of credit, surety bonds and other similar instruments, (iv) all
obligations evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or similar instruments, including obligations so evidenced incurred in connection with the acquisition of
property, assets or businesses, (v) all indebtedness created or arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, or incurred as financing, in
either case with respect to any property or assets acquired with the proceeds of such indebtedness (even though the rights and remedies of the seller or bank
under such agreement in the event of default are limited to repossession or sale of such property), and (vi) all monetary obligations under any leasing or
similar arrangement, not classified as a capital lease in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that in no event shall capital leases or loans incurred to
purchase capital equipment be considered Indebtedness.




“Junior Shares” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (c) of Section 7.

“Listing Default” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (c) of Section 3.

“Liquidation Amount” shall mean $25.00 per Series E Preferred Share (as adjusted for any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization,
reclassification or any similar transaction).

“Market Value” of a given security shall mean the average of the daily Trading Price per share of such security for the ten consecutive Trading Days
immediately prior to the date in question.

“National Market Listing” shall mean the listing or quotation, as applicable, of securities on the New York Stock Exchange, the NYSE MKT LLC,
The NASDAQ Global Market, The NASDAQ Global Select Market or The NASDAQ Capital Market (each, a “NASDAQ Stock Market®), or the listing or
quotation, as applicable, of securities on an exchange or quotation system that is a successor to the New York Stock Exchange, the NYSE MKT LLC or a
NASDAQ Stock Market.

“Quarterly Dividend Period” shall mean quarterly dividend periods commencing on January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1 of each year and
ending on and including the day preceding the next succeeding Quarterly Dividend Period; provided, however, that any Quarterly Dividend Period during
which any Series E Preferred Shares shall be redeemed pursuant to Section 5 shall end on and include the Call Date only with respect to the Series E
Preferred Shares being redeemed.

A “Quarterly Dividend Default” shall occur if the Corporation fails to pay cash dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares in full for any Quarterly
Dividend Period, provided that only four Quarterly Dividend Defaults may occur during any calendar year.

“Parity Shares” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (b) of Section 7.
“Penalty Rate” shall mean 12.50% per annum.

“Person” shall mean any individual, firm, partnership, limited liability company, corporation or other entity, and shall include any successor (by
merger or otherwise) of such entity.

“SEC” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.
“Senior Shares” shall have the meaning set forth in paragraph (a) of Section 7.
“Series E Change of Control Conversion Date” is the date the Series E Preferred Shares are to be converted, which will be a Business Day selected

by the Corporation that is no fewer than 20 days nor more than 35 days after the date on which it provides the notice of the related Change of Control
described in Section 6(b) to the holders of Series E Preferred Shares.




“Series E Conversion Price” shall mean $3.00 per share.
“Series E Preferred Shares” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.

“set apart for payment” shall be deemed to include, without any further action, the following: the recording by the Corporation in its accounting
ledgers of any accounting or bookkeeping entry that indicates, pursuant to an authorization by the Board of Directors and a declaration of dividends or other
distribution by the Corporation, the initial and continued allocation of funds to be so paid on any series or class of shares of stock of the Corporation;
provided, however, that if any funds for any class or series of Junior Shares or any class or series of Parity Shares are placed in a separate account of the
Corporation or delivered to a disbursing, paying or other similar agent, then “set apart for payment” with respect to the Series E Preferred Shares shall mean
irrevocably placing such funds in a separate account or irrevocably delivering such funds to a disbursing, paying or other similar agent.

“Stated Rate” shall mean 10.50% per annum.

“Trading Day” shall mean, if a security is listed or admitted to trading on a NASDAQ Stock Market, the New York Stock Exchange, the NYSE
MKT LLC or another national securities exchange or national securities market, a full day on which the NASDAQ Stock Market or such other national
securities exchange or national securities market on which the security is traded is open for business and on which trades may be made thereon.

“Trading Price” of a security on any Trading Day (excluding any after-hours trading as of such date) shall mean:

(a) the last sale price, regular way, or, in case no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and ask prices, regular way, in
either case as reported by the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed or admitted to trading or quoted on the
NASDAAQ Capital Market, or if such security is not listed or admitted to trading or quoted on the NASDAQ Capital Market, as reported in the principal
consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed on the principal national securities exchange or national securities market on or in
which such security is listed or admitted to trading;

(b) if such security is not listed on, admitted to trading or quoted on the NASDAQ Capital Market or a national securities exchange or national
securities market on that date, the last price quoted by Interactive Data Corporation for that security on the date, or if Interactive Data Corporation is not
quoting such price, a similar quotation service selected by the Corporation;

(c) if such security is not so quoted, the average mid-point of the last bid and ask prices for such security on that date from at least two dealers
recognized as market-makers for such security selected by the Corporation for this purpose; or

(d) if such security is not so quoted, the average of the last bid and ask prices for such security on that date from a dealer engaged in the trading of
such securities selected by the Corporation for such purpose.

“Transfer Agent” means Broadridge Corporate Issuer Solutions Inc., or such other agent or agents of the Corporation as may be designated by the
Board of Directors or its duly authorized designee as the transfer agent, registrar and dividend disbursing agent for the Series E Preferred Shares.




“TTM EBITDA?” shall mean, as of any date, the Corporation’s EBITDA for the immediately preceding twelve calendar months, as calculated by the
Corporation based on its audited and interim financial statements.

“Voting Stock” shall mean stock of any class or kind having the power to vote generally for the election of directors.

Section 3. Dividends.

(a) Holders of issued and outstanding Series E Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive, when and as declared by the Board of Directors out of
funds of the Corporation legally available for the payment of distributions, cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate per annum equal to the Dividend
Rate of the Liquidation Amount. Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Section 3, the Dividend Rate shall be equal to the Stated
Rate. Such dividends shall accrue and accumulate on each issued and outstanding share of the Series E Preferred Shares on a daily basis from (and including)
the original date of issuance of such share and shall be payable in arrears on the first calendar day of each Quarterly Dividend Period except for Series E
Preferred Shares issued on the day other than the first day of a Quarterly Dividend Period, for which an initial partial dividend payment for dividends accrued
shall be payable at the end of the first full Quarterly Dividend Period (each such day being hereinafter called a “Dividend Payment Date”); provided that
(i) Series E Preferred Shares issued during any Quarterly Dividend Period after the Dividend Record Date for such Quarterly Dividend Period shall only
begin to accrue dividends on the first day of the next Quarterly Dividend Period; and provided further that (ii) if any Dividend Payment Date is not a Business
Day, then the dividend that would otherwise have been payable on such Dividend Payment Date may be paid on the next succeeding Business Day with the
same force and effect as if paid on such Dividend Payment Date, and no interest or additional dividends or other sums shall accrue on the amount so payable
from such Dividend Payment Date to such next succeeding Business Day. Any dividend payable on the Series E Preferred Shares for any partial Quarterly
Dividend Period shall be prorated and computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Dividends shall be payable to holders of
record as they appear in the stock records of the Corporation at the close of business on the applicable record date, which shall be (i) with respect to the partial
Quarterly Dividend Period for dividends accrued as described above, on the last day of the applicable Quarterly Dividend Period and (ii) with respect to all
other Quarterly Dividend Periods, the tenth day preceding the applicable Dividend Payment Date, or such other date designated by the Board of Directors or
an officer of the Corporation duly authorized by the Board of Directors for the payment of dividends that is not more than 30 nor less than ten days prior to
such Dividend Payment Date (each such date, a “Dividend Record Date”).

(b) If at any time four Quarterly Dividend Defaults occur, whether consecutive or non-consecutive (a “Dividend Default”), then (i) the Dividend Rate
shall increase to the Penalty Rate, commencing on the first day after the Dividend Payment Date on which a Dividend Default occurs and for each subsequent
Dividend Payment Date thereafter until such time as the Corporation has paid all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares
in full and has paid accrued dividends for all Quarterly Dividend Periods during the two most recently completed Quarterly Dividend Periods in full in cash,
at which time the Dividend Rate shall revert to the Stated Rate; and




(ii) [Reserved];

Following any Dividend Default that has been cured by the Corporation as provided above in subparagraph (i) of this paragraph (b), if the Corporation
subsequently fails to pay cash dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares in full for any Quarterly Dividend Period, such subsequent failure shall constitute a
separate Dividend Default, and the foregoing provisions of subparagraphs (i) and (ii) of this paragraph (b) shall immediately apply until such subsequent
Dividend Default is cured as so provided.

(c) Once the Series E Preferred Shares become initially eligible for National Market Listing, if the Corporation fails to maintain a National Market
Listing for the Series E Preferred Shares for 180 consecutive days or longer (a “Listing Default”), then:

(i) the Dividend Rate shall increase to the Penalty Rate, commencing on the day after the Listing Default and continuing until such time as
the Corporation has cured the Listing Default by again subjecting the Series E Preferred Shares to a National Market Listing, at which time the Dividend Rate
shall revert to the Stated Rate; and

(ii) [Reserved].

Following any Listing Default that has been cured by the Corporation as provided above in subparagraph (i) of this paragraph (c), if the Series E
Preferred Shares subsequently cease to be subject to a National Market Listing, such event shall constitute a separate Listing Default, and the foregoing
provisions of subparagraphs (i) and (ii) of this paragraph (c) shall immediately apply until such time as the Series E Preferred Shares are again subject to a
National Market Listing.

(d) No dividend on the Series E Preferred Shares will be declared by the Corporation or paid or set apart for payment by the Corporation at such time
as the terms and provisions of Senior Shares or any agreement of the Corporation, including any agreement relating to its indebtedness, prohibit such
declaration, payment or setting apart for payment or provide that such declaration, payment or setting apart for payment would constitute a breach thereof or a
default thereunder, or if such declaration, payment or setting aside of funds is restricted or prohibited under the DGCL or other applicable law; provided,
however, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares shall continue to accrue and accumulate
regardless of whether: (i) any or all of the foregoing restrictions exist; (ii) the Corporation has earnings or profits; (iii) there are funds legally available for the
payment of such dividends; or (iv) such dividends are authorized by the Board of Directors. Accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares
will accumulate as of the Dividend Payment Date on which they first become payable or on the date of redemption of the Series E Preferred Shares, as the
case may be.

(e) Except as provided in the next sentence, if any Series E Preferred Shares are outstanding, no dividends will be declared or paid or set apart for
payment on any Parity Shares or Junior Shares, unless all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends are contemporaneously declared and paid in cash or
declared and a sum of cash sufficient for the payment thereof set apart for such payment on the Series E Preferred Shares for all past Quarterly Dividend
Periods with respect to which full dividends were not paid on the Series E Preferred Shares in cash. When dividends are not paid in full (or a sum sufficient
for such full payment is not so set apart for payment) upon the Series E Preferred Shares and upon all Parity Shares, all dividends declared, paid or set apart
for payment upon the Series E Preferred Shares and all such Parity Shares shall be declared and paid pro rata or declared and set apart for payment pro rata so
that the amount of dividends declared per share of Series E Preferred Shares and per share of such Parity Shares shall in all cases bear to each other the same
ratio that accumulated dividends per share of Series E Preferred Shares and such other Parity Shares (which shall not include any accumulation in respect of
unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods if such other Parity Shares do not bear cumulative dividends) bear to each other. No interest, or sum of money in
lieu of interest, shall be payable in respect of any dividend payment or payments on Series E Preferred Shares which may be in arrears, whether at the Stated
Rate or at the Penalty Rate.
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(f) Except as provided in paragraph (e) of this Section 3, unless all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares are
contemporaneously declared and paid in cash or declared and a sum of cash sufficient for the payment thereof is set apart for payment for all past Quarterly
Dividend Periods with respect to which full dividends were not paid on the Series E Preferred Shares in cash, no dividends may be declared or paid or set
apart for payment upon the Common Shares or any Junior Shares or Parity Shares, nor shall any Common Shares or any Junior Shares or Parity Shares be
redeemed, purchased or otherwise acquired directly or indirectly for any consideration (or any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the
redemption of any such stock) by the Corporation (except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Shares or by redemption, purchase or acquisition of stock
under any employee benefit plan of the Corporation).

(h) Holders of Series E Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to any dividend, whether payable in cash, property or shares, in excess of all
accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series E Preferred Shares as described in this Section 3. Any dividend payment made on the Series E
Preferred Shares shall first be credited against the earliest accumulated accrued and unpaid dividend due with respect to such shares which remains payable at
the time of such payment.

Section 4. Liquidation Preference.

(a) Subject to the rights of the holders of Senior Shares and Parity Shares, in the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, before any payment or distribution of the assets of the Corporation (whether capital or surplus) shall be made
to or set apart for the holders of Junior Shares, as to the distribution of assets on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, each holder of
the Series E Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive an amount of cash equal to the Liquidation Amount plus an amount in cash equal to all accumulated
accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (whether or not earned or declared) to the date of final distribution to such holders. If, upon any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the Corporation, the assets of the Corporation, or proceeds thereof, distributable among the holders of the Series E Preferred Shares shall be
insufficient to pay in full the preferential amount aforesaid and liquidating payments on any other shares of any class or series of Parity Shares as to the
distribution of assets on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, then such assets, or the proceeds thereof, shall be distributed among the
holders of Series E Preferred Shares and any such other Parity Shares ratably in accordance with the respective amounts that would be payable on such Series
E Preferred Shares and any such other Parity Shares if all amounts payable thereon were paid in full. For the purposes of this Section 4, none of (i) a
consolidation or merger of the Corporation with one or more corporations or other entities, (ii) a sale, lease or transfer of all or substantially all of the
Corporation’s assets or (iii) a statutory share exchange shall be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up, voluntary or involuntary, of the
Corporation.
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(b) Subject to the rights of the holders of Senior Shares and Parity Shares upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, upon any liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, after payment shall have been made in full to the holders of the Series E Preferred Shares, as provided in this
Section 4, any other series or class or classes of Junior Shares shall, subject to the respective terms and provisions (if any) applying thereto, be entitled to
receive any and all assets remaining to be paid or distributed, and the holders of the Series E Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to share therein.

Section 5. Redemption.

(a) The Corporation shall not redeem the Series E Preferred Shares prior to February 11, 2017, except that the Corporation may redeem the Series E
Preferred Shares in accordance with paragraph (b) of Section 5. On and after February 11, 2017, the Corporation, at its option, upon not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ written notice as contemplated by paragraph (e) of Section 5, may redeem the Series E Preferred Shares, in whole or in part, at any time or from
time to time, for cash at a redemption price equal to the Liquidation Amount, plus all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (whether or not
earned or declared) to, but excluding, the Call Date (subject to paragraph (h) of Section 5), without interest. If fewer than all of the outstanding Series E
Preferred Shares are to be redeemed, the number of shares to be redeemed will be determined by the Corporation and such shares may be redeemed pro rata
from the holders of record of such shares in proportion to the number of such shares held by such holders (with adjustments to avoid redemption of fractional
shares) or by lot in an equitable manner determined by the Corporation.

(b) If a Change of Control occurs, then the Corporation or the acquiring entity in such Change of Control may, at its option, redeem the Series E
Preferred Shares, in whole but not in part, within 120 days after the date on which the Change of Control occurs, for cash at a redemption price equal to the
Liquidation Amount, plus all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (whether or not earned or declared) to, but excluding, the Call Date (subject
to paragraph (h) of Section 5), without interest.

(c) With respect to a redemption pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 5, unless all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends on all Series E
Preferred Shares and any other class or series of Parity Shares shall have been or contemporaneously are declared and paid in cash (or in the form of
consideration for payment of dividends on any such Parity Shares) or declared and set apart for payment in cash for all past Quarterly Dividend Periods and
the then current Quarterly Dividend Period, no Series E Preferred Shares or such Parity Shares shall be redeemed unless all of the outstanding Series E
Preferred Shares and such Parity Shares are simultaneously redeemed; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not prevent the purchase or acquisition of
the Series E Preferred Shares or such Parity Shares pursuant to a purchase or exchange offer made on the same terms to holders of all of the outstanding
Series E Preferred Shares and such Parity Shares. Also with respect to a redemption pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 5, unless all accumulated accrued
and unpaid dividends on all Series E Preferred Shares and any other class or series of Parity Shares shall have been or contemporaneously are declared and
paid in cash (or in the form of consideration for payment of dividends on any such Parity Shares) or declared and set apart for payment in cash for all past
Quarterly Dividend Periods and the then current Quarterly Dividend Period, the Corporation shall not purchase or otherwise acquire directly or indirectly any
Series E Preferred Shares or such Parity Shares (except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Shares and Parity Shares).
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(d) From and after the Call Date (unless the Corporation (or, if applicable, the acquiring entity) defaults in payment of the redemption price as
contemplated by Section 5), all dividends will cease to accumulate on the Series E Preferred Shares called for redemption pursuant to Section 5, such shares
shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding, and all of the rights of the holders of such shares will terminate with respect to such shares, except the right to
receive the redemption price and all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends up to, but excluding, the Call Date, without interest (upon surrender and
endorsement of their certificates, if so required in accordance with paragraph (g) of Section 5).

(e) Notice of the redemption of any Series E Preferred Shares pursuant to Section 5 shall be mailed by first class mail to each holder of record of
Series E Preferred Shares to be redeemed at the address of each such holder as shown on the Corporation’s share transfer books at least 30 but not more than
60 days prior to the applicable Call Date. Neither the failure to mail any notice required by this paragraph (e), nor any defect therein or in the mailing thereof,
to any particular holder, shall affect the sufficiency of the notice or the validity of the proceedings for redemption with respect to the other holders. Any notice
which was mailed in the manner herein provided shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given on the date mailed whether or not the holder
receives the notice. Each such mailed notice shall state, as appropriate: (1) the Call Date; (2) for a redemption pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 5, the
number of Series E Preferred Shares to be redeemed; (3) the redemption price equal to the Liquidation Amount plus accumulated accrued and unpaid
dividends through, but excluding, the Call Date; (4) the place or places where any certificates for such shares, other than certificates issued as contemplated
by Section 13, are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; (5) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed shall cease to accrue on such Call
Date; (6) if applicable, that such redemption is being made in connection with a Change of Control and, in that case, a brief description of the transaction or
transactions constituting such Change of Control; (7) if such redemption is being made in connection with a Change of Control, that the holders of the Series
E Preferred Shares being so called for redemption will not be able to tender such Series E Preferred Shares for conversion in accordance with Section 6(b)
hereof and that each Series E Preferred Share tendered for conversion that is called, prior to the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date (as defined
below), for redemption will be redeemed on the related date of redemption instead of converted on the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date, provided
that the holders of Series E Preferred Shares may always convert such shares as provided for under Section 6(a); and (8) any other information required by
law or by the applicable rules of any exchange or national securities market upon which the Series E Preferred Shares may be listed or admitted for trading. In
the case of a redemption pursuant to paragraph (a) of Section 5 in which fewer than all of the outstanding Series E Preferred Shares are to be redeemed, then
the notice mailed pursuant to this paragraph (e) of Section 5 shall also specify the number of Series E Preferred Shares to be redeemed from each holder
thereof.

(f) The Corporation’s (or, if applicable, the acquiring entity’s) obligation to provide cash in accordance with Section 5 shall be deemed fulfilled if, on
or before the Call Date, the Corporation (or such acquiring entity) shall irrevocably deposit funds necessary for redemption pursuant to Section 5, in trust for
the holders of the Series E Preferred Shares so called for redemption pursuant to Section 5, with a bank or trust company that has, or is an affiliate of a bank
or trust company that has, capital and surplus of at least $50,000,000, with irrevocable instructions that such cash be applied to the redemption of the Series E
Preferred Shares so called for redemption, in which case the notice to holders of the Series E Preferred Shares will (i) state the date of such deposit; (ii)
specify the office of such bank or trust company as the place of payment of the redemption price; and (iii) require such holders to surrender any certificates
representing such shares, other than certificates issued as contemplated by Section 13, at such place on or about the date fixed in such redemption notice
(which may not be later than the Call Date) against payment of the redemption price (including all accumulated accrued and unpaid dividends to the Call
Date). No interest shall accrue for the benefit of the holders of Series E Preferred Shares to be redeemed on any cash so set aside by the Corporation (or such
acquiring entity). Subject to applicable escheat laws, any such cash unclaimed at the end of six months from the Call Date shall revert to the general funds of
the Corporation (or such acquiring entity), after which reversion the holders of such shares so called for redemption shall look only to the general funds of the
Corporation (or such acquiring entity) for the payment of such cash.

13




(g) On or after the Call Date, each holder of Series E Preferred Shares that holds a certificate, other than certificates issued as contemplated by
Section 13, must present and surrender (and properly endorse or assign for transfer, if the Corporation shall require and if the notice shall so state) each such
certificate representing such holder’s Series E Preferred Shares to the Corporation at the place designated in the applicable notice and thereupon the
redemption price of such shares will be paid to or on the order of the person whose name appears on such certificate representing the Series E Preferred
Shares as the owner thereof, and each surrendered certificate will be canceled. All Series E Preferred Shares redeemed by the Corporation pursuant to Section
5, or otherwise acquired by the Corporation, shall be retired and restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares of undesignated Preferred Shares.

(h) If the Corporation redeems any of the Series E Preferred Shares pursuant to Section 5 and, if the Call Date for such redemption occurs after a
Dividend Record Date and on or prior to the related Dividend Payment Date, then the dividend payable on such Dividend Payment Date with respect to such
shares called for redemption shall be payable on such Dividend Payment Date to the holders of record at the close of business on such Dividend Record Date,
and shall not be payable as part of the redemption price for such shares.

Section 6. Conversion of Shares.

(a) From time to time after the date of issuance of the Series E Preferred Shares, each Series E Preferred Share shall be convertible at any time at the
option of the holder into that number of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares computed by dividing the Liquidation Amount by the
Series E Conversion Price. Each Series E Preferred Share called for redemption will be convertible pursuant to this Section 6(a) into Common Shares up to
and including, but not after, the close of business on the date fixed for redemption unless the Corporation defaults in the payment of the amount payable upon
redemption.

(b) Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, each holder of Series E Preferred Shares will have the right (unless, prior to the Series E Change of
Control Conversion Date, the Corporation has provided notice of its election to redeem some or all of the Series E Preferred Shares held by such holder as
described in Sections 5(b) above, in which case such holder will have the right only with respect to Series E Preferred Shares that are not called for
redemption), to convert some or all of the Series E Preferred Shares held by such holder (the “Series E Change of Control Conversion Right”) on the Series E
Change of Control Conversion Date into a number of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares per Series E Preferred Share (the “Series
E/Common Stock Conversion Consideration”) equal to the lesser of: (i) the quotient obtained by dividing (A) the sum of the Liquidation Amount plus the
amount of any accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to, but not including, the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date (unless the Series E Change
of Control Conversion Date is after a Series E Dividend Record Date (as defined herein) and prior to the corresponding Series E Dividend Payment Date (as
defined herein) for the Series E Preferred Shares, in which case no additional amount for such accrued and unpaid dividends will be included in this sum) by
(B) the Common Stock Price; and (ii) 29 (the “Share Cap”), subject to adjustments to the Share Cap for any splits, subdivisions or combinations of our
Common Shares; in each case, on the terms and subject to the conditions described in this Section 6.
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(c) The Corporation shall have the option exercisable from time to time by written notice to any holder of the Series E Preferred Shares (“Notice of
Mandatory Conversion”) of compelling such holder to convert all or a portion of the Series E Preferred Shares held by such holder into Common Shares
(“Mandatory Conversion”), subject to the requirements of this Section 6(b). Each Series E Preferred Share subject to a Notice of Mandatory Conversion shall
be convertible into a number of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares computed by dividing the Liquidation Amount by the Series E
Conversion Price. The Notice of Mandatory Conversion, which if given, must be given on the first business day following a period in which for at least
twenty (20) Trading Days in the aggregate during thirty (30) consecutive Trading Days, the Trading Price for the Common Shares was equal to or greater than
130% of the Series E Conversion Price. The date the Notice of Mandatory Conversion is given is the “Mandatory Conversion Date.” The Notice of
Mandatory Conversion shall specify the amount of the Series E Preferred Shares which are subject to Mandatory Conversion. Each Mandatory Conversion
Date shall be a deemed conversion date and the Corporation will be required to deliver the Common Shares issuable pursuant to a Mandatory Conversion
Notice in the same manner and time period as described in Section 6(c). In the event the Corporation fails to deliver the Common Shares issuable upon
Mandatory Conversion on the delivery date, then at such holder’s election, such Notice of Mandatory Conversion will be null and void or such holder may
enforce the Notice of Mandatory Conversion. A Notice of Mandatory Conversion may not be rescinded by the Corporation without the consent of such
holder.

(d) In the case of a Change of Control pursuant to which Common Shares are or will be converted into cash, securities or other property or assets
(including any combination thereof) (the “Alternative Form Consideration”), a holder of Series E Preferred Shares will receive upon conversion of such
Series E Preferred Shares the kind and amount of Alternative Form Consideration which such holder would have owned or been entitled to receive upon the
Change of Control had such holder held a number of Common Shares equal to the Series E/Common Stock Conversion Consideration immediately prior to
the effective time of the Change of Control (the “Alternative Conversion Consideration”; the Series E/Common Stock Conversion Consideration or the
Alternative Conversion Consideration, whichever shall be applicable to a Change of Control, is referred to as the “Conversion Consideration”).

(e) If the holders of Common Shares have the opportunity to elect the form of consideration to be received in the Change of Control, the Conversion
Consideration in respect of such Change of Control will be deemed to be the kind and amount of consideration actually received by holders of a majority of
the outstanding Common Shares that made or voted for such an election (if electing between two types of consideration) or holders of a plurality of the
outstanding Common Shares that made or voted for such an election (if electing between more than two types of consideration), as the case may be, and will
be subject to any limitations to which all holders of Common Shares are subject, including, without limitation, pro rata reductions applicable to any portion of
the consideration payable in such Change of Control.
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(f) Within 15 days following the occurrence of a Change of Control, provided that the Corporation has not then exercised its right to redeem all
Series E Preferred Shares pursuant to Section 6(b), the Corporation will provide to holders of Series E Preferred Shares a notice of occurrence of the Change
of Control that describes the resulting Series E Change of Control Conversion Right, which notice shall be delivered to the holders of record of the Series E
Preferred Shares in their addresses as they appear on the stock transfer records of the Corporation and shall state: (i) the events constituting the Change of
Control; (ii) the date of the Change of Control; (iii) the last date on which the holders of Series E Preferred Shares may exercise their Series E Change of
Control Conversion Right; (iv) the method and period for calculating the Common Stock Price; (v) the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date; (vi) that
if, prior to the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date, the Corporation has provided notice of its election to redeem all or any Series E Preferred Shares
pursuant to Section 6(b), holders will not be able to convert the Series E Preferred Shares called for redemption and such shares will be redeemed on the
related redemption date, even if such shares have already been tendered for conversion pursuant to the Series E Change of Control Conversion Right; (vii) if
applicable, the type and amount of Alternative Conversion Consideration entitled to be received per Series E Preferred Share; (viii) the name and address of
the paying agent, transfer agent and conversion agent for the Series E Preferred Shares; (ix) the procedures that the holders of Series E Preferred Shares must
follow to exercise the Series E Change of Control Conversion Right (including procedures for surrendering shares for conversion through the facilities of a
Depositary (as defined below)), including the form of conversion notice to be delivered by such holders as described below; and (x) the last date on which
holders of Series E Preferred Shares may withdraw shares surrendered for conversion and the procedures that such holders must follow to effect such a
withdrawal.

(g) The Corporation shall also issue a press release containing such notice provided for in the preceding Section 6(f) for publication on either of Dow
Jones & Company, Inc., Business Wire, PR Newswire or Bloomberg Business News (or, if these organizations are not in existence at the time of issuance of
the press release, such other news or press organization as is reasonably calculated to broadly disseminate the relevant information to the public), and post a
notice on its website, in any event prior to the opening of business on the first Business Day following any date on which it provides the notice provided for in
Section 6(f) to the holders of Series E Preferred Shares.

(h) To exercise the Series E Change of Control Conversion Right, the holders of Series E Preferred Shares will be required to deliver, on or before
the close of business on the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date, the certificates (if any) representing the Series E Preferred Shares to be converted,
duly endorsed for transfer (or, in the case of any Series E Preferred Shares held in book-entry form through a Depositary, to deliver, on or before the close of
business on the Series E Change of Control Conversion Date, the Series E Preferred Shares to be converted through the facilities of such Depositary), together
with a written conversion notice in the form provided by the Corporation, duly completed, to its transfer agent. The conversion notice must state: (i) the
relevant Series E Change of Control Conversion Date; (ii) the number of Series E Preferred Shares to be converted; and (iii) that the Series E Preferred Shares
are to be converted pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Series E Preferred Shares.

(i) Holders of Series E Preferred Shares may withdraw any notice of exercise of a Series E Change of Control Conversion Right (in whole or in part)
by a written notice of withdrawal delivered to the transfer agent of the Corporation prior to the close of business on the Business Day prior to the Series E
Change of Control Conversion Date. The notice of withdrawal delivered by any holder must state: (i) the number of withdrawn Series E Preferred Shares; (ii)
if certificated Series E Preferred Shares have been surrendered for conversion, the certificate numbers of the withdrawn Series E Preferred Shares; and (iii)
the number of Series E Preferred Shares, if any, which remain subject to the holder’s conversion notice.
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(j) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 6, if any Series E Preferred Shares are held in book-entry form through the
Depositary (as defined below), the conversion notice and/or the notice of withdrawal, as applicable, must comply with applicable procedures, if any, of the
applicable Depositary.

(k) (i) Each conversion of Series E Preferred Shares shall be deemed to have been effected as of the close of business on the date on which notice of
election of such conversion is delivered to the Corporation by such holder. Until the certificates representing the Series E Preferred Shares that are being
converted have been surrendered, other than certificates issued as contemplated by Section 13, and new certificates representing the Common Shares shall
have been issued by the Corporation, such certificate(s) evidencing the Series E Preferred Shares being converted shall be evidence of the issuance of such
Common Shares. At such time as such conversion has been effected, the rights of the holder of such Series E Preferred Shares as such holder shall cease and
the Person or Persons in whose name or names any certificate or certificates for Common Shares are to be issued upon such conversion shall be deemed to
have become the holder or holders of record of the Common Shares represented thereby.

(ii) As soon as practicable after a conversion has been effected in accordance with clause (i) above, the Corporation shall deliver to the
converting holder: (A) a certificate or certificates representing, in the aggregate, the number of Common Shares issuable by reason of such conversion, in the
name or names and in such denomination or denominations as the converting holder has specified; and (B) a certificate representing any Series E Preferred
Shares which were represented by the certificate or certificates delivered to the Corporation in connection with such conversion, but which were not
converted.

(iii) The issuance of certificates for Common Shares upon conversion of the Series E Preferred Shares shall be made without charge to the
holders of such Series E Preferred Shares for any issuance tax in respect thereof or other cost incurred by the Corporation in connection with such conversion
and the related issuance of Common Shares, except for any transfer or similar tax payable as a result of issuance of a certificate to other than the registered
holder of the shares being converted.

(iv) The Corporation shall not close its books against the transfer of the Series E Preferred Shares or of Common Shares issued or issuable
upon conversion of the Series E Preferred Shares in any manner which interferes with the timely conversion of the Series E Preferred Shares. The Corporation
shall assist and cooperate with any holder of Series E Preferred Shares required to make any governmental filings or obtain any governmental approval prior
to or in connection with any conversion of shares hereunder (including, without limitation, making any filings reasonably required to be made by the
Corporation).

(v) No fractional Common Shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon conversion of Series E Preferred Shares. If
more than one Series E Preferred Share shall be surrendered for conversion at one time by the same record holder, the number of full Common Shares
issuable upon the conversion thereof shall be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of Series E Preferred Shares so surrendered by such record
holder. Instead, the Corporation will make a cash payment equal to the value of such fractional shares based upon the Common Stock Price used in
determining the Series E/Common Stock Conversion Consideration for such Change of Control or the Conversion Price in the event of conversion pursuant to
Section 6(a) or (c).
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(vi) The Corporation shall use its best efforts at all times to reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued Common Shares
solely for the purpose of issuance upon the conversion of the Series E Preferred Shares, such number of Common Shares as are issuable upon the conversion
of all outstanding Series E Preferred Shares. All Common Shares which are so issuable shall, when issued, be duly and validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges, other than those created or agreed to by the holder. The Corporation shall use its best efforts to take
all such actions as may be necessary to assure that all such Common Shares may be so issued without violation of any applicable law or governmental
regulation or any requirements of any domestic securities exchange upon which Common Shares may be listed (except for official notice of issuance which
shall be immediately delivered by the Corporation upon each such issuance).

(1) If the Corporation at any time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization or any similar transaction) one or more classes of its
outstanding Common Shares into a greater number of shares, or if the Corporation at any time combines (by reverse stock split, reclassification or any similar
transaction) one or more classes of its outstanding Common Shares into a smaller number of shares, the Series E Conversion Price and Share Cap in effect
immediately prior to such subdivision or combination shall be proportionately adjusted.

(m) (i) Promptly upon any adjustment of the Series E Conversion Price as described in Section 6(d), the Corporation shall give written notice thereof
to all holders of the Series E Preferred Shares, setting forth in reasonable detail and certifying the calculation of such adjustment.

(ii) The Corporation shall give written notice to all holders of the Series E Preferred Shares at least ten (10) days’ prior to the date on which
the Corporation closes its books or takes a record (A) with respect to any dividend or distribution upon Common Shares, (B) with respect to any pro rata

subscription offer to holders of Common Shares, or (C) for determining rights with respect to any Change of Control.

(iii) The Corporation shall give written notice to the holders of the Series E Preferred Shares at least ten (10) days’ prior to the date on
which any Change of Control shall take place, which notice may be one and the same as that required by (ii) above.

Section 7. Ranking. Any class or series of shares of stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to rank:

(a) prior to the Series E Preferred Shares, as to the payment of dividends and as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up,
if the holders of such class or series shall be entitled to the receipt of dividends or of amounts distributable upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, as the
case may be, in preference or priority to the holders of Series E Preferred Shares (“Senior Shares”);

(b) on a parity with the Series E Preferred Shares, as to the payment of dividends and as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, whether or not the dividend rates, dividend payment dates or redemption or liquidation prices per share thereof be different from those of the
Series E Preferred Shares, if the holders of such class or series and the Series E Preferred Shares shall be entitled to the receipt of dividends and of amounts
distributable upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up in proportion to their respective amounts of accrued and unpaid dividends per share or liquidation
preferences, without preference or priority one over the other (“Parity Shares”); and
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(c) junior to the Series E Preferred Shares, as to the payment of dividends and as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding
up, if such class or series shall be the Common Shares or any other class or series of shares of stock of the Corporation now or hereafter issued and
outstanding over which the Series E Preferred Shares have preference or priority in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets upon any
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (“Junior Shares”).

Section 8. Voting Rights. The Series E Preferred Shares shall have no voting rights, except as set forth in this Section 8.

(a) So long as any Series E Preferred Shares are outstanding, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the Series E Preferred Shares
at the time outstanding, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose, shall be necessary
for effecting or validating:

(i) Any amendment, alteration or repeal of any of the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation or these terms of the Series E Preferred
Shares that materially and adversely affects the rights, preferences or voting power of the Series E Preferred Shares; provided, however, that the amendment
of the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation so as to authorize or create, or to increase the authorized amount of, the Series E Preferred Shares, any
Junior Shares that are not senior in any respect to the Series E Preferred Shares, or any shares of any class ranking, as to receipt of dividends or distribution of
assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, on a parity with the Series E Preferred Shares shall not be deemed to materially or
adversely affect the rights, preferences or voting power of the Series E Preferred Shares; and provided, further, that if any such amendment, alteration or
repeal would materially and adversely affect any voting powers, rights or preferences of the Series E Preferred Shares that are not enjoyed by some or all of
the other series otherwise entitled to vote in accordance herewith, the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders of all
series similarly affected, similarly given, shall be required in lieu of the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders of
the Series E Preferred Shares; or

(ii) The authorization, reclassification or creation of, or the increase in the authorized amount of, any shares of any class or any security
convertible into or exchangeable for shares of any class ranking prior to the Series E Preferred Shares in the distribution of assets on any liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or in the payment of dividends;

provided, however, that no such vote of the holders of Series E Preferred Shares shall be required on or after February 11, 2017, or in connection with a
Change of Control if, at or prior to the time when such amendment, alteration, repeal, share exchange, consolidation or merger is to take effect, or when the
issuance of any such prior shares or convertible security is to be made, as the case may be, a deposit is made for the redemption in cash of all Series E
Preferred Shares at the time outstanding as provided in paragraph (e) of Section 5 hereof for a redemption price determined under the appropriate paragraph
of Section 5.
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(b) So long as Series E Preferred Shares have at least an aggregate of $10,000,000 in liquidation amount are outstanding, the affirmative vote of the
holders of at least two-thirds of the Series E Preferred Shares at the time outstanding, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by
vote at any meeting called for the purpose, shall be necessary for the Corporation to incur additional Indebtedness after the date the first Series E Preferred
Share is issued in an amount greater than the lesser of (i) $10,000,000 or (ii) four and one-half (4.5) multiplied by the Corporation’s TTM EBITDA, as
calculated as of the end of the month prior to the incurrence of any Indebtedness.

(c) For purposes of the foregoing provisions of this Section 8, each Series E Preferred Share shall have one vote per share. Except as set forth herein,
the Series E Preferred Shares shall not have any relative, participating, optional or other special voting rights and powers other than as set forth herein, and the
consent of the holders thereof shall not be required for the taking of any corporate action.

(d) No amendment to these terms of the Series E Preferred Shares shall require the vote of the holders of Common Shares (except as required by
law) or any series of Preferred Stock other than the Series E Preferred Shares.

Section 9. Information Rights. During any period in which the Corporation is not subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act and any Series E
Preferred Shares are outstanding, the Corporation shall (a) transmit by mail to all holders of Series E Preferred Shares, as their names and addresses appear in
the Corporation’s record books and without cost to such holders, copies of the annual reports and quarterly reports that the Corporation would have been
required to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC*) pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act if the Corporation was
subject to such Sections (other than any exhibits that would have been required); and (b) promptly upon written request, supply copies of such reports to any
prospective holder of Series E Preferred Shares. The Corporation shall mail the reports to the holders of Series E Preferred Shares within 15 days after the
respective dates by which the Corporation would have been required to file the reports with the SEC if the Corporation were then subject to Section 13 or
15(d) of the Exchange Act, assuming the Corporation is a “non-accelerated filer” in accordance with the Exchange Act.

Section 10. Record Holders. The Corporation and the Transfer Agent shall deem and treat the record holder of any Series E Preferred Shares as the true
and lawful owner thereof for all purposes, and neither the Corporation nor the Transfer Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary,

Section 11. Sinking Fund. The Series E Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to the benefits of any retirement or sinking fund.

Section 12. [Reserved.]
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Section 13. Book Entry. The Series E Preferred Shares shall be issued initially in the form of one or more fully registered global certificates (“Global
Preferred Shares®), which shall be deposited on behalf of the purchasers represented thereby with the Transfer Agent, as custodian for a securities depositary
(the “Depositary) that is a clearing agency under Section 17A of the Exchange Act (or with such other custodian as the Depositary may direct), and
registered in the name of the Depositary or its nominee, duly executed by the Corporation and authenticated by the Transfer Agent. The number of Series E
Preferred Shares represented by Global Preferred Shares may from time to time be increased or decreased by adjustments made on the records of the Transfer
Agent and the Depositary as hereinafter provided. Members of, or participants in, the Depositary (“Agent Members”) shall have no rights under these terms
of the Series E Preferred Shares with respect to any Global Preferred Shares held on their behalf by the Depositary or by the Transfer Agent as the custodian
of the Depositary or under such Global Preferred Shares, and the Depositary may be treated by the Corporation, the Transfer Agent and any agent of the
Corporation or the Transfer Agent as the absolute owner of such Global Preferred Shares for all purposes whatsoever. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein shall prevent the Corporation, the Transfer Agent or any agent of the Corporation or the Transfer Agent from giving effect to any written certification,
proxy or other authorization furnished by the Depositary or impair, as between the Depositary and its Agent Members, the operation of customary practices of
the Depositary governing the exercise of the rights of a holder of a beneficial interest in any Global Preferred Shares.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Designation to be duly executed and acknowledged by Steven W. King its
President and Chief Executive Officer as of this 12th day of February, 2014.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

/s/ Steven W. King
Steven W. King
President and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at the 2008 Annual Meeting. The resolutions set forth the proposed amendment as follows:

RESOLVED, that ARTICLE 4 of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation be amended by adding the following paragraph at the
end thereof:

“Reverse Stock Split.

Effective as of the close of business on the filing date of this Certificate of Amendment with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware (the “Effective Time”), every five (5) outstanding shares of Common Stock, par value $0.001, of the Corporation issued and outstanding or held in
the treasury of the Corporation as of the close of business on October 16, 2009 will automatically be combined, reclassified and changed into one (1) fully
paid and non-assessable share of Common Stock, par value $0.001, without any further action by the holders of such shares; provided, however, that no
fractional shares shall be issued. Stockholders who would otherwise be entitled to a fractional share will receive one whole share of common stock in lieu of
such fraction. No other exchange, reclassification or cancellation of issued shares shall be effected by this Amendment.”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as
required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Steven W. King, its President and
CEO, and attested to by Paul J. Lytle, its CFO and Corporate Secretary, this 16th day of October, 2009.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

By: _/s/ Steven W. King
Steven W. King, President and CEO

ATTEST:

[s/ Paul J. Lytle
Paul J. Lytle, CFO and Corporate Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General Corporation
Law (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders of the
Corporation at a special meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

“RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

“The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 330,000,000, of which (i) 325,000,000 shares
shall be designated “Common Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated “Preferred Stock” and shall
have a par value of $0.001 per share.”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and held,
upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as required
by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Steven W. King, its President & CEO, and
attested to by Paul J. Lytle, its Secretary, this 22nd day of October, 2007.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Steven W. King
Steven W. King, President & CEO

ATTEST:

[s/ Paul J. Lytle
Paul J. Lytle, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION
of
SERIES D PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK
of
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

Pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law
of the State of Delaware

Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 151 thereof, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY:

That pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of the said
Corporation, the said Board of Directors on March 16, 2006 adopted the following resolution creating a series of 500,000 shares of Preferred Stock
designated as “ Series D Participating Preferred Stock ”:

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors of this Corporation in accordance with
the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, a series of Preferred Stock, par value $.001 per share, of the Corporation be
and hereby is created, and that the designation and number of shares thereof and the voting and other powers, preferences and
relative, participating, optional or other rights of the shares of such Series and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions
thereof are as follows:

Series D Participating Preferred Stock

1. Designation and Amount. There shall be a series of Preferred Stock that shall be designated as “Series D Participating Preferred Stock,” and
the number of shares constituting such series shall be 500,000. Such number of shares may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors;
provided, however, that no decrease shall reduce the number of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock to less than the number of shares then issued
and outstanding plus the number of shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding rights, options or warrants or upon conversion of outstanding securities
issued by the Corporation.

2. Dividends and Distribution.

(A) Subject to the prior and superior rights of the holders of any shares of any class or series of stock of the Corporation ranking
prior and superior to the shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, the holders of shares of Series D Participating Preferred
Stock, in preference to the holders of shares of any class or series of stock of the Corporation ranking junior to the Series D Participating Preferred Stock in
respect thereof, shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available for the purpose, quarterly
dividends payable in cash on the first day of May, August, November and February in each year (each such date being referred to herein as a “ Quarterly
Dividend Payment Date ”), commencing on the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date after the first issuance of a share or fraction of a share of Series D
Participating Preferred Stock, in an amount per share (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the greater of (a) $1.00 or (b) the Adjustment Number (as defined
below) times the aggregate per share amount of all cash dividends, and the Adjustment Number times the aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all
non-cash dividends or other distributions other than a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock or a subdivision of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock (by reclassification or otherwise), declared on the Common Stock, par value $.001 per share, of the Corporation (the “ Common Stock ”) since the
immediately preceding Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, or, with respect to the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, since the first issuance of any share
or fraction of a share of Series D Participating Preferred Stock. The “Adjustment Number” shall initially be 1,000. In the event the Corporation shall at any
time after March 16, 2006, (i) declare and pay any dividend on Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common
Stock or (iii) combine the outstanding Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the Adjustment Number in effect immediately
prior to such event shall be adjusted by multiplying such Adjustment Number by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to
such event.
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(B) The Corporation shall declare a dividend or distribution on the Series D Participating Preferred Stock as provided in paragraph
(A) above immediately after it declares a dividend or distribution on the Common Stock (other than a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock).

(C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative on outstanding shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock from the
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date next preceding the date of issue of such shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock, unless the date of issue of such
shares is prior to the record date for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in which case dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue from the date of
issue of such shares, or unless the date of issue is a Quarterly Dividend Payment Date or is a date after the record date for the determination of holders of
shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive a quarterly dividend and before such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in either of which
events such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear
interest. Dividends paid on the shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock in an amount less than the total amount of such dividends at the time accrued
and payable on such shares shall be allocated pro rata on a share-by-share basis among all such shares at the time outstanding. The Board of Directors may fix
a record date for the determination of holders of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive payment of a dividend or distribution
declared thereon, which record date shall be no more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the payment thereof.
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3. Voting Rights. The holders of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall have the following voting rights:

(A) Each share of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder thereof to a number of votes equal to the
Adjustment Number on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Corporation.

(B) Except as required by law and by Section 10 hereof, holders of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall have no special
voting rights and their consent shall not be required (except to the extent they are entitled to vote with holders of Common Stock as set forth herein) for taking
any corporate action.

(C) If, at the time of any annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, the equivalent of six quarterly dividends
(whether or not consecutive) payable on any share or shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock are in default, the number of directors constituting the
Board of Directors of the Company shall be increased by two. In addition to voting together with the holders of Common Stock for the election of other
directors of the Company, the holders of record of the Series D Participating Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class to the exclusion of the holders of
Common Stock, shall be entitled at said meeting of stockholders (and at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders), unless all dividends in arrears on
the Series D Participating Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and set apart for payment prior thereto, to vote for the election of two directors of the
Company, the holders of any Series D Participating Preferred Stock being entitled to cast a number of votes per share of Series D Participating Preferred
Stock as is specified in paragraph (A) of this Section 3. Each such additional director shall serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders for the election
of directors, or until his successor shall be elected and shall qualify, or until his right to hold such office terminates pursuant to the provisions of this Section
3(C). Until the default in payments of all dividends which permitted the election of said directors shall cease to exist, any director who shall have been so
elected pursuant to the next preceding sentence may be removed at any time, without cause, only by the affirmative vote of the holders of the shares of Series
D Participating Preferred Stock at the time entitled to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast for the election of any such director at a special meeting
of such holders called for that purpose, and any vacancy thereby created may be filled by the vote of such holders. If and when such default shall cease to
exist, the holders of the Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall be divested of the foregoing special voting rights, subject to revesting in the event of each
and every subsequent like default in payments of dividends. Upon the termination of the foregoing special voting rights, the terms of office of all persons who
may have been elected directors pursuant to said special voting rights shall forthwith terminate, and the number of directors constituting the Board of
Directors shall be reduced by two. The voting rights granted by this Section 3(C) shall be in addition to any other voting rights granted to the holders of the
Series D Participating Preferred Stock in this Section 3.

4. Certain Restrictions.
(A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other dividends or distributions payable on the Series D Participating Preferred Stock as

provided in Section 2 are in arrears, thereafter and until all accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions, whether or not declared, on shares of Series D
Participating Preferred Stock outstanding shall have been paid in full, the Corporation shall not:
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(i) declare or pay dividends on, make any other distributions on, or redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for
consideration any shares of stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series D Participating Preferred
Stock;

(ii) declare or pay dividends on or make any other distributions on any shares of stock ranking on a parity (either as to
dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with the Series D Participating Preferred Stock, except dividends paid ratably on the Series D
Participating Preferred Stock and all such parity stock on which dividends are payable or in arrears in proportion to the total amounts to which the holders of
all such shares are then entitled; or

(iii) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock, or any
shares of stock ranking on a parity with the Series D Participating Preferred Stock, except in accordance with a purchase offer made in writing or by
publication (as determined by the Board of Directors) to all holders of Series D Participating Preferred Stock, or to such holders and holders of any such
shares ranking on a parity therewith, upon such terms as the Board of Directors, after consideration of the respective annual dividend rates and other relative
rights and preferences of the respective Series and classes, shall determine in good faith will result in fair and equitable treatment among the respective series
or classes.

(B) The Corporation shall not permit any subsidiary of the Corporation to purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any
shares of stock of the Corporation unless the Corporation could, under paragraph (A) of this Section 4, purchase or otherwise acquire such shares at such time
and in such manner.

5. Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock purchased or otherwise acquired by the Corporation in any
manner whatsoever shall be retired promptly after the acquisition thereof. All such shares shall upon their retirement become authorized but unissued shares
of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred Stock to be created by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject
to any conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth herein.

6. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up. (A) Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, voluntary or otherwise,
no distribution shall be made to the holders of shares of stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the
Series D Participating Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the holders of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall have received an amount per
share (the “ Series D Liquidation Preference ”) equal to the greater of (i) $1,000 plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions
thereon, whether or not declared, to the date of such payment, or (ii) the Adjustment Number times the per share amount of all cash and other property to be
distributed in respect of the Common Stock upon such liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation.
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(B) In the event, however, that there are not sufficient assets available to permit payment in full of the Series D Liquidation
Preference and the liquidation preferences of all other classes and series of stock of the Corporation, if any, that rank on a parity with the Series D
Participating Preferred Stock in respect thereof, then the assets available for such distribution shall be distributed ratably to the holders of the Series D
Participating Preferred Stock and the holders of such parity shares in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences.

(C) Neither the merger nor consolidation of the Corporation into or with another corporation nor the merger or consolidation of any
other corporation into or with the Corporation shall be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation within the meaning of this
Section 6.

7. Consolidation, Merger, Etc. In case the Corporation shall enter into any consolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which
the outstanding shares of Common Stock are exchanged for or changed into other stock or securities, cash and/or any other property, then in any such case
each share of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall at the same time be similarly exchanged or changed in an amount per share equal to the Adjustment
Number times the aggregate amount of stock, securities, cash and/or any other property (payable in kind), as the case may be, into which or for which each
share of Common Stock is changed or exchanged. In the event the Corporation shall at any time declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in
shares of Common Stock, or effect a subdivision, combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise
than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the amount set
forth in the preceding sentence with respect to the exchange or change of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall be adjusted by multiplying
such amount by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator
of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event. In the event the Corporation shall at any time
declare or pay any dividend on the Series D Participating Preferred Stock payable in shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock, or effect a subdivision,
combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a
dividend in shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock, then in each
such case the amount set forth in the first sentence of this Section 7 with respect to the exchange or change of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock
shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock that were
outstanding immediately prior to such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock outstanding
immediately after such event.

8. No Redemption. Shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall not be subject to redemption by the Company.
9. Ranking. The Series D Participating Preferred Stock shall rank junior to all other series of the Preferred Stock as to the payment of

dividends and as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, unless the terms of any such series shall provide otherwise, and shall
rank senior to the Common Stock as to such matters.
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10. Amendment. At any time that any shares of Series D Participating Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation shall not be amended in any manner which would materially alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of the Series D Participating
Preferred Stock so as to affect them adversely without the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series D Participating
Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class.

11. Fractional Shares. Series D Participating Preferred Stock may be issued in fractions of a share that shall entitle the holder, in proportion to

such holder’s fractional shares, to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, participate in distributions and to have the benefit of all other rights of holders of
Series D Participating Preferred Stock.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate this 16th day of March, 2006.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
By: /s/ Steven W. King

Name: Steven W. King
Title: President and CEO
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
A DELAWARE CORPORATION

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at a special meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

“RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

“The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 255,000,000, of which (i) 250,000,000
shares shall be designated “Common Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated
“Preferred Stock” and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share.”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as
required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Steven W. King, its President & CEO, and
attested to by Paul J. Lytle, its Secretary, this 24th day of October, 2005.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ STEVEN W. KING
Steven W. King, President & CEO

ATTEST:

/s/ PAUL J. LYTLE
Paul J. Lytle, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
a Delaware Corporation

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, Inc, a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General Corporation Law
(hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at a special meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

"RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended, be hereby further amended by changing the first sentence of
ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

"The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 205,000,000, of which (i) 200,000,000
shares shall be designated "Common Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated "Preferred Stock"
and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share."

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as
required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Steven W. King, its President & CEO, and
attested to by Paul J. Lytle, its Secretary, this 14th day of October, 2003.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
a Delaware corporation

By: /S/ISTEVEN W. KING
Steven W. King, President & CEO

ATTEST:

/S/PAUL J. LYTLE
Paul J. Lytle, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General
Corporation Law (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders of the
Corporation at a special meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

"RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

"The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 180,000,000, of which (i) 175,000,000
shares shall be designated "Common Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated "Preferred
Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share."

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and held,
upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as required
by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Edward J. Legere, its President & CEO,
and attested to by Paul J. Lytle, its Secretary, this 22nd day of October, 2002.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Edward J. Legere
Edward J. Legere, President & CEO

ATTEST:

[s/ Paul J. Lytle
Paul J. Lytle, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION, INC.,
a Delaware Corporation

THE undersigned hereby certify that:
1. They are the duly elected and acting President and Secretary, respectively, of said corporation.

2. The Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation is hereby amended by striking out Article I thereof and by substituting in lieu of said article the
following new Article I:

“NAME: The name of the Corporation is Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.”
3. The amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation herein certified has been duly adopted by the Board of Directors at a regular meeting and the
shareholders of the corporation at an annual meeting in accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of

Delaware.

The undersigned, being President and Secretary, hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the matters set forth in the foregoing certificate are true and
correct of both their own knowledge and that this declaration was executed on this 25th day of October, 2000.

/s/ John Bonfiglio
John Bonfiglio, President

[s/ Paul Lytle
Paul Lytle, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware Corporation

TECHNICLONE CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General Corporation Law
(hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders of the
Corporation at a special meeting. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

"RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

"The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 155,000,000, of which (i) 150,000,000 shares
shall be designated "Common Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated "Preferred Stock" and shall
have a par value of $0.001 per share."”

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, an Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and held,
upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which Annual Meeting the necessary number of shares as required

by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Larry O. Bymaster, its President, and attested to
by Steven C. Burke, its Secretary, this 21st day of October, 1999.
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Larry O. Bymaster
Larry O. Bymaster, President
ATTEST:

/s/ Steven C. Burke
Steven C. Burke, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware Corporation

TECHNICLONE CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General Corporation Law
(hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at a special meeting. The resolution setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

"RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:

"The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 125,000,000, of which (i) 120,000,000
shares shall be designated "Common Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated
"Preferred Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share."

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, a Special Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which meeting the necessary number of shares as required by
statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3. That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Lon H. Stone, Chairman of the Board of
Directors, and attested to by William V. Moding, its Secretary, this 11th day of May, 1998.

TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Thomas R. Testman
Thomas R. Testman,
Interim Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

/s/ William V. Moding
William V. Moding, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,

a Delaware Corporation

TECHNICLONE CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Delaware General Corporation Law
(hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and directing said amendment to be submitted to the stockholders
of the Corporation at its Annual Meeting. The resolution setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

"RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation be amended by changing the first sentence of ARTICLE 4 so that it shall read as follows:
"The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 65,000,000, of which (i) 60,000,000
shares shall be designated "Common Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated
"Preferred Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share."

2. That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors, the Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation was duly called and
held, upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, at which meeting the necessary number of shares as required by

statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

3, That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed by Lon H. Stone, its President, and attested to by
William V. Moding, its Secretary, this 28th day of October, 1997.
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Lon H. Stone
Lon H. Stone, President

ATTEST:

/s/ William V. Moding
William V. Moding, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION
OF

5% ADJUSTABLE CONVERTIBLE CLASS C PREFERRED STOCK

OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION
a Delaware Corporation

(Pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware)

Techniclone Corporation, a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "Corporation"),
hereby certifies that, pursuant to the authority contained in its Certificate of Incorporation, and in accordance with the provisions of Section 151 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, its Board of Directors has adopted the following resolution creating a series of its Preferred Stock
designated as 5% Adjustable Convertible Class C Preferred Stock:

"BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation by the Certificate of Incorporation, the
Board of Directors does hereby provide for the issue of a series of Preferred Stock, $.001 par value per share, in connection with those certain 5% Preferred
Stock Investment Agreements dated April 24, 1997 by and among the Corporation and certain investors (the "Securities Purchase Agreements"), there shall
be a series of shares of the Preferred Stock of the Corporation designated "5% Adjustable Convertible Class "C" Preferred Stock"; that the number of shares
of such series shall be 17,200 and that the rights and preferences of such series (referred to herein as the "5% Preferred" or "Shares") and the limitations or
restrictions thereon, and the rights and terms of the stock purchase warrants ("Warrants") issuable upon conversion of the 5% Preferred, shall be as follows (as
used herein, unless the context otherwise requires, shares of 5% Preferred shall include shares of 5% Preferred issuable as dividends on shares of 5%
Preferred and Warrants shall include warrants issuable upon conversion of the 5% Preferred):

RESOLVED that, in connection with those certain 5% Preferred Stock Investment Agreements dated April 24, 1997 by and among the Corporation
and certain investors (the "Securities Purchase Agreements"), there shall be a series of shares of the Preferred Stock of the Corporation designated "5%
Adjustable Convertible Class "C" Preferred Stock"; that the number of shares of such series shall be 17,200 and that the rights and preferences of such series
(referred to herein as the "5% Preferred" or "Shares") and the limitations or restrictions thereon, and the rights and terms of the stock purchase warrants
("Warrants") issuable upon conversion of the 5% Preferred, shall be as follows (as used herein, unless the context otherwise requires, shares of 5% Preferred
shall include shares of 5% Preferred issuable as dividends on shares of 5% Preferred and Warrants shall include warrants issuable upon conversion of the 5%
Preferred):

1. DIVIDENDS.

(a) The holders of the 5% Preferred shall be entitled to receive out of any assets legally available therefor cumulative dividends at the rate of $50 per
share per annum, payable commencing September 30, 1997 and thereafter quarterly on December 31, March 31, June 30 and September 30 of each year,
when and as declared by the Board of Directors, in preference and priority to any payment of any dividend on the common stock of the Corporation, par value
$.001 per share ("Common Stock") or any other class or series of stock of the Corporation ranking junior to the 5% Preferred. Such dividends shall accrue on
any given share from the day of original issuance of such share and shall accrue from day to day whether or not earned or declared. If at any time dividends
on the outstanding 5% Preferred at the rate set forth above shall not have been paid or declared and set apart for payment with respect to all preceding periods,
the amount of the deficiency shall be fully paid or declared and set apart for payment, but without interest, before any distribution, whether by way of
dividend or otherwise, shall be declared or paid upon or set apart for the shares of any other class or series of stock of the Corporation except a class or series
which is entitled to priority as to dividends over the 5% Preferred.
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(b) Dividends shall be paid in shares of 5% Preferred valued at $1000 per share (fractional Shares to be paid in cash) or, at the option of the Corporation
upon 10 days advance notice to the holders of the 5% Preferred, in cash.

(c) If on any dividend payment date all the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the 5% Preferred then outstanding and to be issued as a
dividend on such dividend payment date and upon exercise of the Warrants whether outstanding or issuable upon conversion thereof are not registered under
the Securities Act of 1933 or if there is not then available for delivery upon resale of such shares of Common Stock a prospectus meeting the requirements of
said Act and the rules thereunder or if the Common Stock is not listed or designated for quotation for trading on at least one of the NASDAQ Small Cap
Market (the "NSCM"), the NASDAQ National Market (the "NNM"), the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") or the American Stock Exchange (the
"AMEX") or any such shares of Common Stock are not authorized for trading thereon, or if the Common Stock is not then registered under Section 12(b) or
Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, then such dividend may only be paid in cash.

2. LIQUIDATION PREFERENCE AND CERTAIN REDEMPTIONS.

(a) In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the 5% Preferred shall be
entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any assets of the Corporation to the holders of the Common Stock or any other class or series
of shares except any class or series which is entitled to priority as to liquidation payments over the 5% Preferred, the amount of $1000 per share plus any
accrued but unpaid dividends, whether or not declared (the "Liquidation Preference").

(b)(i) In the event (each of the events described in clauses (A)-(F) below after expiration of the applicable cure period (if any) being a "REDEMPTION
EVENT"):

(A) the Common Stock is suspended from trading on any of, or is not listed or designated for quotation (and authorized) for trading on at least one
of, the NYSE, the AMEX, the NNM or the NSCM for an aggregate of ten (10) trading days in any nine (9) month period,

(B) the registration statement required to be filed by the Corporation pursuant to Section 2(a) or 3(b) of the Registration Rights Agreement, dated as
of April 24, 1997, by and among the Corporation and the other signatories thereto (the "REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT"), has not been declared
effective by the 180th day following the Closing Date (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreements) or any such registration statement, after being
declared effective, cannot be utilized by the holders of 5% Preferred for the resale of all of their Registrable Securities (as defined in the Registration Rights
Agreement) for an aggregate of more than thirty (30) days in any twelve month period,
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(C) the Corporation fails, and any such failure continues uncured for five (5) business days after the Corporation has been notified thereof in writing
by the holder, to remove any restrictive legend on any certificate or any shares of Common Stock issued to the holders of 5% Preferred upon conversion of
the 5% Preferred as and when required by the terms of these 5% Preferred, the Securities Purchase Agreements or the Registration Rights Agreement or any
certificate or any shares of Common Stock issued to the holders of the Warrants upon exercise of the Warrants as and when required by the terms of the
Warrants, the Securities Purchase Agreement or the Registration Rights Agreement,

(D) the Corporation fails to issue shares of Common Stock to any holder of 5% Preferred upon conversion in accordance with the terms of these 5%
Preferred or to any holders of Warrants upon exercise in accordance with the terms of such Warrants or provides notice to any holder of 5% Preferred or
Warrants, including by way of public announcement, at any time, of its intention not to issue shares of Common Stock to any holder of 5% Preferred upon
conversion in accordance with the terms of these 5% Preferred or to any holder of Warrants upon exercise of such Warrants (other than due to the
circumstances contemplated by Section 4(i) hereof, for which the holders shall have the remedies set forth in such Section),

(E) Mr. Lon H. Stone shall cease to be an officer or director of the Corporation within 18 months of the Closing Date, or

(F) 50% or more of the Common Stock is directly or indirectly owned or controlled by a single individual or entity or their affiliates, then, upon the
occurrence of each and any such Redemption Event, the Corporation shall promptly provide each holder of shares of 5% Preferred with written notice of the
occurrence of such Redemption Event, which notice shall contain the Corporation's irrevocable election as to whether it will exercise its right to issue
Common Stock in lieu of any redemption provided for in this Section 2. From and after the date of the Redemption Event (whether or not the Corporation has
complied with the notice requirements set forth above) each holder of shares of 5% Preferred shall have the option, exercisable in whole or in part at any time
and from time to time by delivery of a Redemption Notice (as defined in Paragraph (iii) below) to the Corporation (which notice may be revoked by any
holder if the Corporation elects to issue Common Stock with respect thereto pursuant to paragraph (iv) below), to require the Corporation to purchase any or
all of the then outstanding shares of 5% Preferred held by such holder for an amount in cash per share equal to the Redemption Amount (as defined in
Paragraph (ii) below) in effect at the time of the redemption hereunder, subject, however, to the extent permitted by Paragraph (iv) below, to the right of the
Corporation to instead convert each share of 5% Preferred specified in such Conversion Notice into a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the
Redemption Number (as defined in Paragraph (ii) below) in effect at the time of such conversion. For the avoidance of doubt, the occurrence of any event
described in clauses (A), (B), (D), (E) or (F) above shall immediately constitute a Redemption Event and there shall be no cure period.
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(ii) Definition of Redemption Amount and Number. The "REDEMPTION AMOUNT" with respect to a share of 5% Preferred means an amount
equal to:

1,000 + P

Cp XM

The "REDEMPTION NUMBER" with respect to a share of 5% Preferred means:

1,000 +P
LCP

where:

"P" means the accrued dividends, whether or not declared, on such share of 5% Preferred through the date of redemption or conversion, as the case may be
(assuming such dividends would be paid in cash);

"CP" means the Conversion Price (as herein defined) in effect on the date of the Redemption Notice;

"LCP" means lowest Conversion Price (using an Applicable Percentage (as herein defined) of 27%) during the period beginning on the date of the
Redemption Notice and ending on the date of redemption or conversion, as the case may be, or, if then in effect and lower, the Conversion Cap (as herein
defined); and

"M" means the highest closing bid price (as herein defined) of the Corporation's Common Stock during the period beginning on the date of the Redemption
Notice and ending on the date of the redemption or conversion, as the case may be.

(iii) Redemption Defaults. If the Corporation fails to pay any holder the Redemption Amount with respect to any share of 5% Preferred within five
(5) business days of its receipt of a notice requiring such redemption (a "REDEMPTION NOTICE"), then the holder of 5% Preferred delivering such
Redemption Notice (x) shall be entitled to interest on the Redemption Amount at a per annum rate equal to the lower of twenty-four percent (24%) or the
highest rate permitted by applicable law from the date of the Redemption Notice until the date of redemption hereunder, and (y) shall have the right, at any
time and from time to time, to require the Corporation, upon written notice, to immediately convert (in accordance with the terms of Section 4 hereof) all or
any portion of the Redemption Amount, plus interest as aforesaid, into shares of Common Stock at the lowest Conversion Price in effect during the period
beginning on the date of the Redemption Notice and ending on the Conversion Date with respect to the conversion of such Redemption Amount.

(iv) Within five (5) business days after its receipt of a Redemption Notice and subject to the limitations of Section 10 hereof, the Corporation may,
in lieu of the redemption required pursuant to Section 2(b)(i), issue Common Stock with respect to shares of 5% Preferred sought to be redeemed pursuant to
Section 2(b)(i) with respect to the Redemption Events specified in paragraphs A, B (only where the delay or inability to use is caused by a stop order
threatened or issued, or other similar action taken, by the SEC or its staff), E and F above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation may not elect to
use Common Stock to effect such a redemption unless the notice requirements of paragraph (i) above have been complied with, unless all holders of 5%
Preferred electing to be redeemed pursuant to paragraph (i) above receive the Common Stock with respect to such Redemption Event, unless all shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the 5% Preferred and upon exercise of the Warrants whether outstanding or issuable upon conversion thereof are
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, unless there is available for delivery upon resale of such shares of Common Stock a prospectus meeting the
requirements of said Act and the rules thereunder, unless all such shares are eligible to be traded on either the NNM, NSCM, the NYSE or the AMEX and
unless the Common Stock is then registered under Section 12(b) or Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In the event the Corporation elects
to issue Common Stock in accordance with the foregoing, the restrictions on the sale of Common Stock contained in Section 3.3 of the Securities Purchase
Agreements shall be of no further force or effect. If the limitations contained in Section 10 hereof apply, then the Corporation shall not be required to pay any
cash in respect of a redemption of shares of 5% Preferred which are not converted as a result of such limitation.
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(v) In the event the Corporation is not at any time able to redeem all of the shares of 5% Preferred subject to Redemption Notices, the Corporation
shall redeem shares of 5% Preferred from each holder pro rata, based on the total number of shares of 5% Preferred in all of the Redemption Notices.

3. MANDATORY CONVERSION.

(a) Subject to the limitations of Section 10 hereof and the remaining provisions of this Section 3(a), at any time more than 12 months after the
closing date, the Corporation may require that all of the shares of 5% Preferred be converted (a "Required Conversion") by irrevocably giving notice ("Notice
of Required Conversion") to the holders of the 5% Preferred specifying the date of required conversion (the "Required Conversion Date") and the place for
delivery of certificates upon conversion. Such Notice shall comply with the requirements of paragraph (i) of this Section 3(a) and shall be mailed, first class
postage prepaid, by the Corporation to each holder of record of the 5% Preferred at the address last shown on the records of the Corporation for such holder
and shall be transmitted by telecopy (facsimile) transmission at least 20 trading days and no more than 30 trading days in advance of the Required Conversion
Date.

(i) A Notice of Required Conversion may not be given unless Common Stock equal to 150% of the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of the 5% Preferred and upon exercise of the Warrants whether outstanding or issuable upon conversion thereof are reserved for
issuance to holders of the 5% Preferred and are registered for resale by the holders (determined separately for each holder) under the Act, and there is
available for delivery upon resale of such shares of Common Stock a prospectus meeting the requirements of said Act and the rules thereunder and such
shares are eligible to be traded on either the NNM, the NSCM, the NYSE or the AMEX and the Common Stock is then registered under Section 12(b) or
Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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(ii) The Conversion Price upon Required Conversion shall be 73% of the average of the low trading prices on the five trading days
immediately preceding the Required Conversion Date or, if in effect and lower, the Conversion Cap; provided, that if the Required Conversion Date is within
10 trading days after an underwritten public offering of equity securities of the Corporation, the Conversion Price shall be determined as of the Required
Conversion Date in accordance with Section 4(d) and (e) below. The terms "low trading price" and "trading day" have the meanings given them in Section
4(d) hereof.

(iii) Not later than the Required Conversion Date each holder of 5% Preferred shall surrender to the Corporation the certificate or certificates
representing the shares of 5% Preferred held by such holder at the place designated by the Corporation in the Notice of Required Conversion, and the
Corporation shall deliver to such holder within two business day thereafter (three business days if the address for delivery is an offshore address) the
certificates representing the Common Stock and Warrants to which such holder is entitled upon conversion, subject, however, to receipt of duly endorsed
certificates for the shares of 5% Preferred being so converted.

(iv) After receipt of a Notice of Required Conversion and prior to the Required Conversion Date holders shall be free to convert their shares of
5% Preferred in accordance with the optional conversion provisions of Section 4 hereof with the Conversion Price determined at an Applicable Percentage of
27.0% or, if lower, at the Conversion Cap.

(v) From and after delivery by the Corporation of a Notice of Required Conversion, the sales limitations contained in Section 3.3 of the
Securities Purchase Agreements shall be of no further force and effect.

(b) On the fifth anniversary of the closing date, all then outstanding shares of 5% Preferred shall be automatically converted at the Conversion Price
on such anniversary date and otherwise pursuant to the applicable provisions set forth in Section 4(c) and (d) and (e) hereof at an Applicable Percentage of
27.0% or, if lower, at a Conversion Price equal to the Conversion Cap; provided, however, that the holders of such 5% Preferred are not required to deliver a
Notice of Required Conversion or any other notice to the Corporation.

4. CONVERSION. The holders of the 5% Preferred shall have optional conversion rights as follows:

(a) Commencement of Conversion Rights. Commencing on the day after the fifth month anniversary of the closing date, the shares of 5% Preferred
shall become convertible.

(b) Right to Convert.

(i) At and after the time it has become convertible, each share of 5% Preferred shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, into (A)
such number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing (1) the Liquidation Preference of such 5% Preferred share
determined pursuant to Section 2 hereof on the date the notice of conversion is given, by (2) the Conversion Price determined as hereinafter provided in effect
on said date; and, in addition to such shares of Common Stock, (B) Warrants to purchase one-fourth of the number of shares of Common Stock determined
pursuant to the foregoing clause (A).
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(ii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Shares shall not be convertible by a holder hereof to the extent (but only to
the extent) that, if convertible by such holder, such holder would beneficially own in excess of 4.9% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (or such
other percentage indicated on the signature page to, or otherwise applicable to such holder pursuant to, the Securities Purchase Agreements). To the extent the
above limitation applies, the determination of whether Shares shall be convertible (vis-a-vis other securities owned by such holder) and of which Shares shall
be convertible shall be in the sole discretion of the holder thereof and submission of shares of 5% Preferred for conversion shall be deemed to be the holder's
determination of whether such Shares are convertible and of which Shares are convertible, subject to such aggregate percentage limitation. No prior inability
to convert Shares pursuant to this paragraph shall have any effect on the applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent
determination of convertibility. For the purposes of this provision, beneficial ownership and all calculations, including without limitation, with respect to
calculations of percentage ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
Regulation 13 D and G thereunder (collectively "Section 13(d)"). The provisions of this Section may be waived and/or implemented in a manner otherwise
than strictly in conformity with the foregoing provisions of this Section 4(b)(ii) with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Corporation and the holders
of three quarters in interest in the then outstanding Shares and Warrants (voting together as a single class): (i) with respect to any matter to cure any ambiguity
herein, to correct this Section (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended 4.9% beneficial ownership limitation herein
contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such 4.9% limitation; and (ii) with respect to any other matter,
with the further consent of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply
to a successor holder of Shares if, and to the extent, elected by such successor holder concurrently with its acquisition of such Shares, such election to be
promptly confirmed in writing to the Corporation (provided no transfer or series of transfers to a successor holder or holders shall be used by a holder to
evade the limitations contained in this paragraph).

(c) Mechanics of Conversion. To convert shares of 5% Preferred into shares of Common Stock and Warrants, the holder shall give written notice to
the Corporation in the form of the Notice of Conversion attached to the Securities Purchase Agreements (which notice may be given by facsimile
transmission) that such holder elects to convert the same and shall state therein the number of Shares to be converted and the name or names in which such
holder wishes the certificate or certificates for shares of Common Stock and Warrants to be issued. Promptly thereafter the holder shall surrender the
certificate or certificates representing the Shares to be converted, duly endorsed (with signatures guaranteed in case of transfer to another name), at the office
of the transfer agent for the shares of Common Stock, or at such other reasonable place as may be designated in writing by the Corporation. Upon receipt by
the Corporation of a facsimile copy of such notice of conversion from a holder of shares of 5% Preferred, the Corporation shall forthwith send, via facsimile,
a confirmation of receipt of such Notice of Conversion to such holder, which shall specify that the Notice of Conversion has been received and the name and
telephone number of a contact person at the Corporation whom the holder should contact regarding information related to such conversion. In the case of a
dispute as to the calculation of the Conversion Price, the Corporation shall promptly issue to the holder the number of shares of Common Stock that is not
disputed and shall submit the disputed calculations to its outside accountant via facsimile within two (2) days of receipt of such Notice of Conversion. The
Corporation shall cause the accountant to perform the calculations and notify the Corporation and the holder of the results no later than forty-eight (48) hours
from the time it receives the disputed calculations. Such accountant's calculation shall be deemed conclusive absent manifest error. The Corporation shall,
immediately upon receipt of such facsimile Notice of Conversion, cause to be prepared for issue and delivery to or upon the order of such holder, against
delivery of the certificates representing the Shares which have been converted, a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock, and the
Warrant certificate to which such holder shall be entitled. Upon delivery of such duly endorsed Share certificates, the Corporation shall effect such issuance
immediately and shall on the same day (if such duly endorsed certificate is delivered by 12:00 noon Pacific Time) or the next business day (if such duly
endorsed certificate is delivered after 12:00 noon Pacific Time) transmit the certificates by messenger or nationally (or internationally, as the case may be)
recognized overnight delivery service to reach the address designated by such holder within one business day (two business days for addresses outside of the
United States) (such time for delivery of share certificates being the "Delivery Period"). Facsimile Notice of Conversion may be given by a holder at any time
of day up to 11:59 PM Pacific time, and such conversion shall be deemed to have been made immediately prior to the close of business on the date such
Notice of Conversion is given (the "Conversion Date"). The person or persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock and Warrants issuable upon
such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such securities at the close of business on the Conversion Date.

43




(d) Determination of Conversion Price.

(i) Subject to paragraph (iii) below, on any Conversion Date, the Conversion Price shall be the average of the low trading price of the Common
Stock for the five consecutive trading days (the "Lookback Period") ending with the trading day prior to the Conversion Date, reduced by the Applicable
Percentage (as defined below) in effect on the Conversion Date.

(ii) The Applicable Percentage shall escalate and be as follows:

0.0% Starting on the 1st day of the 6th month after the closing date
13% Starting on the 1st day of the 8th month after the closing date
20% Starting on the 1st day of the 10th month after the closing date
22.5% Starting on the 1st day of the 12th month after the closing date
25% Starting on the 1st day of the 14th month after the closing date

27% Starting on the 1st day of the 16th month after the closing date, and thereafter

For purposes of this resolution, the term "months" means calendar months, and when months are measured after the closing date, each such month shall end
on a monthly anniversary of the closing date. For example, if the closing date were April 10, 1997, the fifth month after the closing date would end on and
would include September 10, 1997, the sixth month after the closing date would commence on September 11, 1997 and end on October 10, 1997, and the
twelfth month after the closing date would commence on March 11, 1998 and would end on April 10, 1998.

(iii) At any date after March 24, 1998, the Conversion Price shall be the lower of (x) the Conversion Price calculated in accordance with

paragraphs (i) and (ii) above and (y) the average of the closing prices of the Common Stock for the thirty (30) trading days including and immediately
preceding March 24, 1998 (such average being the "Conversion Cap").
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(iv) The terms "low trading price", "last sale price" and "closing bid price" of the Common Stock on any day shall mean, respectively, (A) the
lowest reported sale price, the last reported sale price and the last reported bid price of the Common Stock on the principal stock exchange on which the
Common Stock is listed, or (B) if the Common Stock is not listed on a stock exchange, the lowest reported sale price, the last reported sale price and the last
reported bid price of the Common Stock on the principal automated securities price quotation system on which sale prices of the Common Stock are reported,
or (c) if the Common Stock is not listed on a stock exchange and sale prices of the Common Stock are not reported on an automated quotation system, the
lowest bid price, the last bid price and the last bid price for the Common Stock as reported by National Quotation Bureau Incorporated if at least two
securities dealers have inserted both bid and asked quotations for the Common Stock on at least five of the ten preceding trading days. If none of the
foregoing provisions are applicable, the "low trading price", "last sale price" and the "closing bid price" of the Common Stock on a day will be the fair market
value of the Common Stock on that day as determined by a member firm of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., selected by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation and reasonably acceptable to the holders of the majority of the 5% Preferred. The term "trading day" means (x) if the Common Stock is listed on
at least one stock exchange, a day on which there is trading on the principal stock exchange on which the Common Stock is listed, (y) if the Common Stock is
not listed on a stock exchange but sale prices of the Common Stock are reported on an automated quotation system, a day on which trading is reported on the
principal automated quotation system on which sales of the Common Stock are reported, or (z) if the foregoing provisions are inapplicable, a day on which
quotations are reported by National Quotation Bureau Incorporated. The "closing price" of the Common Stock on any day means the "last sale price" as
defined above.

(v) In the event that during any period of consecutive trading days provided for above, the Corporation shall declare or pay any dividend on the
Common Stock payable in Common Stock or in rights to acquire Common Stock, or shall effect a stock split or reverse stock split, or a combination,
consolidation or reclassification of the Common Stock, then the Conversion Price and (if such event occurs during the thirty (30) trading days referred to in
paragraph (iii) next above) the Conversion Cap shall be proportionately decreased or increased, as appropriate, to give effect to such event. If such an event
occurs after March 24, 1998, the Conversion Cap shall be proportionately decreased or increased to give effect to such event.

(e) Certain Adjustments. (i) If the Corporation shall declare or make any distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of
Common Stock as a partial liquidating dividend, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the Corporation's
shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e. a spin-off)) (a "Distribution"), then the holders of 5% Preferred
shall also be entitled, upon any conversion of shares of 5% Preferred after the date of record for determining shareholders entitled to such Distribution, to
receive the kind and amount of such assets which would have been payable to the holder with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion (without giving effect to any of the provisions contained herein or in the Securities Purchase Agreement which limit or restrict conversion of
Shares) had such holder been the holder of such shares of Common Stock on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to such
Distribution.
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(ii) In the event the Corporation (i) makes a public announcement that it intends to consolidate or merge with any other entity (other than a
merger in which the Corporation is the surviving or continuing entity and its capital stock is unchanged and there is no distribution thereof) or to sell or
transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or (ii) any person, group or entity (including the Corporation) publicly announces a tender offer
to purchase 50% or more of the Common Stock (the date of the announcement referred to in clause (i) or (ii) of this paragraph (ii) is hereinafter referred to as
the "Announcement Date"), then the Conversion Price shall, effective upon the Announcement Date and continuing through the consummation of the
proposed tender offer or transaction or the Abandonment Date (as defined below), be equal to the lower of (x) the Conversion Price calculated in the manner
provided in Section 4(d) and 4(e), and (y) the Conversion Price which would have been applicable for an Optional Conversion occurring on the
Announcement Date. From and after the Abandonment Date, as the case may be, the Conversion Price shall be determined as set forth in Sections 4(d) and
4(e) hereof. "Abandonment Date" means with respect to any proposed transaction or tender offer for which a public announcement as contemplated by this
paragraph (ii) has been made, the date which is seven trading days after the date upon which the Corporation (in the case of clause (i) above) or the person,
group or entity (in the case of clause (ii) above) publicly announces the termination or abandonment of the proposed transaction or tender offer which causes
this paragraph to become operative. Without implication that the contrary would otherwise be true, the provisions of this paragraph (ii) shall not apply with
respect to that certain share exchange involving Peregrine Pharmaceutical Inc. as described in the Securities Purchase Agreements.

(f) Certificates as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of any adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Price or the Conversion Cap pursuant
to this Section 4, the Corporation at its expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms hereof and cause
independent public accountants selected by the Corporation to verify such computation and prepare and furnish to each holder of 5% Preferred a certificate
setting forth such adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The Corporation shall,
upon the written request at any time of any holder of 5% Preferred, furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a like certificate prepared by the
Corporation setting forth (i) such adjustments and readjustments, and (ii) the number of other securities and the amount, if any, of other property which at the
time would be received upon the conversion of 5% Preferred with respect to each share of Common Stock received upon such conversion.

(g) Notice of Record Date. In the event of any taking by the Corporation of a record of the holders of any class of securities for the purpose of
determining the holders thereof who are entitled to receive any dividend (other than a non-extraordinary cash dividend) or other distribution, any security or
right convertible into or entitling the holder thereof to receive additional shares of Common Stock, or any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire
any shares of stock of any class or any other securities or property, or to receive any other right, the Corporation shall mail to each holder of 5% Preferred at
least 10 days prior to the date specified therein, a notice specifying the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend,
distribution, security or right and the amount and character of such dividend, distribution, security or right.

(h) Issue Taxes. The Corporation shall pay any and all issue and other taxes, excluding any income, franchise or similar taxes, that may be payable

in respect of any issue or delivery of shares of Common Stock on conversion of shares of 5% Preferred pursuant hereto; provided, however, that the
Corporation shall not be obligated to pay any transfer taxes resulting from any transfer requested by any holder in connection with any such conversion.
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(i) Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. (A) The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but
unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purposes of effecting the conversion of the shares of the 5% Preferred and allowing the exercise of the
Warrants, such number of its shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all shares of the 5% Preferred
(including shares of 5% Preferred issuable as dividends on shares of 5% Preferred) and the exercise of the Warrants (including Warrants issuable upon
conversion of the 5% Preferred) (the "Reserved Amount"), and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall not be
sufficient for such purposes, the Corporation will take such corporate action as may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary to increase its authorized but
unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient for such purposes, including, without limitation, engaging in best efforts to
obtain the requisite Board of Directors and shareholder approval. The Reserved Amount shall be allocated to the holders of 5% Preferred as provided in this
paragraph (i).

(B) Upon adoption of this Certificate of Designation by the Corporation's Board of Directors, the Corporation shall have reserved 15,500,000
(the "Initial Reserved Amount") authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock for issuance upon conversion of the 5% Preferred and exercise of the
Warrants issuable upon conversion thereof. Subject to paragraphs (A) and (C) of this paragraph (i), the Initial Reserved Amount shall be reduced to the extent
that the total amount of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Shares or the exercise of the Warrants (including Warrants issuable upon conversation
of 5% Preferred) is reduced by the exercise or conversion, as the case may be, of such securities.

(C) Without limiting any of the foregoing, commencing October 1, 1997, if the Reserved Amount for any three (3) consecutive trading days
(the last of such three (3) trading days being the "Authorization Trigger Date") shall be less than 150% of the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of all shares of 5% Preferred (including shares of 5% Preferred which are issued as dividends on shares of 5% Preferred and shares of 5%
Preferred issuable with respect to then accrued and unpaid dividends) and the exercise of all Warrants (including Warrants to be issuable upon conversion of
the 5% Preferred) on such trading days, the Corporation shall immediately notify the holders of 5% Preferred and the Warrants of such occurrence and shall
take immediate action (including seeking shareholder approval to authorize the issuance of additional shares of Common Stock) to increase the Reserved
Amount to 150% of such number of shares of Common Stock. In the event the Corporation fails to so increase the Reserved Amount within ninety (90) days
after an Authorization Trigger Date, each holder of 5% Preferred Stock shall thereafter have the option, exercisable in whole or in part at any time and from
time to time by delivery of a Redemption Notice (as defined in Section 2(b)) to the Corporation, to require the Corporation to purchase for cash, in
accordance with Section 2(b) as if the service of such Redemption Notice constituted a Redemption Event with respect to the Shares required to be purchased
hereunder and as to which the Corporation could elect to make the required redemption with Common Stock under such Section 2(b), a portion of the holder's
5% Preferred such that, after giving effect to such purchase, the holder's allocated portion of the Reserved Amount exceeds 150% of such total number of
shares of Common Stock allocable to such holder. If the Corporation fails to redeem any of such Shares within five (5) business days after its receipt of a
Redemption Notice, then such holder shall be entitled to the remedies provided in Section 2(b)(iii) as if such failure constituted a Redemption Default.
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(D) The Initial Reserved Amount, the Reserved Amount and each increase to the Reserved Amount shall be allocated pro rata among the
holders of 5% Preferred based on the number of shares of 5% Preferred and Warrants held by each holder at the time of the establishment of or increase in the
Initial Reserved Amount or Reserved Amount, as the case may be. In the event a holder shall sell or otherwise transfer any of such holders shares of 5%
Preferred or Warrants, each transferee shall be allocated a pro rata portion of such transferor's Initial Reserved Amount or Reserved Amount. Any portion of
the Initial Reserved Amount or Reserved Amount which remains allocated to any person or entity which does not hold any 5% Preferred Stock or Warrants
shall be allocated to the remaining holders of shares of 5% Preferred Stock and Warrants, pro rata on the number of shares of 5% Preferred and Warrants then
held by such holders.

(j) Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or fractional Warrants shall be issued upon the conversion of any share or shares of 5% Preferred. All
shares of Common Stock and Warrants (including fractions thereof) issuable upon conversion of more than one share of 5% Preferred by a holder thereof
shall be aggregated for purposes of determining whether the conversion would result in the issuance of any fractional share. If, after the aforementioned
aggregation, the conversion would result in the issuance of a fraction of a share of Common Stock or a fractional Warrant, the Corporation shall, in lieu of
issuing any such fraction, pay the holder otherwise entitled to such fraction a sum in cash equal to the fair market value of such fraction on the date of
conversion (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation).

(k) Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be effective (a) upon hand
delivery or delivery by telecopy or facsimile at the address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where
such notice is to be received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where
such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such
address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be the addresses set forth for the
applicable party in the Securities Purchase Agreements. Any party entitled to notice hereunder may from time to time change its address for notices by giving
at least 10 days' written notice of such changed address to the other parties subject to the notice provisions hereof. This paragraph shall not affect the
provisions of Section 4 hereof with respect to conversion and the mechanics thereof.

(1) Reorganization or Merger. In case of any reorganization or any reclassification of the capital stock of the Corporation or any consolidation or
merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or corporations or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation to any other
person, then, as part of such reorganization, consolidation, merger or sale, provision shall be made so that each share of 5% Preferred shall thereafter be
convertible into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) to which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of such share of 5% Preferred (including shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of Warrants issuable upon conversion of
such share of 5% Preferred) would have been entitled upon the record date of (or date of, if no record date is fixed) such event (without giving effect to any of
the provisions contained herein or in the Securities Purchase Agreement or the Warrants which limit or restrict conversion of Shares or exercise of Warrants)
and, in any case, appropriate adjustment (as determined by the Board of Directors) shall be made in the application of the provisions herein set forth with
respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the holders of the 5% Preferred, to the end that the provisions set forth herein shall thereafter be applicable, as
nearly as equivalent as is practicable, in relation to any shares of stock or the securities or property (including cash) thereafter deliverable upon the conversion
of the shares of 5% Preferred.
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(m) Conversion Default Payments. If, at any time, (x) a holder of shares of 5% Preferred submits a Notice of Conversion and the Corporation fails
for any reason (other than because such issuance would exceed such holder's allocated portion of the Reserved Amount, for which failure the holders shall
have the remedies set forth in Section 4(i)) to deliver, on or prior to the fourth business day following the expiration of the Delivery Period for such
conversion, the shares of Common Stock to which such holder is entitled upon such conversion, or (y) the Corporation provides notice to any holder of 5%
Preferred at any time of its intention not to issue shares of Common Stock upon exercise by any holder of its conversion rights in accordance with the terms
of these 5% Preferred other than because such issuance would exceed such holder's allocated portion of the Reserved Amount (each of (x) and (y) being a
"Conversion Default"), then the Corporation shall pay to the affected holder, in the case of a Conversion Default described in clause (x) above, and to all
holders of 5% Preferred, in the case of a Conversion Default described in clause (y) above, payments for the first ten (10) business days following the
expiration of the Delivery Period, in the case of a Conversion Default described in clause (x), and for the first ten (10) business days of any other Conversion
Default, an amount equal to $1,000 per day. In the event any Conversion Default continues beyond such ten (10) business day period, the Corporation shall
pay to the applicable holder(s) (consistent with the foregoing) an additional cash amount equal to one percent (1%) per day of the liquidation preference on
the Shares submitted for conversion in the case of clause (x) above and of the holder's outstanding shares of 5% Preferred in the case of clause (y) above. In
addition, notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, in the event of a Conversion Default, the Conversion Price with respect to each share of
5% Preferred shall be equal to the lowest Conversion Price (assuming an Applicable Percentage of 27% and, without implication that the contrary would
otherwise be true, giving effect to the Conversion Cap, if applicable) on any date from the commencement of such Conversion Default through the date on
which such share is actually converted.

(n) Retention of Rights as Holder of Shares of 5% Preferred. If a holder has not received certificates for all shares of Common Stock prior to the
tenth (10th) business day after the expiration of the Delivery Period with respect to a conversion of shares of 5% Preferred for any reason, then the
Corporation shall, as soon as practicable, return such unconverted shares of 5% Preferred Stock to the holder and (unless the holder otherwise elects to retain
its status as a holder of Common Stock) the holder shall be deemed to retain the rights of a holder of shares of 5% Preferred with respect to such Shares. In all
cases, the holder shall retain all of its rights and remedies (including, without limitation, the right to receive Conversion Default payments pursuant to
paragraph 4(m) above to the extent required thereby as a result of such Conversion Default and any subsequent Conversion Default).
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5. OTHER PROVISIONS. For all purposes of this Resolution, the terms "date of issuance" and "closing date" shall mean the day on which shares of
the 5% Preferred are first issued by the Corporation, and the terms "trading price", "low trading price", "closing price", "last trade price", and "trading days"
shall have the meanings given them in Section 4(d) hereof. Any provision herein which conflicts with or violates any applicable usury law shall be deemed

modified to the extent necessary to avoid such conflict or violation.

6. RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS. So long as any shares of 5% Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Corporation shall not, without first
obtaining the prior approval of the holders of at least two-thirds of the then outstanding shares of 5% Preferred:

(a) alter or change the rights preferences or privileges of the 5% Preferred;
(b) alter or change the rights, preferences or privileges of any capital stock of the Corporation so as to affect adversely the 5% Preferred;

(c) create any new class or series of capital stock on parity with or having a preference over the 5% Preferred as to dividends or as to distribution of
assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation;

(d) increase the authorized number of shares of 5% Preferred;

(e) issue any shares of 5% Preferred other than pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreements;

(f) redeem or declare or pay any dividend or distribution with respect to the Corporation's Common Stock during the first two years following the
closing date or redeem, or declare or pay any cash dividend or distribution on, any capital stock of the Corporation ranking junior to the 5% Preferred as to

dividends or as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (including the Common Stock); or

(g) enter into (or agree to enter into) a consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or corporations, or a sale of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation.

If holders of at least two-thirds of the then outstanding shares of 5% Preferred agree to allow the Corporation to alter or change the rights, preferences or
privileges of the shares of 5% Preferred pursuant to subsection (a) above, then the Corporation shall deliver notice of such approved change to the holders of
the 5% Preferred that did not agree to such alteration or change (the "Dissenting Holders") and the Dissenting Holders shall have the right, for a period of
thirty (30) days, to convert all of their shares of 5% Preferred pursuant to the terms of these 5% Preferred as they existed prior to such alteration or change or
to continue to hold their shares of 5% Preferred.

7. VOTING RIGHTS. Except as provided herein or as provided for by law, the 5% Preferred shall have no voting rights.
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8. ATTORNEYS' FEES. Any holder of 5% Preferred shall be entitled to recover from the Corporation the reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses
incurred by such holder in connection with enforcement by such holder of any obligation of the Corporation hereunder.

9. LOST OR STOLEN CERTIFICATES. Upon receipt by the Corporation of (i) evidence of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of any
certificate(s) for the 5% Preferred and (ii)(y) in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation, or (z) in the case
of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of the certificate(s) for the 5% Preferred, the Corporation shall execute and deliver new certificate(s) for the
5% Preferred of like tenor and date. However, the Corporation shall not be obligated to reissue such lost or stolen Certificate(s) if the holder
contemporaneously requests the Corporation to convert all such shares 5% Preferred covered by such certificate(s).

10. SPECIAL LIMITATIONS. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, shares of 5% Preferred shall not be convertible pursuant to
Sections 2(b) or 3 hereof to the extent that, if converted with respect to a holder thereof, such holder would beneficially own in excess of 4.9% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock. To the extent the above limitation applies, the determination of whether Shares shall be convertible (vis-a-vis other
securities owned by such holder) and of which Shares shall be convertible shall be in the sole discretion of the holder thereof and submission of shares of 5%
Preferred for conversion shall be deemed to be the holder's determination of whether Shares are convertible (vis-a-vis other securities owned by such holder)
and of which Shares are convertible, subject to such aggregate percentage limitation. No prior inability to convert Shares pursuant to this paragraph shall have
any effect on the applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent determination of convertibility. For the purposes of this
Section, beneficial ownership and all calculations, including without limitation, with respect to calculations of percentage ownership shall be determined in
accordance with Section 13(d). The provisions of this Section may be waived and/or implemented in a manner otherwise than strictly in conformity with the
foregoing provisions of this Section 10 with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Corporation and the holders of three quarters in interest in the then
outstanding Shares and Warrants (voting together as a single class):

(i) with respect to any matter to cure any ambiguity herein, to correct this Section (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the
intended 4.9% beneficial ownership limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such
4.9% limitation; and

(i) with respect to any other matter, with the further consent of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock. A holder of
Shares shall not take unreasonable actions for the intended primary purpose of causing the Corporation to be unable to convert Shares as a result of the
limitations contained within this Section 10.

11. SPECIFIC ENFORCEMENT. No provision of this Certificate of Designation providing for any remedy to a holder of 5% Preferred shall limit any
remedy which would otherwise be available to such holder at law or in equity. Irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this
Certificate of Designation or the other agreements, documents or instruments contemplated hereby (collectively, the "Transaction Documents") were not
performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that each holder of shares of 5% Preferred shall be
entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent or cure breaches of the provisions of the Transaction Documents and to enforce specifically the terms and
provisions thereof, this being in addition to any other remedy to which each holder of shares of 5% Preferred may be entitled by law or equity. No provision
of any Transaction Documents providing for any remedy to a holder of shares of 5% Preferred shall limit any remedy which would otherwise be available to
such holder at law or in equity.

12. TRANSFERABILITY. The Shares may be transferred by the holder pursuant to an exempt transaction (and the holder shall not be required to
provide the Corporation with an opinion of counsel in the case of a transfer to an affiliate) or pursuant to a registration statement under the Act.

13. WARRANTS. The terms and conditions of the Warrants and the form of certificates representing the Warrants shall be as attached hereto."
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Certificate of Designation of 5% Adjustable Convertible Class C Preferred Stock to be duly
executed by its Chief Financial Officer and Secretary this 22nd day of April, 1997.
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION
By: /s/ William V. Moding

William V. Moding, Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary
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STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT
WARRANT TO PURCHASE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
ISSUE DATE:

EXPIRATION: UNLESS EARLIER EXERCISED OR TERMINATED AS HEREIN PROVIDED, THIS WARRANT SHALL EXPIRE AT 5:00 PM.,
PACIFIC TIME, ON THE FIFTH ANNIVERSARY OF THE CLOSING DATE DEFINED IN THE RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE PREFERENCES
OF THE 5% ADJUSTABLE CONVERTIBLE CLASS "C" PREFERRED STOCK OF THE COMPANY

TECHNICLONE CORPORATION

This certifies that , the registered holder hereof or assigns (the "Warrantholder") is entitled to
purchase from Techniclone Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), at any time after March 24, 1998 and before 5:00 PM Pacific Time on the
fifth anniversary of the closing date as defined in Section 5 of the Resolution establishing the preferences of the 5% Adjustable Convertible Class "C"
Preferred Stock of the Company (the "Expiration Time") at the purchase price per share determined pursuant to Section 1.4 hereof (the "Warrant Price"), the
number of shares shown above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Expiration Time shall be extended for 30 days with respect to any Warrants acquired upon
conversion of any such shares of Preferred Stock within 30 days prior to such fifth anniversary. The number of shares purchasable upon exercise of this
Warrant and the Warrant Price per share shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as set forth below.

SECTION 1. TRANSFERABILITY AND FORM OF WARRANT.
1.1 REGISTRATION. This Warrant shall be numbered and shall be registered on the books of the Company.

1.2 TRANSFER. This Warrant shall be transferable on the books of the Company only upon delivery thereof duly endorsed by the Warrantholder or its
duly authorized attorney or representative, accompanied by proper evidence of succession, assignment or authority to transfer. Upon any registration of
transfer, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant to the person entitled thereto. This Warrant may be divided or combined, upon request to the
Company by the Warrantholder, into a certificate or certificates representing the right to purchase the same aggregate number of shares. Unless the context
indicates otherwise, the term "Warrantholder" shall include any transferee or transferees of a Warrant and the term "Warrant" shall include any and all
warrants issued upon division, exchange, substitution or transfer of this Warrant.

1.3 FORM OF WARRANT. The Warrant shall be executed on behalf of the Company by its President, Vice President or other authorized officer, and
shall be dated as of the date of signature thereof by the Company either upon initial issuance or upon division, exchange, substitution or transfer. A Warrant
bearing the signature of an individual who was at any time the proper officer of the Company shall bind the Company, notwithstanding that such individual
shall have ceased to hold such office prior to the delivery of such Warrant.
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1.4 WARRANT PRICE. The initial purchase price per share at which shares of Common Stock may be purchased upon exercise of this Warrant (the
"Warrant Price") shall be 110% of the Conversion Cap as determined pursuant to Section 4(d)(iii) of the Resolution establishing the preferences of the 5%
Adjustable Convertible Class "C" Preferred Stock of the Company, as contained in the Certificate of Designations of such Preferred Stock filed by the
Company with the Delaware Secretary of State. If this Warrant shall be issued prior to determination of the Warrant Price as aforesaid, upon such
determination this Warrant shall be deemed to incorporate the Warrant Price as so determined.

SECTION 2. PAYMENT OF TAXES.

The Company will pay all documentary stamp taxes, if any, attributable to the initial issuance of shares to the Warrantholder; provided, however, that the
Company shall not be required to pay any tax or taxes which may be payable in respect of any secondary transfer of the Warrant or the shares.

SECTION 3. MUTILATED OR MISSING WARRANTS.

In case this Warrant shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall, at the request of the Warrantholder, issue and deliver in exchange and
substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Warrant, or in lieu of and in substitution for the lost, stolen or destroyed Warrant, a new Warrant of like
tenor, but only upon receipt of evidence satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction of such Warrant. The applicant shall also comply with
such other reasonable regulations and pay such other reasonable administrative charges as the Company may prescribe.

SECTION 4. RESERVATION OF SHARES.

There has been reserved, and the Company shall at all times keep reserved so long as this Warrant remains outstanding, out of its authorized shares of capital
stock, such number and class of shares as shall be subject to purchase under this Warrant and such reserved shares shall be used solely for issuances upon
exercise of this Warrant.

SECTION 5. EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

5.1 EXERCISE. Prior to the Expiration Time the Holder of this Warrant shall have the right at any time and from time to time to exercise this Warrant in
full or in part by surrender of this Warrant to the Company accompanied by payment to the Company in cash or by certified or cashier's check or by wire
transfer of funds of the aggregate Warrant Price for the number of shares in respect of which this Warrant is then exercised. If the Issue Date is prior to the
determination of the Warrant Price, this Warrant may not be exercised until the Warrant Price has been determined. In addition, and notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained in this Warrant, this Warrant may be exercised by presentation and surrender of this Warrant to the Company with a written notice of
the holder's intention to effect a cashless exercise, including a calculation of the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon such exercise in
accordance with the terms hereof (a "Cashless Exercise"). In the event of a Cashless Exercise, in lieu of paying the Warrant Price in cash, the holder shall
surrender this Warrant for, and the Company shall issue in respect thereof, that number of shares of Common Stock determined by multiplying the number of
shares of Common Stock to which the holder would otherwise be entitled upon a cash exercise hereof by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the
difference between the then Current Market Price (as herein defined) and the Warrant Price, and the denominator of which shall be the then Current Market
Price.
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5.2 DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES. Upon exercise of this Warrant the Company shall issue and cause to be delivered with all reasonable dispatch to
or upon the written order of the Warrantholder and in such name or names as the Warrantholder may designate, a certificate or certificates for the number of
full shares issuable upon such exercise together with cash, as provided in Section 7 hereof, in respect of any fractional shares. The Company shall effect such
issuance immediately and shall transmit the certificates by messenger or overnight delivery service to reach the address designated by the Warrantholder
within two business days after receipt of the Warrant Price or, in the case of a Cashless Exercise, after the receipt of the Warrant. Such certificate or
certificates shall be deemed to have been issued and any person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such
shares as of the date of surrender of the Warrant and, to the extent applicable, payment of the Warrant Price, as aforesaid, notwithstanding that the certificates
representing such shares shall not actually have been delivered or that the stock transfer books of the Company shall then be closed. In the event of partial
exercise a new Warrant evidencing the remaining portion of this Warrant will be issued by the Company.

SECTION 6. ADJUSTMENT OF WARRANT PRICE AND NUMBER OF SHARES.

6.1 ADJUSTMENTS. The number and kind of securities purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants and the Warrant Price shall be subject to
adjustment from time to time upon the happening of certain events, as follows:

(a) In case the Company shall (i) pay a dividend in shares of Common Stock or make a distribution in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivide its
outstanding shares of Common Stock, (iii) combine its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares of Common Stock or (iv) issue
by reclassification of its Common Stock other securities of the Company, the number of shares purchasable upon exercise of the Warrants immediately prior
thereto shall be adjusted so that the Warrantholder shall be entitled to receive the kind and number of shares or other securities of the Company which it
would have owned or would have been entitled to receive after the happening of any of the events described above, had the Warrants been exercised
immediately prior to the happening of such event or any record date with respect thereto. Any adjustment made pursuant to this paragraph (a) shall become
effective immediately after the effective date of such event retroactive to the record date, if any, for such event.

(b) In case the Company shall issue rights, options, warrants or convertible securities to all or substantially all holders of its Common Stock,
without any charge to such holders, entitling them to subscribe for or to purchase shares of Common Stock at a price per share which is lower at the record
date mentioned below than the then Current Market Price (as defined in Section 7), the number of shares thereafter purchasable upon the exercise of the
Warrants shall be determined by multiplying the number of shares theretofore purchasable upon exercise of each Warrant by a fraction, of which the
numerator shall be (1) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the issuance of such rights, options or warrants plus (2) the
number of additional shares of Common Stock offered for subscription or purchase, and of which the denominator shall be (x) the number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the issuance of such rights, options or warrants plus (y) the number of shares which the aggregate offering
price of the total number of shares offered would purchase at the Current Market Price. Such adjustment shall be made whenever such rights, options or
warrants are issued, and shall become effective immediately and retroactively after the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive
such rights, options or warrants.
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(c) In case the Company shall distribute to all or substantially all holders of its shares of Common Stock evidences of its indebtedness or assets
(excluding non-extraordinary cash dividends or distributions out of current earnings) or rights, options, warrants or convertible securities containing the right
to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stock (excluding those referred to in paragraph (b) above), then, in each case, the number of shares thereafter
purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants shall be determined by multiplying the number of shares theretofore purchasable upon exercise of the Warrants
by a fraction, of which the numerator shall be the then Current Market Price on the date of such distribution, and of which the denominator shall be such
Current Market Price on such date minus the then fair value of the portion of the assets or evidence of indebtedness so distributed or of such subscription
rights, options or warrants applicable to one share. Such adjustment shall be made whenever any such distribution is made and shall become effective on the
date of distribution retroactive to the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution.

(d) If, at any time after the initial issuance of this Warrant, any event occurs of the type contemplated by the adjustment provisions of this Section
6.1 but not expressly provided for by such provisions, the Company's Board of Directors will make an appropriate adjustment in the Warrant Price and the
number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant so that the rights of the holder shall be neither enhanced nor diminished by such
event.

(e) No adjustment in the number of shares purchasable hereunder shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease of
at least one percent (1%) in the number of shares then purchasable upon the exercise of a Warrant; provided, however, that any adjustments which by reason
of this paragraph (e) are not required to be made immediately shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. The adjustments
set forth in this Section 6.1 shall be calculated and effected without regard to any limits on exercisability contained herein or in those certain Securities
Purchase Agreements dated April 24, 1997 (the "Securities Purchase Agreements").

(f) Whenever the number of shares purchasable upon the exercise of a Warrant is adjusted as herein provided, the Warrant Price payable upon
exercise of a Warrant shall be adjusted by multiplying such Warrant Price immediately prior to such adjustment by a fraction, of which the numerator shall be
the number of shares purchasable upon the exercise of a Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment, and of which the denominator shall be the number of
shares so purchasable immediately thereafter.
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(g) Whenever the number of shares purchasable upon the exercise of a Warrant or the Warrant Price is adjusted as herein provided, the Company
shall cause to be promptly mailed to the Warrantholder by first class mail, postage prepaid, notice of such adjustment or adjustments and a certificate of a firm
of independent public accountants selected by the Board of Directors of the Company (who may be the regular accountants employed by the Company)
setting forth the number of shares purchasable upon the exercise of a Warrant and the Warrant Price after such adjustment, together with a brief statement of
the facts requiring such adjustment and the computation by which such adjustment was made.

(h) The term "Common Stock" shall mean (i) the class of stock designated as the Common Stock of the Company at the issue date of this Warrant
or (ii) any other class of stock resulting from successive changes or reclassifications of such Common Stock. In the event that at any time, as a result of an
adjustment made pursuant to this Section, the Warrantholder shall become entitled to purchase any securities other than shares of Common Stock, thereafter
the number of such other securities so purchasable upon exercise of the Warrant and the Warrant Price of such securities shall be subject to adjustment from
time to time in a manner and on terms as nearly equivalent as practicable to the provisions with respect to the shares contained in this Section.

6.2 NO ADJUSTMENT FOR DIVIDENDS. Except as provided in Subsection 6.1, no adjustment in respect of any dividends shall be made during the
term of the Warrant or upon the exercise of the Warrant.

6.3 PRESERVATION OF PURCHASE RIGHTS UPON RECLASSIFICATION, CONSOLIDATION, ETC. In case of any reclassification of the
securities of the Company or any consolidation of the Company with or merger of the Company into another corporation or in case of any sale or conveyance
to another corporation of the property, assets or business of the Company as an entirety or substantially as an entirety, the Company or such successor or
purchasing corporation, as the case may be, shall provide by agreement that the Warrantholder shall have the right thereafter upon payment of the Warrant
Price in effect immediately prior to such action to purchase upon exercise of the Warrant the kind and amount of shares and other securities and property
which he would have owned or have been entitled to receive after the happening of such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance had the
Warrant been exercised (without regard to any limitations on exercise contained herein or the Securities Purchase Agreements) immediately prior to such
action. Such agreement shall provide for adjustments, which shall be as nearly equivalent as may be practicable to the adjustments provided for in this
Section. The provisions of this subsection shall similarly apply to successive reclassifications, consolidations, mergers, sales or conveyances.

6.4 STATEMENT ON WARRANT CERTIFICATES. Irrespective of any adjustments in the Warrant Price or the number of securities purchasable

upon the exercise of the Warrant, the Warrant certificate or certificates theretofore or thereafter issued may continue to express the same price and number of
securities as are stated in the similar Warrant certificates initially issuable pursuant to this Agreement.
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SECTION 7. FRACTIONAL INTERESTS; CURRENT MARKET PRICE; CLOSING BID PRICE.

The Company shall not be required to issue fractional shares on the exercise of the Warrant. If any fraction of a share would, except for the provisions of
this Section, be issuable on the exercise of the Warrant (or specified portion thereof), the Company shall pay an amount in cash equal to the then Current
Market Price multiplied by such fraction. The term "Current Market Price" shall mean (i) if the Common Stock is traded in the over-the-counter market or on
the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Automated Quotations System ("NASDAQ"), the average per share closing bid prices of the Common
Stock on the 20 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date in question, as reported by NASDAQ or an equivalent generally accepted reporting
service, or (ii) if the Common Stock is traded on a national securities exchange, the average for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the
date in question of the daily per share closing bid prices of the Common Stock on the principal stock exchange on which it is listed, as the case may be, or (iii)
if the Common Stock is not so listed or traded, the fair market value of the Common Stock as reasonably determined in good faith by the Board of Directors
of the Company. The term "closing bid price" shall mean the last bid price on the day in question as reported by NASDAQ or an equivalent generally
accepted reporting service or (as the case may be) as reported by the principal stock exchange on which the Common Stock is listed, or if not so reported, as
reasonably determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company.

SECTION 8. NO RIGHTS AS SHAREHOLDER; NOTICES TO WARRANTHOLDER.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as conferring upon the Warrantholder any rights whatsoever as a shareholder of the Company, including the
right to vote, to receive dividends, to consent or to receive notices as a shareholder in respect of any meeting of shareholders for the election of directors of
the Company or any other matter. If, however, at any time prior to the expiration of the Warrant and prior to its exercise, any of the following events shall
occur:

(a) any action which would require an adjustment pursuant to Sections 6.1 or 6.3 (excluding 6.1(a)(i) and 6.1(a)(ii)); or

(b) a dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company (other than in connection with a consolidation, merger or sale of its property, assets and
business, as an entirety) shall be proposed;

then in any one or more of said events, the Company shall give notice in writing of such event to the Warrantholder at least 20 days prior to the date fixed as a
record date or the date of closing the transfer books or other applicable date with respect thereto. Such notice shall specify such record date or the date of

closing the transfer books or such other applicable date, as the case may be.

Any notice to the Warrantholder shall be given at the address of the Warrantholder appearing on the books of the Company, and if the Warrantholder has
specified a telecopier address, by facsimile transmission to such address.
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SECTION 9. REDEMPTION.

At any time after the Warrant Price has been determined, the Company may call this Warrant (together with all other Warrants of like tenor) for
redemption at $0.01 per share covered hereby if the closing bid price of the Common Stock for each of the twenty trading days immediately preceding the
redemption date has equaled or exceeded 150% of the Warrant Price. Written notice of such call shall be given to the Warrantholder as provided in Section 8
hereof at least 20 days but not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption by the Company. If on the date fixed for redemption, the conditions
specified herein have not been satisfied, such call shall be deemed a nullity and if the Warrantholder has exercised this Warrant on account of such call, such
exercise may be rescinded at the election of the Warrantholder. The Company may call this Warrant for redemption only if resale of all of the Common Stock
covered hereby is then registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and a current prospectus meeting the requirements of said Act and the rules thereunder is
available for delivery by the Warrantholder, and if the Common Stock is listed or designated for quotation for trading on at least one of the NASDAQ Small
Cap Market, the NASDAQ National Market, the New York Stock Exchange or the American Stock Exchange, and all such shares of Common Stock are then
authorized for trading on one of such exchanges and registered under Section 12(b) or Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, this Warrant may be exercised by the Warrantholder in accordance with Section 5 at any time on or before the date fixed for redemption by the
Company. If the Company gives written notice of such call, then the limitations on resale contained in Section 3.3 of the Securities Purchase Agreements shall
be of no further force or effect.

SECTION 10. LIMITATION ON EXERCISE.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Warrant shall not be exercisable by a holder hereof to the extent (but only to the extent)
that, if exercisable by such holder, such holder would beneficially own in excess of 4.9% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (or such other greater
percentage indicated on the signature page to, or otherwise applicable to such holder pursuant to, the Securities Purchase Agreements with respect to such
holder). To the extent the above limitation applies, the determination of whether this Warrant shall be exercisable vis-a-vis other securities owned by such
holder, and to what extent this Warrant shall be exercised shall be in the sole discretion of the holder and submission of the Warrant for full or partial exercise
shall be deemed to be the holder's determination of whether and the extent to which the Warrant is exercisable, in each case subject to such aggregate
percentage limitation. No prior inability to exercise the Warrant pursuant to this Section shall have any effect on the applicability of the provisions of this
Section with respect to any subsequent determination of exercisability. For the purposes of this provision, beneficial ownership and all calculations, including
without limitation, with respect to calculations of percentage ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, and Regulation 13 D and G thereunder (collectively "Section 13(d)"). The provisions of this Section may be amended with the approval
of the Board of Directors of the Company and the holders of three-quarters in interest in the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock and Warrants (voting
together as a single class): (i) with respect to any matter to cure any ambiguity herein, to correct this Section (or any portion hereof) which may be defective
or inconsistent with the intended 4.9% beneficial ownership limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly
give effect to such 4.9% limitation; and (ii) with respect to any other matter, with the further consent of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding
shares of Common Stock. The limitations contained in this Section shall apply to a successor holder of Warrants if, and to the extent, elected by such
successor holder concurrently with its acquisition of such Warrants, such election to be promptly confirmed in writing to the Company (provided no transfer
or series of transfers to a successor holder or holders shall be used by a holder to evade the limitations contained in this Section).
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SECTION 11. TERMINATION OF WARRANT.

11.1 If not theretofore exercised, this Warrant shall terminate at 5:00 p.m. Pacific time on the date fixed for redemption pursuant to Section 9 hereof if
the conditions specified in said Section have been satisfied and the payments required by such Section have been made in full to the Warrantholder by the
Company.

11.2 If the Issue Date of this Warrant is later than the date on which redemption of Warrants pursuant to Section 9 hereof has been completed, then this
Warrant shall terminate at 5:00 p.m. Pacific time on the 30th day after the Issue Date (or if such 30th day is not a trading day, then on the next following
trading day), if (i) the conditions set forth in the penultimate sentence of Section 9 are satisfied, and (ii) the closing bid price of the Common Stock for each of
the five trading days preceding the Issue Date equaled or exceeded 150% of the Warrant Price.

SECTION 12. SUCCESSORS.

All the covenants and provisions of this Agreement by or for the benefit of the Company or the Warrantholder shall bind and inure to the benefit of their
respective successors and assigns hereunder.

SECTION 13. MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION OF THE COMPANY.

The Company will not merge or consolidate with or into any other corporation or sell all or substantially all of its property to another corporation, unless
the provisions of Section 6.3 are complied with.

SECTION 14. APPLICABLE LAW, SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE AND CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.

(a) This Warrant shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the State of Delaware and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of said State.

(b) The Company and the Warrantholder acknowledge and agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this
Warrant or the other agreements, documents or instruments contemplated hereby (collectively, the "Transaction Documents") were not performed in
accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to
prevent or cure breaches of the provisions of the Transaction Documents and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions thereof, this being in addition to
any other remedy to which either of them may be entitled by law or equity. No provision of any Transaction Documents providing for any remedy to a
Warrantholder shall limit any remedy which would otherwise be available to such Investor at law or in equity.
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Each of Warrantholder (with respect to compliance by the Company with Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933) and the Company (each an
"Indemnitor") shall indemnify and hold harmless the other for a breach by the Indemnitor of its representations, warranties or obligations under any of the
Transaction Documents.

(c) Each of the Company and the Warrantholder (i) hereby irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the United States District Court and other courts of
the United States sitting in Delaware and the courts of the State of Delaware for the purposes of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Warrant and (ii) hereby waives, and agrees not to assert in any such suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of
such court, that the suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of the suit, action or proceeding is improper. Each of the
Company and the Warrantholder consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to such party at the address
in effect for notices to it under this Warrant and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing in
this paragraph shall affect or limit any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by a duly authorized officer of the Company.
Techniclone Corporation

By:
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware Corporation
AND
TECHNICLONE INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION,
a California Corporation

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER, dated as of September 27, 1996 (this "Agreement"), is between TECHNICLONE
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation ("Techniclone Delaware"), and TECHNICLONE INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, a California corporation
("Techniclone California"), which corporations are sometimes referred to herein as the "Constituent Corporations".

RECITALS

A. Techniclone Delaware is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware and has an authorized capital of
55,000,000 shares, 50,000,000 of which are designated "Common Stock", $.001 par value per share, and 5,000,000 of which are designated "Preferred
Stock", $.001 par value per share. As of September 27, 1996, 100 shares of Common Stock were issued and outstanding, all of which were held by
Techniclone California. No shares of Preferred Stock were outstanding.

B. Techniclone California is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and has an authorized capital of
30,100,000 shares, 30,000,000 of which are designated "Common Stock", no par value and 100,000 of which are designated "Preferred Stock", $1.00 par
value per share. As of September 27, 1996, 21,391,042 shares of Common Stock were outstanding and 2,900 shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock
were outstanding.

C. The Board of Directors of Techniclone California has determined that, for the purpose of effecting the reincorporation of Techniclone California
in the State of Delaware, it is advisable and in the best interests of Techniclone California and its shareholders that Techniclone California merge with and

into Techniclone Delaware upon the terms and conditions herein provided.

D. The respective Boards of Directors of Techniclone Delaware and Techniclone California have approved this Agreement and have directed that
this Agreement be submitted to a vote of their respective stockholders and executed by the undersigned officers.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants set forth herein, Techniclone Delaware and Techniclone California
hereby agree, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, as follows:

L
MERGER

1.1 MERGER. In accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, the Delaware General Corporation Law and the California General Corporation
Law, Techniclone California shall be merged with and into Techniclone Delaware (the "Merger"), the separate existence of Techniclone California shall cease
and Techniclone Delaware shall be, and is herein sometimes referred to as, the "Techniclone Delaware", and the name of Techniclone Delaware shall be
"TECHNICLONE CORPORATION."

1.2 FILING AND EFFECTIVENESS. The Merger shall become effective when the following actions have been completed:

(a) This Agreement has been adopted and approved by the stockholders of each Constituent Corporation in accordance with the requirements
of the Delaware General Corporation Law and the California General Corporation Law;

(b) All of the conditions precedent to the consummation of the Merger specified in this Agreement have been satisfied or duly waived by the
party entitled to satisfaction thereof;

(c) An executed Certificate of Merger or an executed counterpart of this Agreement meeting the requirements of the Delaware General
Corporation Law has been filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware; and

(d) An executed Certificate of Merger or an executed counterpart of this Agreement meeting the requirements of the California General
Corporation Law has been filed with the Secretary of State of the State of California.

The date and time when the Merger shall become effective, as aforesaid, is herein called the "Effective Date of the Merger".
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1.3 EFFECT OF THE MERGER. Upon the Effective Date of the Merger, the separate existence and corporate organization of Techniclone
California shall cease and Techniclone Delaware, as Techniclone Delaware, shall continue its corporate existence under the laws of the State of Delaware.

II.
CHARTER DOCUMENTS, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

2.1 CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION. The Certificate of Incorporation of Techniclone Delaware as in effect immediately before the Effective
Date of the Merger shall continue in full force and effect as the Certificate of Incorporation of Techniclone Delaware until duly amended or repealed in
accordance with the provisions thereof and applicable law.

2.2 BYLAWS. The Bylaws of Techniclone Delaware as in effect immediately before the Effective Date of the Merger shall continue in full force and
effect as the Bylaws of Techniclone Delaware until duly amended or repealed in accordance with the provisions thereof and applicable law.

2.3 DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS. The directors and officers of Techniclone California immediately before the Effective Date of the Merger shall
be the directors and officers of Techniclone Delaware until the expiration of their current terms and until their successors have been duly elected and
qualified, or until their prior resignation, removal or death, subject to the Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws of Techniclone Delaware.

III.
MANNER OF CONVERSION OF STOCK

3.1 TECHNICLONE CALIFORNIA SHARES. Upon the Effective Date of the Merger, each share of Techniclone California Common Stock, no par
value, issued and outstanding immediately before the Effective Date of the Merger shall by virtue of the Merger and without any action by the Constituent
Corporations, by the holder of such shares or by any other person be converted into and exchanged for one fully paid and nonassessable share of Common
Stock, $.001 par value, of Techniclone Delaware. Upon the Effective Date of the Merger, each share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value
per share, of Techniclone California issued and outstanding immediately before the Effective Date of the Merger shall by virtue of the Merger and without
any action by the Constituent Corporations, by the holder of such shares or by any other person be converted into and exchanged for one fully paid and
nonassessable share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value, of Techniclone Delaware. No fractional shares, or cash in lieu thereof, shall be
issued in the Merger.

3.2 TECHNICLONE CALIFORNIA OPTIONS, STOCK PURCHASE RIGHTS AND CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES. Upon the Effective Date of
the Merger, Techniclone Delaware shall assume and continue the 1982 Stock Option Plan, the Incentive Stock Option, Non-Statutory Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Purchase Plan - 1986, the Cancer Biologics Incorporated Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and Restated Stock Purchase
Plan - 1987, the Incentive Stock Option and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan - 1993 and the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and all other employee benefit plans
of Techniclone California. Each outstanding and unexercised option, other right to purchase or security convertible into Techniclone California Common
Stock shall become an option, right to purchase or a security convertible into Techniclone Delaware's Common Stock on the basis of one share of Techniclone
Delaware's Common Stock for each share of Techniclone California Common Stock issuable pursuant to any such option, stock purchase right or convertible
security, under the same terms and conditions, and at an exercise price per share equal to the exercise price per share applicable to any such Techniclone
California stock option, stock purchase right or other convertible security at the Effective Date of the Merger. Each Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of
Techniclone California shall become a Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Techniclone Delaware on the basis of one share of Techniclone Delaware for
each share of Techniclone California Common Stock issuable pursuant to any such Warrant.

A number of shares of Techniclone Delaware's Common Stock shall be reserved for issuance upon the exercise of stock options, stock purchase
rights and convertible securities equal to the number of shares of Techniclone California Common Stock so reserved immediately before the Effective Date of
the Merger.

3.3 TECHNICLONE DELAWARE COMMON STOCK. Upon the Effective Date of the Merger, each share of Common Stock, $.001 par value, of

Techniclone Delaware issued and outstanding immediately before the Effective Date of the Merger shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action by
Techniclone Delaware, by the holder of such shares or by any other person be canceled and returned to the status of authorized but unissued shares.
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Iv.
TRANSFER OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

4.1 TRANSFER OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES. On the Effective Date, (i) the rights, privileges, powers and franchises, both of a public as well
as of a private nature, of each of the Constituent Corporations shall be vested in and possessed by Techniclone Delaware, subject to all the disabilities, duties
and restrictions of or upon each of the Constituent Corporations; (ii) all rights, privileges, powers and franchises of each of the Constituent Corporations, all
property, real, personal and mixed, of each of the Constituent Corporations, all debts due to each of the Constituent Corporations on whatever account and all
things in action or belonging to each of the Constituent Corporations shall be transferred to and vested in Techniclone Delaware; (iii) all property, rights,
privileges, powers and franchises, as well as all other interests, shall be as effectively the property of Techniclone Delaware as they were of the Constituent
Corporations before the Effective Date; and (iv) the title to any real estate vested by deed or otherwise in either of the Constituent Corporations shall not
revert to either of the Constituent Corporations or be in any way impaired by reason of the Merger. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) the liabilities of the
Constituent Corporations and of their stockholders, directors and officers shall not be affected by the Merger; (ii) all rights of creditors and all liens upon any
property of either of the Constituent Corporations shall be preserved unimpaired notwithstanding the Merger; and (iii) any claim existing or action or
proceeding pending by or against either of the Constituent Corporations may be prosecuted to judgment as if the Merger had not taken place; provided,
however, that the claims and rights of the creditors of either or both of the Constituent Corporations may be modified with the consent of such creditors; and,
provided further, that all debts, liabilities and duties of or upon each of the Constituent Corporations shall attach to Techniclone Delaware and accordingly
may be enforced against it to the same extent as if such debts, liabilities and duties had been incurred or contracted by it.

4.2 FURTHER ASSURANCES. From time to time, as and when required by Techniclone Delaware or by its successors or assigns, there shall be
executed and delivered on behalf of Techniclone California such deeds and other instruments, and there shall be taken or caused to be taken by it such further
and other actions as shall be appropriate or necessary in order to vest or perfect in or conform of record or otherwise by Techniclone Delaware the title to and
possession of all the property, interests, assets, rights, privileges, immunities, powers, franchises and authority of Techniclone California and otherwise to
carry out the purposes of this Agreement, and the officers and directors of Techniclone Delaware are fully authorized in the name and on behalf of
Techniclone California or otherwise to take all such actions and to execute and deliver all such deeds and other instruments.

V.
GENERAL

5.1 COVENANTS OF TECHNICLONE DELAWARE. Techniclone Delaware covenants and agrees that it will, on or before the Effective Date of
the Merger:

(a) Qualify to do business as a foreign corporation in the State of California and in connection therewith irrevocably appoint an agent for
service of process as required under the provisions of Section 2105 of the California General Corporation Law.

(b) File all documents with the California Franchise Tax Board necessary for the assumption by Techniclone Delaware of all of the franchise
tax liabilities of Techniclone California.

(c) Take such other actions as may be required by the California General Corporation Law.

5.2 DEFERRAL. Consummation of the merger may be deferred by the Board of Directors of Techniclone California for a reasonable period of time
if the Board of Directors determines that deferral would be in the best interests of Techniclone California and its shareholders.

5.3 AMENDMENT. The parties hereto, by mutual consent of their respective Boards of Directors, may amend, modify or supplement this
Agreement in such manner as may be agreed upon by them in writing at any time before or after adoption and approval of this Agreement by the stockholders
of Techniclone Delaware and Techniclone California, but not later than the Effective Date; provided, however, that no such amendment, modification or
supplement not adopted and approved by the stockholders of Techniclone Delaware and Techniclone California shall affect the rights of such stockholders or
change any of the principal terms of this Agreement.

5.4 ABANDONMENT. At any time before the Effective Date of the Merger, this Agreement may be terminated and the Merger may be abandoned
for any reason whatsoever by the Board of Directors of either Techniclone California or of Techniclone Delaware, or of both, notwithstanding the approval of
this Agreement by the shareholders of Techniclone California or by the stockholders of Techniclone Delaware, or by both.

In the event of abandonment of this Agreement, as above provided, this Agreement shall become wholly void and of no effect, and no liability on the

part of either Constituent Corporation or its Board of Directors or its stockholders shall arise by virtue of such termination except as provided in Section 5.5
hereof.
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5.5 EXPENSES. If the Merger becomes effective, Techniclone Delaware shall assume and pay all expenses in connection therewith not theretofore
paid by the respective parties. If for any reason the Merger shall not become effective, Techniclone California shall pay all expenses incurred in connection
with all the proceedings taken in respect of this Agreement or relating thereto.

5.6 REGISTERED OFFICE. The registered office of Techniclone Delaware in the State of Delaware is located at 9 East Loockerman Street, Dover,
Delaware 19901, and National Registered Agents, Inc., County of Kent is the registered agent of Techniclone Delaware at such address.

5.7 AGREEMENT. Executed copies of this Agreement will be on file at the principal place of business of Techniclone Delaware at 14282 Franklin
Avenue, Tustin, California 92680, and, upon request and without cost, copies thereof will be furnished to any stockholder of either Constituent Corporation.

5.8 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall in all respects be construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with and governed by the laws of
the State of Delaware and, so far as applicable, the Merger provisions of the California General Corporation Law.

5.9 COUNTERPARTS. In order to facilitate the filing and recording of this Agreement, the same may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement having first been approved by resolutions of the Boards of Directors of Techniclone Delaware and
Techniclone California is hereby executed on behalf of each of such two corporations and attested by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware corporation

By: /s/ Lon H. Stone
Lon H. Stone
President and Chief Executive Officer

TECHNICLONE INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION,
a California corporation

By: /s/ Lon H. Stone
Lon H. Stone
President and Chief Executive Officer

64




OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION,
a Delaware Corporation

The undersigned, Lon H. Stone, President of TECHNICLONE CORPORATION, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Delaware ("Techniclone Delaware"), hereby certifies, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 103 and 252 of the General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware, that Techniclone International Corporation, a California corporation ("Techniclone California"), the sole stockholder of Techniclone Delaware,
has voted all outstanding shares of Techniclone Delaware in favor of the merger of Techniclone California with and into Techniclone Delaware on the terms

and conditions set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger to which this Certificate is appended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name to this Certificate as of March __, 1997.

/s/ Lon H. Stone
Lon H. Stone, President
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CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL
OF
AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

LON H. STONE and WILLIAM V. MODING hereby certify that:

(a) They are the Chief Executive Officer and Secretary, respectively of TECHNICLONE INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, a California
corporation (the "Corporation").

(b) The Agreement and Plan of Merger in the form attached hereto was duly approved by the Board of Directors and the shareholders of the
Corporation.

(c) There are two classes of shares of the Corporation, consisting of Common Stock and Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, and the number of
shares outstanding and entitled to vote on the merger is 21,042,409 shares of Common Stock and 3,900 shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

(d) The merger was approved by the holders of 52.85 % of the outstanding shares of Common Stock and 100% of the outstanding shares of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock entitled to vote thereon. The merger required the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock and a
majority of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, each voting as a separate class. The votes cast in favor of the merger equaled or exceeded the percentage
vote required for the Common Stock and Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, each voting as a separate class.

The undersigned further declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this Certificate are
true and correct of their own knowledge.

Dated: March __, 1997
/s/ Lon H. Stone
Lon H. Stone,

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ William V. Moding
William V. Moding, Secretary
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
TECHNICLONE CORPORATION

ARTICLE 1 - NAME
The name of this Corporation is TECHNICLONE CORPORATION.
ARTICLE 2 - REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The address of the registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is 9 East Loockerman Street, Dover, Delaware 19901. The name of the
Corporation's registered agent at that address is National Registered Agents, Inc., County of Kent.

ARTICLE 3 - PURPOSE

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of
the State of Delaware, as amended from time to time.

ARTICLE 4 - AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 55,000,000, of which (i) 50,000,000 shares shall
be designated "Common Stock" and shall have a par value of $0.001 per share; and (ii) 5,000,000 shares shall be designated "Preferred Stock" and shall have
a par value of $0.001 per share. The Preferred Stock shall be divided into series. The first such series shall consist of 5,000 shares and is designated "Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock". The Board of Directors is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by law, to provide for the issuance of the shares of the
remaining authorized shares of Preferred Stock in one or more series, and by filing a certificate pursuant to the applicable law of the State of Delaware, to
establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each such series, and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of
each such series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof. The authority of the Board with respect to each series shall include, but not be
limited to, determination of the following:

(a) The number of shares constituting that series and the distinctive designation of that series;

(b) The dividend rate on the shares of that series, whether dividends shall be cumulative and, if so, from which date or dates, and the relative rights
of priority, if any, of payment of dividends on shares of that series;

(c) Whether that series shall have voting rights, in addition to the voting rights provided by law and, if so, the terms of such voting rights;

(d) Whether that series shall have conversion privileges and, if so, the terms and conditions of such conversion, including provision for adjustment
of the conversion rate in such events as the Board of Directors shall determine;

(e) Whether or not the shares of that series shall be redeemable and, if so, the terms and conditions of such redemption, including the date or dates

upon or after which they shall be redeemable and the amount per share payable in case of redemption, which amount may vary under different conditions and
at different redemption dates;
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(f) Whether that series shall have a sinking fund for the redemption or purchase of shares of that series and, if so, the terms and amount of such
sinking fund; and

(g) The rights of the shares of that series in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, and the
relative rights of priority, if any, of payment of shares of that series.

The designations, powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights and qualifications, limitations and restrictions
thereof in respect of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock are as follows:

SECTION 1. DETERMINATION AND AMOUNT. The shares of such series shall be designated as "Class B Convertible Preferred Stock" (the
"Class B Convertible Preferred Stock™) and the number of shares constituting the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be Five Thousand (5,000).
Such number of shares may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors; provided, that no decrease shall reduce the number of
shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock to a number less than the number of shares then outstanding plus the number of shares reserved for
issuance upon the exercise of outstanding options, rights or warrants to acquire shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock or upon the conversion of
any outstanding securities issued by the Corporation convertible into Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

SECTION 2. RANK. The Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall rank: (i) junior to any other class or series of capital stock of the Corporation
hereafter created specifically ranking by its terms senior to the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (collectively, the "Senior Securities"); (ii) prior to all
of the Corporation's Common Stock ("Common Stock"); (iii) prior to any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation hereafter created specifically
ranking by its terms junior to any Class B Convertible Preferred Stock of whatever subdivision (collectively, with the Common Stock, "Junior
Securities"); (iv) on parity with any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation hereafter created specifically ranking by its terms on parity with the
Class B Convertible Preferred Stock ("Parity Securities") in each case as to distributions of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary (all such distributions being referred to collectively as "Distributions").

SECTION 3. DIVIDENDS. The holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock ("Holders") shall not be entitled to receive cash dividends on
the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

SECTION 4. LIQUIDATION PREFERENCE.

(a) In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, the Holders of shares of Class
B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, immediately after any distributions to Senior Securities required by the Corporation's
Certificate of Incorporation, as amended and restated, or any certificate of designation of preferences, and prior and in preference to any distribution
to Junior Securities but in parity with any distribution of Parity Securities, an amount per share equal to the sum of (i) One Thousand Dollars
($1,000) for each outstanding share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Original Class B Issue Price") and (ii) an amount equal to ten
percent (10%) of the Original Class B Issue Price per annum for the period that has passed since the date of issuance of any Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock (such amount being referred to herein as the "Premium"). If upon the occurrence of such event, and after payment in full of the
preferential amounts with respect to the Senior Securities, the assets and funds thus distributed among the Holders of the Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock and Parity Securities, respectively, then the entire assets and funds of the Corporation legally available for distribution shall be
distributed among the Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock and the Parity Securities, pro rata, based on the respective liquidation
amounts to which each such series of stock is entitled by the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, as amended and restated, and any certificate
of designation of preferences.
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(b) Upon the completion of the distribution required by subsection 4(a), if assets remain in this Corporation, they shall be distributed to holders
of Junior Securities in accordance with the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, including any duly adopted certificate(s) of
designation of preferences.

(c) A consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or corporations, or a sale, conveyance or disposition of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or the effectuation by the Corporation of a transaction or series of related transactions in which
more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of the Corporation is disposed of (collectively referred to as a "Change in Control Transaction"),
shall be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up within the meaning of this Section 4; provided, however, that the Corporation shall
provide written notice to the Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock of a Change in Control Transaction and the Holders of the Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to convert the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock held by such Holder pursuant to the provisions of
Section 5 hereof, at any time before five (5) days prior to any Change in Control Transaction.

SECTION 5. CONVERSION. The record Holders of this Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall have conversion rights as follows (the
"Conversion Rights"):

(A) RIGHT TO CONVERT. Immediately after the date of the last closing of a sale and purchase of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock,
which date shall not be later than January 15, 1996, (the "Last Closing Date"), continuing through the first 90 days, each record Holder of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled and subject to the Corporation's right of redemption set forth in Section 6(a) and Section 6(b), at the
office of the Corporation or the transfer agent for the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, to convert portions of the Class B Convertible Preferred
Stock held by such Holder (but only in multiples of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000)) into that number of fully-paid and non-assessable shares of
Common Stock of the Corporation calculated in accordance with the following formula:

110% of the Fixed Conversion Price (as defined herein).

Beginning 91 days after the last closing date, each record Holder of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled (at the times and in the
amounts set forth below), and, subject to the Corporation's right of redemption set forth in Section 6(a) and Section 6(b), at the office of the Corporation
or the transfer agent for the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, to convert portions of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock held by such Holder (but
only in multiples of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) into that number of fully-paid and non- assessable shares of Common Stock of the Corporation
calculated in accordance with the following formula (the "Conversion Rate"):

Number of shares issued upon conversion of one share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock
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Conversion Price

where,

N = the number of days between (i) the last closing date, as defined herein, and (ii) the applicable date of conversion for the shares of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock for which conversion is being elected, and
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Conversion Price = the lesser of (x) the average Closing Bid Price, as that term is defined below, for the five trading days ending on December 8, 1995 (which
amount is $3.06875 and is referred to herein as the "Fixed Conversion Price"), or (y) X times the average Closing Bid Price, as that term is defined below, of
the Corporation's Common Stock for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding the Date of Conversion, as defined below, where X shall equal .85 + (1-
(the average Closing Bid Price of the Corporation's Common Stock for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding the Date of Conversion, as that term is
defined below, divided by the average Closing Bid Price of the Corporation's Common Stock for the ten (10) trading days immediately preceding the Date of
Conversion); provided that, in no event shall X be less than .85 or greater than 1.0.

For purposes hereof, the term "Closing Bid Price" shall mean the closing bid price on the over-the-counter market as reported by NASDAQ, or if
then traded on a national securities exchange, the NASDAQ Small Cap or the National Market System, the closing bid price on the principal national
securities exchange, the NASDAQ Small Cap or the National Market System which it is so traded.

(B) MECHANICS OF CONVERSION. In order to convert Class B Convertible Preferred Stock into full shares of Common Stock, the
Holder shall (i) fax a copy of the fully executed notice of conversion in the form attached hereto ("Notice of Conversion") to the Company at such
office that he elects to convert the same, which Notice of Conversion shall specify the number of shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock to
be converted and shall contain a calculation of the Conversion Rate (together with a copy of the first page of each certificate to be converted) to the
Company or its designated transfer agent prior to Midnight, New York City time (the "Conversion Notice Deadline") on the date of conversion
specified on the Notice of Conversion and (ii) surrender the original certificate or certificates therefor, duly endorsed, and the original Notice of
Conversion no later than the close of business (New York City time) the next business day to a common courier, for either overnight courier or 2-
day courier, to the office of the Company and any transfer agent for the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock; provided, however, that the Company
shall not be obligated to issue certificates evidencing the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion unless either the certificates
evidencing such Class B Convertible Preferred Stock are delivered to the Company or its transfer agent as provided above, or the Holder notifies
the Company or its transfer agent that such certificates have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

(I) LOST OR STOLEN CERTIFICATES. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of a
certificate or certificates ("Stock Certificates") representing shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, and (in the case of loss, theft or
destruction) of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to the Company, and upon surrender and cancellation of the Stock Certificate(s), if
mutilated, the Company shall execute and deliver new Stock Certificate(s) of like tenor and date.

(IT) NO FRACTIONAL SHARES. If any conversion of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock would create a fractional share of
Common Stock or a right to acquire a fractional share of Common Stock, such fractional share shall be disregarded and the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be the next higher number of shares. In the case of a dispute as to the calculation of the
Conversion Rate, the Company's calculation shall be deemed conclusive absent manifest error.

(II) COMPANY TO REISSUE/DELIVER SHARES. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to issue and deliver within three
(3) business days after delivery to the Company of such certificates, or after such agreement and indemnification, to such Holder of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock at the address of the Holder on the Books of the Company, a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of
Common Stock to which the Holder shall be entitled as aforesaid.
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(IV) DATE OF CONVERSION. The date on which conversion occurs (the "Date of Conversion") shall be deemed to be the date set
forth in such Notice of Conversion, provided (i) that the advance copy of the Notice of Conversion is faxed to the Company before midnight,
New York City time, on the Date of Conversion, and (ii) that the original Stock Certificates representing the shares of Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock to be converted are surrendered no later than the close of business (New York City time) the next business day to a common
courier for overnight or 2-day delivery, and received by the transfer agent or the Company within five (5) business days thereafter. If the
original Stock Certificates representing the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock to be converted are not received by the transfer agent or the
Company within five (5) business days after the Date of Conversion or if the facsimile of the Notice of Conversion is not received by the
Company or its designated transfer agent prior to the Conversion Notice Deadline, the Notice of Conversion, at the Company's option, may be
declared null and void.

(V) The person or persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes
as the record holder or holders of such shares of Common Stock on such date.

Following conversion of shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, such shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock will no longer be
outstanding.

(C) RESERVATION OF STOCK ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of
its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock,
such number of its shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall not be sufficient to effect the
conversion of all then outstanding shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, the Corporation will, subject to stockholder approval, take all such
corporate action as may be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient
for such purpose.

(D) AUTOMATIC CONVERSION. Each share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding on December 15, 1998 automatically
shall be converted into Common Stock on such date at the Conversion Rate then in effect (calculated in accordance with the formula in Section 5(a)
above) and December 15, 1998 shall be deemed the Date of Conversion with respect to such conversion.

(E) ADJUSTMENT TO CONVERSION RATE.

(A) If, prior to the conversion of all of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock is
increased by a stock split, stock dividend, or other similar event, the Conversion Rate shall be proportionately adjusted, or if the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock is decreased by a combination or reclassification of shares, or other similar event, the Conversion Rate
shall be proportionately adjusted.

(B) If, prior to the conversion of all Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, there shall be any merger, consolidation, exchange of shares,
recapitalization, reorganization, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the Corporation shall be changed into
the same or a different number of shares of the same or another class or classes of stock or securities of the Corporation or another entity, then
the Holders of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall thereafter have the right to purchase and receive upon conversion of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified herein and in lieu of the shares of Common Stock
immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such shares of stock and/or securities as may be issued or payable with respect to or in
exchange for the number of shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the conversion of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock held by such Holders had such merger, consolidation, exchange of shares, recapitalization or reorganization not
taken place, and in any such case appropriate provisions shall be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holders of the Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock to the end that the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion
Rate and of the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly
as may be practicable in relation to any shares of stock or securities thereafter deliverable upon the exercise hereof. The Corporation shall not
effect any transaction described in this subsection 5(e) unless the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Corporation) assumes by
written instrument the obligation to deliver to the Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock such shares of stock and/or securities as,
in accordance with the foregoing provisions, the Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock may be entitled to receive upon
conversion of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.
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(C) If any adjustment under this Section 5(e) would create a fractional share of Common Stock or a right to acquire a fractional share of
Common Stock, such fractional share shall be disregarded and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be the
next higher number of shares.

SECTION 6. CASH REDEMPTION BY CORPORATION.

(A) CORPORATION'S RIGHT TO REDEEM UPON RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF CONVERSION. The Corporation shall have the
right, in its sole discretion, upon receipt of a Notice of Conversion pursuant to Section 5, to redeem in whole or in part any Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock submitted for conversion, immediately prior to conversion. If the Corporation elects to redeem some, but not all, of the Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock submitted for conversion, the Corporation shall redeem from among the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock submitted
by the various Holders thereof for conversion on the applicable date, a pro-rata amount from each Holder so submitting Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock for conversion. The Corporation shall effect each such redemption by giving notice ("Notice of Redemption Upon Receipt of
Notice of Conversion") of its election to redeem, by facsimile within one (1) business day following receipt of a Notice of Conversion from a
Holder, with a copy by 2-day courier, (A) to the Holders of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock selected for redemption, at the address and
facsimile number of such Holder appearing in the Corporation's register for the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock and (B) the Corporation's
transfer agent. Such Notice of Redemption Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion shall indicate the number of shares of Holder's Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock that have been selected for redemption, the Date of Redemption Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion (as defined
below) and the applicable Redemption Price Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion, as defined below. If the Notice of Redemption Upon Receipt of
Notice of Conversion is not received within the times specified above or does not meet the conditions specified above, the Notice of Redemption
Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion shall become null and void (unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Holder). The Corporation shall not be
entitled to send any Notice of Redemption upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion and begin the redemption procedure unless it has (x) the full
amount of the Redemption Price Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion, in cash, available in a demand or other immediately available account in a
bank or similar financial institution or (y) immediately available credit facilities, in the full amount of the Redemption Price Upon Receipt of Notice
of Conversion, with a bank or similar financial institution on the date the Notice of Redemption Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion is sent to the
applicable Holder.

The Redemption Price Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion per share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall equal the Closing Bid

Price on the Date of Conversion, multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock that would otherwise have been issuable had the shares of
Class B Convertible Preferred Stock redeemed been converted on the Date of Conversion as to such shares.
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For the purposes of the above formula, "N", "Closing Bid Price" and "Conversion Price" shall have the meanings set forth in Section 5(a) and
"Date of Redemption" shall be deemed to be the Conversion Date (as that term is defined in Section 5(b) above).

The Redemption Price Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion shall be paid to the Holder of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock redeemed
within ten (10) business days of the delivery of the Notice of Redemption Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion to such Holder; provided,
however, that the Corporation shall not be obligated to deliver any portion of the Redemption Price Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion unless
either the certificates evidencing the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock redeemed are delivered to the Corporation or the transfer agent as
provided in Section 5(b), or the Holder notifies the transfer agent that such certificates have been lost, stolen or destroyed and executes an
agreement satisfactory to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation from any loss incurred by it in connection with such certificates.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the certificates evidencing the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock delivered to the transfer agent
as provided in Section 5(b), the redemption of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 6(a) shall still be deemed effective
as of the Date of Redemption Upon Receipt of Notice of Conversion.

(B) CORPORATION'S RIGHT TO REDEEM AT ITS ELECTION. Commencing 91 days after the last closing date, the Corporation shall
have the right, in its sole discretion, to redeem, from time to time, any or all of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock; provided that, the
Corporation shall only be entitled to redeem shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock with an aggregate Stated Value (as defined below) of at
least One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) on the first such redemption. If the Corporation elects to redeem some, but not all,
of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, the Corporation shall redeem a pro-rata amount from each Holder of Class B Convertible Preferred
Stock. The Corporation shall effect each such redemption by giving at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by overnight or 2-day courier
("Notice of Redemption At Corporation's Election") to (A) the Holders of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock selected for redemption, at the
address and facsimile number of such Holder appearing in the Corporation's register for the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock and (B) the
transfer agent, which Notice of Redemption At Corporation's Election shall be deemed to have been delivered three (3) business days after the
Corporation's mailing of such Notice of Redemption At Corporation's Election. Such Notice of Redemption At Corporation's Election shall indicate
the number of shares of Holder's Class B Convertible Preferred Stock that have been selected for redemption, the date which such redemption is to
become effective (the "Date of Redemption At Corporation's Election" and the applicable Redemption Price At Corporation's Election, as defined
below. The Corporation shall not be entitled to send any Notice of Redemption At Corporation's Election and begin the redemption, procedure
unless it has (x) the full amount of the Redemption Price At Corporation's Election, in cash, available in a demand or other immediately available
account in a bank or similar financial institution or (y) immediately available credit facilities, in the full amount of the Redemption At Corporation's
Election, with a bank or similar financial institution on the date the Notice of Redemption At Corporation's Election is delivered to the applicable
Holder. Notwithstanding the above, the Holder may convert any or all of its Class B Convertible Preferred Stock that is eligible for conversion,
which would otherwise be subject to redemption under this Section 6(b), by submitting a Notice of Conversion prior to the effective date of such
redemption. Corporation is not entitled to require redemption under this Section 6(b) if the Corporation makes any planned press release either (a)
on the effective date of redemption or (b) prior to the close of trading on the following business day. Additionally, the Corporation shall not be
permitted to elect redemption under this Section 6(b) if the Corporation has in its possession material information concerning the Corporation which
is required to be publicly disclosed pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or relevant self-regulatory
organization and has not yet been disclosed. In the event the Corporation is deemed to be in possession of such undisclosed information subsequent
to it providing Notice of Redemption, the date upon which the Corporation can require the holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock to
redeem shall be 15 days following the date of any press release or other public disclosure.

For purposes of this Section 6(b), "Stated Value" shall mean the Original Class B Issue Price of the shares of Class B Convertible Preferred
Stock redeemed pursuant to this Section 6(b), plus the accrued but unpaid Premium (as defined in Section 4(a)) on such shares of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock, as of the date of Redemption At Corporation's Election.

The Redemption Price At Corporation's Election shall be calculated as a percentage of Stated Value of the shares of Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock redeemed pursuant to this Section 6(b), which percentage shall vary depending on the date of delivery of the Notice of Redemption
at Corporation's Election, and shall be determined as follows:

Date of Delivery of Notice of Redemption at Corporation’s Election % of Stated Value
91 days to 6 months following last closing date 130%
6 months and 1 day to 12 months following last closing date 125%
12 months and 1 day to 18 months following last closing date 120%
18 months and 1 day to 24 months following last closing date 115%
24 months and 1 day to 30 months following last closing date 110%
30 months and 1 day to 36 months following last closing date 105%

The Redemption Price At Corporation's Election shall be paid to the Holder of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock redeemed within ten (10)
business days of the Date of Redemption At Corporation's Election to such Holder; provided, however, that the Corporation shall not be obligated
to deliver any portion of the Redemption Price At Corporation's Election unless either the certificates evidencing the Class B Convertible Preferred
Stock redeemed are delivered to the transfer agent prior to the 10th business day following the Date of Redemption At Corporation's Election, or the
Holder notifies the transfer agent that such certificates have been lost, stolen or destroyed and executes an agreement satisfactory to the Corporation
to indemnify the Corporation from any loss incurred by it in connection with such certificates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the
certificates evidencing the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock redeemed are not delivered to the transfer agent, prior to the 10th business day
following the Date of Redemption at Corporation's Election, the redemption of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 6(b)
shall still be deemed effective as of the date of Redemption at Corporation's Election, and the Redemption Price At Corporation's Election shall be
paid to the Holder of Class B Preferred Stock redeemed within 5 business days of the date the certificates evidencing the Class B Preferred Stock
redeemed are actually delivered to the transfer agent.

SECTION 7. ADVANCE NOTICE OF REDEMPTION.
(A) HOLDER'S RIGHT TO ELECT TO RECEIVE NOTICE OF CASH REDEMPTION BY CORPORATION. Holder shall have the

right to require Corporation to provide advance notice stating whether Corporation will elect to redeem Holder's shares in cash, pursuant to
Corporation's redemption rights discussed in Section 6.



(B) MECHANICS OF HOLDER'S ELECTION NOTICE. Holder shall send notice to Corporation by facsimile ("Election Notice") stating
Holder's intention to require Corporation to disclose that if Holder were to exercise his, her or its right of conversion (pursuant to section 5) whether
Corporation would elect to redeem Holder's convertible Security for cash in lieu of issuing Common Stock. Corporation is required to disclose to
Holder what action Corporation would take over the subsequent five day period, including the date Corporation receives such Election Notice.
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(C) CORPORATION'S RESPONSE. Corporation must respond within one business day of receipt of Holder's Election Notice (1) via
facsimile and (2) via overnight courier. If Corporation does not respond to Holder within one business day via facsimile and overnight courier,
Corporation shall be required to issue to Holder Common Stock upon Holder's conversion within the subsequent five day period.

SECTION 8. VOTING RIGHTS. Except as otherwise provided by the Delaware General Corporation Law ("Delaware Law"), the Holders of the
Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall have no voting power whatsoever, and no Holder of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall vote or
otherwise participate in any proceeding in which actions shall be taken by the Corporation or the stockholders thereof or be entitled to notification as to
any meeting of the stockholders.

To the extent that under Delaware Law the vote of the Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class, is required
to authorize a given action of the Corporation, the affirmative vote or consent of the Holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of the Class
B Convertible Preferred Stock at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present or by written consent of a majority of the shares of Class B
Convertible Preferred Stock (except as otherwise maybe required under Delaware Law) shall constitute the approval of such action by the class. To the
extent that under Delaware Law the Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to vote on a matter with Holders of Common Stock,
voting together as one class, each share of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of
Common Stock into which it is then convertible using the record date for the taking of such vote of stockholders as the date as of which the Conversion
Price is calculated. Holders of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to notice of all stockholder meetings or written consents with
respect to which they would be entitled to vote, which notice would be provided pursuant to the Corporation's by-laws and applicable statutes.

SECTION 9. PROTECTIVE PROVISIONS. So long as shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Corporation shall not
without first obtaining the approval (by vote or written consent, as provided by Delaware Law) of the Holders of at least a majority of the then
outstanding shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock;

(a) alter or change the rights, preferences or privileges of the shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock or any Senior Securities so as to
affect adversely the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock;

(b) create any new class or classes or series of stock having a preference over the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to
Distributions (as defined in Section 2 above); or

(c) do any act or thing not authorized or contemplated by this Certificate of Incorporation which would result in taxation of the Holders of
shares of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock under Section 305 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (or any comparable
provision of the Internal Revenue Code as hereafter from time to time amended).

SECTION 10. STATUS OF REDEEMED OR CONVERTED STOCK. In the event any shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
redeemed or converted pursuant to Section 5 or Section 6 hereof, the shares so converted or redeemed shall be canceled, shall return to the status of
authorized but unissued Preferred Stock of no designated series and shall not be issuable by the Corporation as Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

SECTION 11. PREFERENCE RIGHTS. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent the Board of Directors of the Corporation from

issuing one or more series of Preferred Stock with dividend and/or liquidation preferences equal to or junior to the dividend and liquidation preferences
of the Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.
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ARTICLE 5 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

SECTION 1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the Board of
Directors and elections of directors need not be by written ballot unless otherwise provided in the Bylaws. The number of directors of the Corporation shall be
fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors either by a resolution or Bylaw adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board of
Directors.

SECTION 2. MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS. Meetings of the stockholders may be held within or without the State of Delaware, as the
Bylaws may provide. The books of the Corporation may be kept (subject to any provision contained in the Delaware Statutes) outside the State of Delaware at
such place or places as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors or by the Bylaws of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. NO STOCKHOLDER ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT. Commencing September 27, 1996, any action required or permitted
to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of such holders and may not be effected by any
consent in writing by such holders. Except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws of the Corporation, special meetings of the stockholders of the Corporation
may only be called by the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board of Directors. At any annual meeting or special
meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been brought before such meeting in the manner provided by
the Bylaws of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 6 - LIMITATION OF DIRECTORS' LIABILITY

A director of this Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty
as a director, provided that this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director (i) for any breach of his duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its
stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of the law,(iii) under Section 174 of
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derives an improper personal benefit. If the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware is hereafter amended to authorize corporate action further limiting or eliminating the personal liability of directors,
then the liability of the directors of the Corporation shall be limited or eliminated to the fullest extent permitted by the General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware, as so amended from time to time. Any repeal or modification of this Article 6 by the stockholders of the Corporation shall be prospective only,
and shall not adversely affect any limitation on the personal liability of a director of the Corporation existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE 7 - AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall have the power to make, alter, amend, change, add to or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation.
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ARTICLE 8 - INCORPORATOR
The name and address of the Incorporator of the Corporation is as follows:

Stewart A. Smith

660 Newport Center Drive

Suite 1600

Newport Beach, California 92660-6441

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, being the Incorporator, for the purpose of forming a corporation under the laws of the State of Delaware, do make, file
and record this Certificate of Incorporation, do certify that the facts herein stated are true, and accordingly, have hereunto set my hand this 24th day of

September 1996.

/s/ Stewart A. Smith
Stewart A. Smith
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
I, Roger J. Lias, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Avid Bioservices, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the periods covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: December 10, 2018 Signed: /s/ Roger J. Lias, Ph.D.
Roger J. Lias, Ph.D
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

I, Daniel R. Hart, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Avid Bioservices, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

0) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the periods covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: December 10, 2018 Signed: /s/ Daniel R. Hart
Daniel R. Hart
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION

I, Roger J. Lias, certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that the
Quarterly Report of Avid Bioservices, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Quarterly Report of Avid Bioservices, Inc. on Form 10-Q fairly presents
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Avid Bioservices, Inc.

By: /s/ Roger J. Lias, PhD.

Name: Roger J. Lias, Ph.D.

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: December 10, 2018

I, Daniel R. Hart, certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that the
Quarterly Report of Avid Bioservices, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Quarterly Report of Avid Bioservices, Inc. on Form 10-Q fairly presents
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Avid Bioservices, Inc.

By: /s/ Daniel R. Hart
Name: Daniel R. Hart

Title: Chief Financial Officer
Date: December 10, 2018

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Avid Bioservices, Inc. and will be retained by Avid Bioservices, Inc.
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

This Certification is being furnished pursuant to Rule 15(d) and shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78r),
or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. This Certification shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities
Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent it is specifically incorporated by reference.



